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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS.

The discussion in this Annual Report on Form 10-K (this “Annual Report™), including under Item 1A, “Risk Factors” and 1C, “Cybersecurity” of Part I and Item 7,
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” of Part II, contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of the federal
securities laws. All statements other than statements of historical fact contained in this Annual Report, including statements regarding our future operating results and financial
position, business strategy and plans, and objectives of management for future operations, are forward-looking statements. These statements are based on our current
expectations, assumptions, estimates and projections. These statements involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties, and other important factors that may cause our actual
results, performance or achievements to be materially different from any future results, performance, or achievements expressed or implied by the forward-looking statements.
Forward-looking statements are based on management’s current expectations and assumptions regarding the Company’s business, the economy, and other future conditions,
including the impact of natural disasters on sales. In some cases, you can identify forward-looking statements by terms such as “may,” “will,” “should,” “expects,” “plans,”
“anticipates,” “could,” “seeks,” “intends,” “target,” “projects,” “contemplates,” “believes,” “estimates,” “predicts,” “budget,” “potential,” or “continue” or the negative of these
terms or other similar expressions.
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The forward-looking statements contained in this Annual Report are only predictions. Although we believe that the expectations reflected in the forward-looking
statements in this Annual Report are reasonable, we cannot guarantee future events, results, performance, or achievements. A number of important factors could cause actual
results to differ materially from those indicated by the forward-looking statements in this Annual Report, including, without limitation, those factors described in Item 1A,
“Risk Factors” of Part I of this Annual Report, Item 7, “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” of Part II of this Annual
Report, and elsewhere in the Company’s filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”). Some of the key factors that could cause actual results to differ
from our expectations include the following:

« anoverall decline in the health of the economy, the hard surface flooring industry, consumer confidence and discretionary spending, and the housing market,
including as a result of rising inflation or interest rates;

»  our failure to successfully manage the challenges that our planned new store growth poses or the impact of unexpected difficulties or higher costs during our
expansion;

*  our inability to enter into leases for additional stores on acceptable terms or renew or replace our current store leases;
»  our failure to successfully anticipate and manage trends, consumer preferences, and demand;

*  our inability to successfully manage increased competition;

*  our inability to manage our inventory, including the impact of inventory obsolescence, shrinkage, and damage;

* any disruption in our distribution capabilities, supply chain, and our related planning and control processes, including carrier capacity constraints, port congestion,
transportation costs, and other supply chain costs or product shortages;

* any increases in wholesale prices of products, materials, and transportation costs beyond our control, including increases in costs due to inflation;
» the resignation, incapacitation, or death of any key personnel, including our executive officers;

*  our inability to attract, hire, train, and retain highly qualified managers and staft;

*  the impact of any labor activities;

*  our dependence on foreign imports for the products we sell, including risks associated with obtaining products from abroad;

*  geopolitical risks, such as the conflict in the Middle East, the ongoing war in Ukraine, and U.S. policies related to global trade and tariffs, such as import
restrictions under the Uyghur Forced Labor Prevention Act, which impact our ability to import from foreign suppliers or raise our costs;

*  our ability to manage our comparable store sales growth;

* any failure by any of our suppliers to supply us with quality products on attractive terms and prices;

* any failure by our suppliers to adhere to the quality standards that we set for our products;

*  our inability to locate sufficient suitable natural products, particularly products made of more exotic species or unique stone;

» the effects of weather conditions, natural disasters, or other unexpected events, including public health crises that may disrupt our operations;
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*  our inability to maintain sufficient levels of cash flow or liquidity to fund our expanding business and service our existing indebtedness;

* any allegations, investigations, lawsuits, or violations of laws and regulations applicable to us, our products or our suppliers;

*  our inability to adequately protect the privacy and security of information related to our customers, us, our associates, our suppliers, and other third parties;
*  any material disruption in our information systems, including our website;

* new or changing laws or regulations, including tax laws and trade policies and regulations;

« any failure to protect our intellectual property rights or disputes regarding our intellectual property or the intellectual property of third parties;

« the impact of any future strategic transactions;

+  restrictions imposed by our indebtedness on our current and future operations, including risks related to our variable rate debt; and

*  our ability to manage risks related to corporate social responsibility.

Because forward-looking statements are inherently subject to risks and uncertainties, some of which cannot be predicted or quantified, you should not rely on these
forward-looking statements as predictions of future events. The forward-looking statements contained in this Annual Report speak only as of the date hereof. New risks and
uncertainties arise over time, and it is not possible for us to predict those events or how they may affect us. If a change to the events and circumstances reflected in our forward-
looking statements occurs, our business, financial condition, and operating results may vary materially from those expressed in our forward-looking statements. Except as
required by applicable law, we do not plan to publicly update or revise any forward-looking statements contained herein, whether as a result of any new information, future
events, or otherwise.

PART I

ITEM 1. BUSINESS.

2 ” <,

Except where the context suggests otherwise, the terms “Floor & Decor Holdings, Inc.,” “Floor & Decor,” the “Company,” “we,” “us,” and “our” refer to Floor &
Decor Holdings, Inc., a Delaware corporation, together with its consolidated subsidiaries.

Our fiscal year is the 52- or 53-week period ending on the Thursday on or preceding December 31. The following discussion contains references to fiscal 2019, fiscal
2020, fiscal 2021, fiscal 2022, fiscal 2023, and fiscal 2024, which represent our fiscal years ended or ending, as applicable, December 26, 2019, December 31, 2020, December
30, 2021, December 29, 2022, December 28, 2023, and December 26, 2024. Fiscal years 2019, 2021, 2022, 2023, and 2024 are 52-week periods, and fiscal 2020 is a 53-week
period.

Our Company

Founded in 2000, Floor & Decor is a high-growth, differentiated, multi-channel specialty retailer of hard surface flooring and related accessories and seller of
commercial surfaces. Floor & Decor Holdings, Inc. was incorporated as a Delaware corporation in October 2010 in connection with the acquisition of Floor and Decor Outlets
of America, Inc. in November 2010 by our previous sponsor owners. As of December 28, 2023, we operated 221 warehouse-format stores and five small design studios across
36 states. We believe that we offer the industry’s broadest in-stock assortment of tile, wood, laminate and vinyl, and natural stone flooring along with decorative and installation
accessories and adjacent categories at everyday low prices positioning us as the one-stop destination for our customers’ entire hard surface flooring needs. We appeal to a
variety of customers, including professional installers and commercial businesses (“Pro”’) and homeowners, which are comprised of do it yourself customers (“DIY”) and buy it
yourself customers who buy the products for professional installation (“BIY”).

Our warehouse-format stores, which average approximately 78,000 square feet, are typically larger than any of our specialty retail flooring competitors’ stores. Other
large format home improvement retailers only allocate a small percentage of their floor space to hard surface flooring and accessories. By carrying a deep level of in-stock hard
surface flooring inventory and wide range of tools and accessories, we seek to offer our customers immediate availability of everything they need to complete their entire
flooring or remodeling project. In addition to our stores, our website FloorandDecor.com showcases our products, offers informational training and design ideas and has our
products available for sale, which a customer can pick up in-store or have delivered. Our ability to purchase directly from manufacturers through our direct sourcing model
enables us to be fast to market with a balanced assortment of best-seller and unique, hard-to-find items that are the latest trend-right products. We believe these factors create a
differentiated value proposition for Floor & Decor and drive customer loyalty with our Pro and homeowner customers in our markets.
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Our Competitive Strengths
We believe our strengths, described below, set us apart from our competitors and are the key drivers of our success.

Unparalleled Customer Value Proposition. Our customer value proposition is a critical driver of our business. The key components include:

» Differentiated Assortment Across a Wide Variety of Hard Surface Flooring Categories. We carry a comprehensive in-stock, trend-right product assortment with on
average approximately 4,500 stock keeping units (“SKUs”) in each store which, based on our market experience, is a far greater in-stock offering than any other
flooring retailer. Additionally, we customize our product assortment at the store level for the local preferences of each market. We work with our suppliers to
quickly introduce new products and styles in our stores. We appeal to a wide range of customers through our “good/better/best” merchandise selection, our broad
range of product styles from classic to modern, and our new trend-right products. We consistently innovate with proprietary brands.

*  Low Prices. We leverage our ability to source directly from manufacturers and quarries to offer our flooring products and related accessories at everyday low
prices throughout the year instead of engaging in frequent promotional activities. We believe this strategy creates trust with our customers because they
consistently receive low prices at Floor & Decor without having to wait for a sale or negotiate to obtain the lowest price.

*  One-Stop Project Destination with Immediate Availability. We carry an extensive range of products, including flooring and decorative accessories, as well as
installation materials and tools, to fulfill a customer’s entire flooring project. In addition, we have adjacent categories such as vanities, bathroom accessories,
shower doors, and custom countertops. Our stores carry a large in-stock assortment and job size quantities to differentiate us from our competitors. When a
product is not available in the store, our four regional distribution centers and neighboring stores can often quickly ship the product to meet a customer’s needs.
Customers also have access to our full catalog of inventory for in-store pick up or delivery through FloorandDecor.com.

Unique and Inspiring Shopping Environment. Our stores are typically designed with warehouse features including high ceilings, clear signage, bright lighting, and
industrial racking and are staffed with knowledgeable store associates. We offer an easy-to-navigate store layout with clear lines of sight and departments organized by our
major product categories and we invest heavily in large, visually inspiring merchandise displays that showcase our assortment as well as marketing throughout our stores to
highlight product features, benefits, and design elements. These features educate and enable customers to visualize how the product would look in their homes or businesses.
The majority of our stores have design centers, with multiple different vignettes that showcase project ideas to further inspire our customers, and we employ experienced
designers in all of our stores to provide free design consulting. Additionally, we provide a robust online experience for potential customers on FloorandDecor.com.

Extensive Service Offerings to Enhance the Pro Customer Experience. We provide an efficient one-stop shopping experience for our Pro customers, offering low prices
on a broad selection of high-quality flooring products, deep inventory levels to support immediate availability of our products, credit offerings, free storage for purchased
inventory, the convenience of early store hours, and separate entrances for merchandise pick-up. We also offer Design Services, which helps our Pro customers serve their
customers. Additionally, each store has a dedicated Pro sales force with technology to service our Pro customer more efficiently. We have a Pro loyalty rewards program, which
provides awards points based on purchases and business-building tools. Rewarding our Pro customers through this program improves their loyalty to Floor & Decor, and by
serving the needs of Pro customers, we drive repeat and high-ticket purchases, customer referrals, and brand awareness from this attractive and loyal customer segment.

Decentralized Culture with an Experienced Store-Level Team and Emphasis on Training. We have a decentralized culture that empowers managers at the store and
regional levels to make key decisions to maximize the customer experience. Our store managers, who carry the title Chief Executive Merchant (“CEM?”), have significant
flexibility to customize product mix, pricing, marketing, merchandising, visual displays and other elements in consultation with their regional leaders. We create or implement
localized assortments, which are not only trend-forward but often create trends in the industry, which we believe differentiates us from our national competitors, which tend to
have standard assortments across markets. Throughout the year, we regularly train all of our employees on a variety of topics, including product knowledge, sales strategies,
leadership and store operations. Our store managers and store department managers are an integral part of our company, and many have years of relevant industry experience in
retail.

Sophisticated, Global Supply Chain. Our merchandising team has developed direct sourcing relationships with manufacturers and quarries in 26 countries. We
currently source our products from more than 240 vendors worldwide and have developed long-term relationships with many of them. We often collaborate with our vendors to
design products for us to address emerging customer preferences that we observe in our stores and markets. We procure the majority of our products directly from
manufacturers, which eliminates additional costs from exporters, importers, wholesalers, and distributors. Direct sourcing is a key competitive advantage, as many of our
specialty retail flooring competitors are too small to have the scale or the resources to work directly with suppliers.
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Highly Experienced Management Team with a Proven Track Record. Led by our Chief Executive Officer, Tom Taylor, our management team brings substantial
expertise from leading retailers and other companies across various core functions, including store operations, merchandising, marketing, real estate, e-commerce, supply chain
management, finance, legal, and information technology. Tom Taylor, who joined us in 2012, spent 23 years at The Home Depot, where he helped expand the store base from
fewer than 15 stores to over 2,000 stores. Our President, Trevor Lang, was promoted to President in November 2022 after serving as the Executive Vice President and Chief
Financial Officer since 2014 and Chief Financial Officer since 2011. He brings more than 25 years of executive leadership experience. In November 2022, Bryan Langley was
promoted to serve as Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer. He joined the Company in 2014, and has served in various positions of increasing responsibility in
corporate strategy, financial planning, and accounting. Our entire management team drives our organization with a focus on strong merchandising, superior customer
experience, expanding our store footprint, and fostering a strong, decentralized culture.

Our Growth Strategy
We expect to drive growth in net sales and profitability through the following strategies:

Open Warehouse-Format Stores in New and Existing Markets. Based on our internal research with respect to housing density, demographic data, competitor
concentration and other variables in both new and existing markets, we believe there is an opportunity to significantly expand our warehouse-format store base by a low- to
mid-teens annual percentage growth rate over the near-to-medium term, reaching at least 500 in the United States within approximately eight years. We plan to target new store
openings in both new and existing, adjacent, and underserved markets. We have a disciplined approach to new store development based on an analytical, research-driven site
selection method and a rigorous real estate approval process. Our new store model targets on average net sales of $14 million to $16 million and four-wall adjusted EBITDA
before pre-opening expenses of $2.5 million to $3.5 million during the first full year of operation, pre-tax payback in approximately two and a half to three and a half years and
cash-on-cash returns of approximately 50% in the third year. Based on challenging macroeconomic conditions, our class of 2022 and class of 2023 new stores are estimated to
be below these targets. Our historical new store performance, the performance of our more mature stores, our disciplined real estate strategy, and the track record of our
management team in successfully opening retail stores support our belief in the significant store expansion opportunity.

Increase Comparable Store Sales. We expect to grow comparable store sales over the long-term by continuing to offer our customers a dynamic and expanding
selection of compelling, value-priced hard surface flooring and accessories while maintaining strong service standards. Because approximately 55% of our stores have been
open for less than five years, we believe they will continue to drive comparable store sales growth as newer stores ramp up to maturity. We believe that we can continue to
enhance our customer experience by focusing on service, optimizing sales and marketing strategies, investing in store staff and infrastructure, remodeling existing stores, and
improving visual merchandising and the overall aesthetic appeal of our stores. We also believe that growing our proprietary credit offering, Pro, Commercial, and design
strategies, further integrating connected customer strategies, and enhancing other key information technology, will contribute to increased comparable store sales. As we
increase awareness of Floor & Decor’s brand, we believe there is a significant opportunity to gain additional market share.

Expand Our “Connected Customer” Experience. Floor & Decor’s online experience allows our customers to explore our product selection and design ideas before and
after visiting our stores and offers the convenience of making online purchases for delivery or pick up in-store. We believe our online platform reflects our brand attributes and
provides a powerful tool to educate, inspire, and engage our consumers. We continuously invest in our connected customer strategies to improve how customers experience our
brand. For example, we regularly enhance our website, which provides our customers with inspirational vignettes, videos, products, a room visualizer, education, and a faster
online shopping experience. Our connected customer sales represented approximately 19% of our total net sales for fiscal 2023. While the hard surface flooring category has a
relatively low penetration of connected customer sales due to the nature of the product, we believe our connected customer presence represents an attractive growth opportunity
to drive consumers to Floor & Decor.

Continue to Invest in the Pro Customer. We believe our differentiated focus on Pro customers has created a competitive advantage for us and will continue to drive net
sales growth. We continue to invest in gaining and retaining Pro customers due to their frequent and high-ticket purchases, loyalty, and propensity to refer other potential
customers. We have made important investments in the Pro services regional team to better recruit and train the Pro services team in each store. We have also invested in
technology to help us further penetrate and grow our Pro business. We continue to invest in refreshing and expanding our services to Pros to better facilitate our growing Pro
business.

Continue to Invest in Design Services. Our Design Services offer a unique experience to large format retail, which leads our customers through a seamless,
inspirational design process to complete their projects. According to our internal research, when a designer is involved, customer satisfaction and average ticket is higher, and
customers are more likely to follow through with a purchase. We invest in recruiting top design talent and provide extensive design-focused training, tools, and technology to
ensure our teams are knowledgeable and prepared to deliver a start-to-finish consultative selling experience.
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Expand Our Sales Growth in Commercial Surfaces. We continue to grow our commercial surfaces business both organically and through acquisitions, applying many
of the same strategies that have allowed us to be successful in selling residential retail hard surface flooring, including high quality, trend-right hard surface flooring sourced at
a low cost directly from the manufacturer. We intend to continue to focus on both organic and inorganic growth to address the entire commercial surfaces market.

Enhance Margins Through Increased Operating Leverage. Operating margin improvement opportunities will include enhanced product sourcing processes and overall
leveraging of our store-level fixed costs, existing infrastructure, supply chain, corporate overhead and other fixed costs resulting from increased sales productivity. We
anticipate that the planned expansion of our store base and growth in comparable store sales will also support increasing economies of scale over the long-term while still
making significant investments in our business.

Our Industry

Floor & Decor operates in the large, growing, and highly fragmented U.S. retail hard surface flooring market and commercial surfaces market. We believe that growth
in the hard surface flooring market will continue to be driven by several home remodeling demand drivers. These include a large supply of aging homes, millennials entering
their household formation years, existing-home sales growth from the low supply of housing inventory, rising home equity values, and the secular shift from carpet to hard
surface flooring. In addition, we believe we have an opportunity to increase our market share as many of our competitors are unable to effectively compete with our
combination of price, service, and broad in-stock assortment. The competitive landscape of the hard surface flooring market includes big-box home improvement centers,
national and regional specialty flooring retailers, independent flooring retailers, and distributors.

We believe we have an opportunity to continue to gain share in the hard surface flooring market with the largest in-stock selection of laminate and vinyl, tile,
installation materials, decorative accessories, wood, and natural stone. Our strong focus on the customer experience drives us to remain innovative and locally relevant while
maintaining low prices and in-stock merchandise in a one-stop shopping destination.

Our Products
Our merchandise is comprised of the following major product categories:
*  Laminate and vinyl: Wood-based laminate flooring, luxury vinyl, and engineered/composite (rigid core) vinyl.
*  Tile: Porcelain and ceramic.
*  Installation materials and tools: Grout, mortar, backer board, tools, adhesives, underlayments, moldings, and stair treads.
e Decorative accessories and wall tile: Glass, natural stone, tile mosaics, decorative tiles, decorative trims, and wall tile.
*  Wood: Solid prefinished hardwood, solid unfinished hardwood, engineered hardwood, bamboo, and wood countertops.
*  Natural stone: Marble, limestone, travertine, slate, ledger, prefabricated countertops, thresholds, and shower benches.

*  Adjacent categories: Vanities, shower doors, bath accessories, faucets, sinks, custom countertops, bathroom mirrors, and bathroom lighting.
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Our fiscal 2023 net sales by major product category are set forth below:
Other (i), 2%
Adjacent Categories, 2% il

Natural Stone, 5%
Wood, 6%

Laminate and Vinyl, 26%

Decorative Accessories
and Wall Tile, 17%

\ Tile, 23%

Installation Materials
and Tools, 19%

(i)  Other includes delivery, sample, and other product revenue and adjustments for deferred revenue, sales returns reserves, and other revenue related adjustments that are not allocated on a
product-level basis. Refer to Note 2, “Revenue” of the notes to our consolidated financial statements included in this Annual Report for more information.

Store Development

Most of our stores are situated in highly visible retail and industrial locations. We have developed a disciplined approach to new store development, based on an
analytical, research-driven method to site selection and a rigorous real estate review and approval process. By focusing on key demographic characteristics for new site
selection, such as aging of homes, length of home ownership and median income, we expect to open new stores with attractive returns. When opening new stores, inventory
orders are placed several months prior to a new store opening. Significant investment is made in building out or constructing the site, hiring and training employees in advance,
and marketing the new store through pre-opening events to draw the flooring industry community together. Each new store is thoughtfully designed with store interiors that
include vignettes and interchangeable displays, racking to access products to allow ease of shopping, and an exterior highlighted by a large, bold Floor & Decor sign.

Connected Customer

We aim to elevate the total customer experience through our website FloorandDecor.com. Enhancements to our connected customer experience are critical to our
increasingly interconnected customers who often perform extensive online research for their project before going to our store. FloorandDecor.com is an important tool for
engaging our homeowner customers throughout their process. Our Pro customers use the website and our Pro app to browse our broad product assortment, to continually
educate themselves on new techniques and trends and to share our virtual catalog and design ideas with their customers and utilize tools such as our calculators to aid with
shopping. We designed the website to be a reflection of our stores and to promote our wide selection of high quality products and low prices. To this end, we believe the website
provides not only the same region-specific product selection that customers can expect in our stores, but also the opportunity to extend our assortment by offering our entire
portfolio of products.

In addition to highlighting our broad product selection, FloorandDecor.com offers a convenient opportunity for customers to purchase products online and pick them
up in our stores. As we continue to grow, we believe connected customer will become an increasingly important part of our strategy.
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Marketing and Advertising

We use a multi-platform approach to increasing Floor & Decor’s brand awareness, while historically maintaining low advertising costs as a percentage of net sales of
approximately 3%. We use traditional advertising media, combined with social media and online marketing, to share the Floor & Decor story with a growing audience. We take
the same customized approach with our marketing as we do with our product selection; each region has a varied media mix based on local trends and what we believe will most
efficiently drive sales. To further enhance our targeting efforts, our store managers have input into their respective stores’ marketing spend.

Sourcing

Floor & Decor has a well-developed and geographically diverse supplier base. Our largest supplier accounted for 13% of our net sales in fiscal 2023, while no other
individual supplier accounted for more than 10% of our net sales. We are focused on bypassing importers, exporters, wholesalers, distributors, and other middlemen in our
supply chain in order to reduce costs and lead time. Our direct sourcing model and the resulting relationships we have developed with our suppliers are distinct competitive
advantages. The cost savings we achieve by directly sourcing our merchandise enable us to offer our customers low prices.

We have established a Global Sourcing and Compliance Department to, among other things, enhance our policies and procedures with respect to addressing
compliance with appropriate regulatory bodies, including compliance with the requirements of the Lacey Act of 1900, the California Air Resources Board, and the
Environmental Protection Agency. This department also addresses compliance with Floor & Decor’s supplier compliance policies, such as specifications and packaging of the
products we purchase. We utilize third-party consultants for audits, testing, and surveillance to ensure product safety and compliance. We have invested in technology and
personnel to collaborate throughout the entire supply chain process. Additionally, our close relationships with suppliers allow us to collaborate with them directly to develop
and quickly introduce innovative and quality products that meet our customers’ evolving tastes and preferences at low prices.

Distribution and Order Fulfillment

Merchandise inventory is our most significant working capital asset and is considered “in-transit” or “available for sale”, based on whether we have physically
received the products at an individual store location or in one of our four distribution centers. In-transit inventory generally varies due to contractual terms, country of origin,
transit times, international holidays, weather patterns and other factors.

We have invested significant resources to develop and enhance our distribution network. We have four distribution centers strategically located across the United
States in port cities near Savannah, Houston, Los Angeles, and Baltimore and a transload facility near Los Angeles. Third-party brokers arrange the shipping of our international
and domestic purchases to our distribution centers and stores and bill us for shipping costs according to the terms of the purchase agreements with our suppliers. All of our
distribution centers are Company-operated facilities, and we have implemented a warehouse management and transportation management system tailored to our unique needs
across all distribution centers. We believe this system helps service levels, reduces shrinkage and damage, helps us better manage our inventory, and allows us to better
implement our connected customer initiatives. We plan to continue to seek further opportunities to enhance our distribution capabilities and align them with our strategic
growth initiatives.

Management Information Systems

Technology plays a crucial role in the continued growth and success of our business. We have sought to integrate technology into all facets of our business, including
supply chain, merchandising, store operations, point-of-sale, e-commerce, finance, accounting, and human resources. The integration of technology allows us to analyze the
business in real time and react accordingly. Our inventory management system is our primary tool for forecasting and placing orders and managing in-stock inventory. The
data-driven platform includes sophisticated forecasting tools based on historical trends in sales, inventory levels and vendor lead times at the store and distribution center level
by SKU, allowing us to support store managers in their regional merchandising efforts. We rely on the forecasting accuracy of our system to maintain the in-stock, job-lot
quantities that our customers rely on.
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Competition

The retail hard surface flooring market is highly fragmented and competitive. We face significant competition from large home improvement centers, national and
regional specialty flooring chains, and independent flooring retailers. Some of our competitors are organizations that are larger, better capitalized, have existed longer, have
product offerings that extend beyond hard surface flooring and related accessories, and have a more established market presence with substantially greater resources than we
have. In addition, while the hard surface flooring category has a relatively low threat of new internet-only entrants due to the nature of the product, the growth opportunities
presented by e-commerce could outweigh these challenges and result in increased competition in this portion of our connected customer strategy. Further, because the barriers
to entry into the hard surface flooring industry are relatively low, manufacturers and suppliers of flooring and related products, including those whose products we currently
sell, could enter the market and start directly competing with us.

We believe the key competitive factors in the retail hard surface flooring industry include localized product assortment, product innovation, in-store availability of
products in job-lot quantities, product sourcing, product presentation, customer service, store management, store location, and low prices. We believe that we compete favorably
with respect to each of these factors by providing a highly diverse selection of products to our customers, at an attractive value, in appealing and convenient retail stores.

Human Capital

We have built a strong team of employees to support our continued success. Each of our stores is led by a CEM and is supported by an operations manager, product
category department managers, a design team, a Pro sales and support team, and a number of additional associates. Outside of our stores, we have employees dedicated to
corporate, store support, infrastructure, e-commerce, call center and similar functions as well as support for our distribution centers and sourcing office. We dedicate significant
resources to training our employees as they are key to our success. Our Chief Human Resources Officer, supported by the entire executive team, is responsible for developing
and executing our human capital strategy. This includes the attraction, development, engagement, safety, and retention of talent and the design of associate compensation and
benefits programs.

As of December 28, 2023, we had 12,783 employees, 9,857 of whom were full-time. Of the total employees, 10,889 work in our stores, 1,423 work in corporate, store
support, customer care or similar functions, 459 work in distribution centers, and 12 work in our Asia sourcing office in Shanghai, China.

Currently none of our associates are represented by a union (for more information, refer to Item 1A “Risk Factors” of Part I of this Annual Report).
We look at a variety of measures and objectives related to the attraction, development, engagement, safety, and retention of our employees, including:

*  Store Staffing. In order to provide the level of customer service that we expect, it is important that we adequately staff our stores with trained employees. As of
December 28, 2023, the majority of our stores were staffed at a level that we deem appropriate.

»  Training. Training associates is also important to ensuring appropriate levels of customer service. We have a Learning Department, and in 2023, associates
engaged in approximately 275,000 hours of training.

»  Internal Advancement Opportunities. Our growth opportunities are a critical way to attract and retain employees, and we encourage a promote-from-within
environment when internal resources permit. In 2023, approximately 1,550 employees were promoted to more senior positions.

e Culture. We are mindful of the benefits of diversity and associate engagement in all aspects of the employment cycle as they are key to our culture and long-term
success. We seek to build a diverse and inclusive workplace where we can leverage our collective talents, striving to ensure that all associates are treated with
dignity and respect.

*  Safety. Maintaining a safe shopping environment is very important to us. Our Safety & Loss Prevention team works closely with our Store Operations team on
safety training and initiatives.

*  Rewards. We reward our associates for their hard work on behalf of Floor & Decor and provide a variety of incentives to allow associates to share in the
Company’s success, including (i) incentive compensation plans for all associates, (ii) a 401(k) plan with Company-sponsored match, (iii) health care benefits for
full-time associates, (iv) an employee stock purchase plan that facilitates purchases of Company stock at a discount by eligible associates, and (v) other benefits
such as an employee assistance program.
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Government Regulation

We are subject to extensive and varied federal, state and local laws and regulations that impact us, our operations, properties, and suppliers, including those relating to
employment, the environment, protection of natural resources, import and export, advertising, labeling, public health and safety, product safety, zoning, and fire codes. We
operate our business in accordance with standards and procedures designed to comply with applicable laws and regulations. Compliance with these laws and regulations has not
historically had a material effect on our capital expenditures, earnings, competitive position, financial condition, or operating results; however, the effect of compliance in the
future cannot be predicted.

Trademarks and other Intellectual Property

As of February 22, 2024, we have 68 registered marks and several pending trademark applications in the United States. We regard our intellectual property, including
our over 50 proprietary brands, as having significant value, and our brand is an important factor in the marketing of our products. Accordingly, we have taken, and continue to
take, appropriate steps to protect our intellectual property.

Seasonality

Historically, our business has had very little seasonality. Our specialty hard surface flooring and decorative home product offering makes us less susceptible to holiday
shopping seasonal patterns compared to other retailers.

Available Information

We maintain a website at www. FloorandDecor.com. The information on or available through our website is not, and should not be considered, a part of this Annual
Report. You may access our annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K and amendments to those reports, as well as other
reports relating to us that are filed with, or furnished to, the SEC free of charge on our website as soon as reasonably practicable after such material is electronically filed with,
or furnished to, the SEC.
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ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS.

You should carefully consider the risks described below, together with all of the other information included in this Annual Report, including our consolidated financial
statements and the related notes thereto, before making an investment decision. The risks and uncertainties set out below are not the only risks we face. Additional risks and
uncertainties not currently known to us or that we currently deem to be immaterial also may materially and adversely affect our business, financial condition, and operating
results. If any of the following events occur, our business, financial condition, and operating results could be materially and adversely affected. In that case, the trading price of
our common stock could decline, and you may lose all or part of your investment.

Risks Related to Our Business
Declines in certain economic conditions, which impact consumer discretionary spending, could adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Consumer discretionary spending affects our sales and is impacted by factors outside of our control, including general economic and political conditions, interest rates,
the residential housing market, unemployment rates and wage levels, inflation, disposable income levels, consumer confidence, recession fears, energy costs, consumer credit
availability and terms, consumer debt levels, salaries and wage rates, geopolitical events and uncertainty. Declines in the level of consumer confidence and spending and rising
interest rates have adversely affected, and could continue to adversely affect, consumer spending habits and consumer discretionary spending, which have resulted in, and may
continue to result in, reduced demand for our products.

The hard surface flooring industry is highly dependent on existing home sales because homeowners often replace flooring before selling a home or shortly after
purchasing a home and, to a lesser extent, new home construction. In response to increasing inflation, the U.S. Federal Reserve began to raise interest rates in March 2022 and
continued to do so through July 2023, contributing to negative existing home sales for over two years. We believe such inflationary pressure has impacted consumer behavior
during 2023, particularly in the U.S. housing market and as a result of elevated mortgage rates and higher home prices. Rising interest rates and any such shift in consumer
behavior may adversely affect the demand for existing homes, remodeling, and new home construction. In addition, existing home sales, remodeling, and new home
construction depend on a number of other factors that are beyond our control, including inflation, tax policy, trade policy, employment levels, consumer confidence, credit
availability, real estate prices, home-price appreciation, existing home sales, demographic trends, weather conditions, natural disasters, geopolitical or public safety conditions
and general economic conditions. In particular: interest rates and inflation could continue to rise or remain at high levels, undermining consumer confidence and eroding
discretionary income; home-price appreciation could slow or turn negative; and regions where we have stores could be impacted by hurricane, fire, or other natural disasters
(including those due to the effects of climate change such as increased storm severity, drought, wildfires, and potential flooding due to rising sea levels and storm surges).

We believe any one or a combination of these factors has resulted, and could continue to result in, decreased demand for our products, reduced spending on
homebuilding or remodeling of existing homes or caused purchases of new and existing homes to decline. While the vast majority of our net sales are derived from home
remodeling activity as opposed to new home construction, the decrease in these areas has adversely affected and could continue to adversely affect our business, financial
condition, and operating results.

If we fail to successfully manage the challenges that our planned new store growth poses or encounter unexpected difficulties or higher costs during our expansion, our
operating results and future growth opportunities could be adversely affected.

We have 221 warehouse-format stores and five small-format standalone design studios located throughout the United States as of December 28, 2023. We plan to
continue opening new stores for the next several years. This growth strategy and the investment associated with the development of each new store may cause our operating
results to fluctuate and be unpredictable or decrease our profits. We cannot ensure that store locations will be available to us, or that they will be available on terms acceptable
to us. If additional retail store locations are unavailable on acceptable terms, we may not be able to carry out a significant part of our growth strategy or our new stores’
profitability may be lower. Certain of our new store openings are expected to be smaller stores in smaller markets. We have limited experience executing this strategy, and we
cannot guarantee that we will be successful in this strategy. Our future operating results and ability to grow will depend on various other factors, including our ability to:
successfully select new markets and store locations; attract, train and retain highly qualified managers and staff; maintain our reputation of providing quality, safe and
compliant products; and manage store opening costs, including rising construction costs and costs due to delays in obtaining necessary permits and completing construction.
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In addition, stores opened in new markets have had, and many continue to have, higher construction, occupancy and operating costs than stores opened in the past, and
such stores may have lower profitability than stores opened in the past. In addition, laws or regulations in these new markets may make opening new stores more difficult or
cause unexpected delays. For example, we have experienced unexpected delays in opening new stores due to delays in obtaining necessary construction and occupancy permits,
which have resulted in higher costs than previously anticipated. As we continue to open new stores, the ultimate cost of future store openings could continue to rise significantly
due to construction-related or other reasons, including construction and other delays and cost overruns, such as shortages of materials, shortages of skilled labor or work
stoppages, unforeseen construction, scheduling, engineering, environmental or geological problems, governmental or permitting delays, weather interference, fires or other
casualty losses and unanticipated cost increases. We cannot guarantee that any project will be completed on time, and delays in store openings have had, and may continue to
have, a negative impact on our business and operating results. In addition, consumers in new markets may be less familiar with our brand, and we may need to increase brand
awareness in such markets through additional investments in advertising or high cost locations with more prominent visibility.

As a result of these factors and other factors that may be outside of our control, newly opened stores may not succeed or may reach profitability at all, or may be
slower to reach profitability than we expect. Future markets and newly opened stores may not be successful and, even if they are successful, our comparable store sales may not
increase at historical rates or may decrease. To the extent that we are not able to overcome these various challenges, our operating results and future growth opportunities could
be adversely affected. Furthermore, we may incur costs associated with the closure of underperforming stores, and such store closures may adversely impact our revenues.

If we are unable to enter into leases for additional stores on acceptable terms or renew or replace our current store leases, or if one or more of our current leases is
terminated prior to expiration of its stated term and we cannot find suitable alternate locations, our growth and profitability could be adversely affected.

We currently lease the majority of our store locations and our store support center. Our growth strategy largely depends on our ability to identify and open future store
locations, which can be difficult because our warehouse-format stores in major metropolitan markets generally require at least 60,000 square feet of floor space. Our ability to
negotiate acceptable lease terms for these store locations, to re-negotiate acceptable terms on expiring leases or to negotiate acceptable terms for suitable alternate locations
depends on conditions in the real estate market, competition for desirable properties, our relationships with current and prospective landlords, and on other factors that are not
within our control. We also intend to purchase the real property for a small number of new locations, and such strategy may not be successful. Any or all of these factors and
conditions could adversely affect our growth and profitability.

Any failure by us to successfully anticipate trends may lead to loss of consumer acceptance of our products, resulting in reduced net sales.

Each of our stores is stocked with a localized product mix based on consumer demands in a particular market. Our success depends on our ability to anticipate and
respond to changing trends and consumer demands in these markets in a timely manner. Our ability to accurately forecast demand for our products could be affected by many
factors. If we fail to identify and respond to emerging trends, consumer acceptance of our merchandise and our image with current or potential customers may be harmed,
which could reduce our net sales. Additionally, if we misjudge market trends, we may significantly overstock unpopular products, incur excess inventory costs and be forced to
reduce the sales price of such products or incur inventory write-downs, which would adversely affect our operating results. Conversely, shortages of products that prove popular
could also reduce our net sales through missed sales and a loss of customer loyalty.

Increased competition could cause price declines, decrease demand for our products and decrease our market share.

We operate in the hard surface flooring industry, which is highly fragmented and competitive. We face competition from large home improvement centers, national and
regional specialty flooring chains, independent flooring retailers, and internet-based companies. Among other things, we compete on the basis of breadth of product assortment,
low prices, in-store availability of job-lot quantities, as well as the quality of our products and customer service. As we expand into new and unfamiliar markets, we may
experience different competitive conditions than in the past.

Some of our competitors are organizations that are larger, better capitalized, have existed longer, have product offerings that extend beyond hard surface flooring and
related accessories and have a more established market presence with substantially greater financial, marketing, delivery, customer loyalty, personnel and other resources than
we have. Competitors may forecast market developments more accurately than we do, offer similar products at a lower cost, have better delivery offerings, or adapt more
quickly to new trends and technologies or evolving customer requirements than we do. Further, because the barriers to entry into the hard surface flooring industry are
relatively low, manufacturers and suppliers of flooring and related products, including those whose products we currently sell, could enter the market and start directly
competing with us. Intense competitive pressures from any of our present or future competitors could cause price declines, decrease demand for our products and decrease our
market share. Also, if we continue to grow and become more well-known, other companies may change their strategies to present new competitive challenges.
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All of these factors may harm us and adversely affect our net sales, market share, and operating results.
Our operating results may be adversely affected if we do not successfully manage our inventory.

We currently maintain a high level of inventory in order to have a broad assortment of products across a wide variety of hard surface flooring categories in job-lot
quantities, with inventory per warehouse-format store consisting of on average approximately 4,500 SKUs and approximately $3.0 million of inventory at cost as of
December 28, 2023. We also carry an additional $507.8 million of inventory outside our stores, primarily at our distribution centers, as of the end of fiscal 2023. The investment
associated with this high level of inventory is substantial, and as we continue to broaden our supplier base we increase the number of SKUs and investments associated with
inventory. If we fail to adequately project the amount or mix of our inventory, we may miss sales opportunities or have to take unanticipated markdowns or hold additional
clearance events to dispose of excess inventory, which will adversely affect our operating results.

In the past, we have incurred costs associated with inventory markdowns and obsolescence. Due to the likelihood that we will continue to incur such costs in the
future, we generally include an allowance for such costs in our projections. However, the costs that we actually incur may be substantially higher than our estimate and
adversely affect our operating results.

Any disruption in our distribution capabilities, supply chain or our related planning and control processes may adversely affect our business, financial condition, and
operating resullts.

Our success is highly dependent on our planning and distribution infrastructure, which includes the ordering, transportation, and distribution of products to our stores
and the ability of suppliers to meet distribution requirements. We need to continue to identify and improve our processes and supply chain and that our distribution
infrastructure and supply chain keep pace with our anticipated growth and increased number of stores. The cost of these enhanced processes could be significant and any failure
to maintain, grow, or improve them could adversely affect our business, financial condition, and operating results. Due to our rapid expansion, we continue to add distribution
centers as needed to support our operations. Increasing the size of our distribution centers and adding additional distribution centers may decrease the efficiency of our
distribution costs.

If we are not able to manage our distribution centers successfully, it could adversely affect our business, financial condition, and operating results. As we continue to
add distribution centers, we may incur unexpected costs, and our ability to distribute our products may be adversely affected. Any disruption in the transition to and from or
operation of our distribution centers could have an adverse impact on our business, financial condition, and operating results.

A disruption within our logistics or supply chain network could adversely affect our ability to deliver inventory in a timely manner, which could impair our ability to
meet customer demand for products and result in lost sales, increased supply chain costs, or damage to our reputation. In recent years, global ports, trade lanes, and U.S. ports
have been impacted by capacity constraints, port congestion and delays, periodic labor disputes, security issues, weather-related events, and natural disasters. Disruptions to our
supply chain due to any of the factors listed above could negatively impact our financial performance or financial condition.

In addition, our success is also dependent on our ability to provide timely delivery to our customers. Our business could also be adversely affected if fuel prices
increase or there are delays in product shipments due to freight difficulties, inclement weather, strikes by our associates or associates of third parties involved in our supply
chain, or other difficulties. If we are unable to deliver products to our customers on a timely basis, they may decide to purchase products from our competitors instead of from
us, which would adversely affect our business, financial condition, and operating results.

Our operating results may be adversely affected by increases in wholesale prices of products, materials and transportation costs beyond our control, including increases in
costs due to inflation.

Our operating results may be affected by the wholesale prices of hard surface flooring products, setting and installation materials, and the related accessories that we
sell. These prices may increase based on a number of factors beyond our control, including the price of raw materials used in the manufacture of hard surface flooring,
transportation costs, energy costs, changes in supply and demand, concerns about inflation, general economic conditions, labor costs, competition, import duties, tariffs,
currency exchange rates, government regulation, the impact of natural disasters (including those due to the effects of climate change), duty and other import costs. A material
component of the cost of our product includes transportation costs to move the product from the manufacturer to our stores, and there have been recent capacity constraints.
These costs could increase and have a material impact on inventory and cost of sales. We may not be able to adjust the prices of our products, especially in the short-term, to
recover these cost increases, and a continual rise in such costs could adversely affect consumer spending and demand for our products, which could adversely affect our
business, financial condition, and operating results.
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QOur success depends substantially upon the continued retention of our key personnel, including our executive officers.

We believe that our success has depended and continues to depend to a significant extent on the efforts and abilities of our key personnel, including our executive
officers, and the loss of the services of one or more of our executive officers could have a material adverse effect on us and would be potentially disruptive to our business until
such time as a suitable replacement is hired. For example, in August 2023, Brian Robbins, who initially joined the Company in 2013 and served as our Executive Vice
President, Business Development Strategy since 2018, indicated his intent to leave the company effective March 1, 2024. In addition, effective as of November 2022, we
promoted Trevor Lang, previously our Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer, as our new President, and Bryan Langley, previously our Senior Vice President,
Finance, as our new Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer. Although these transitions have been smooth, any future changes to our key personnel, including our
executive officers, or our failure to engage in effective succession planning may be disruptive to our business, including by distracting management from our core business and
effective employee productivity. Further, we may have difficulty identifying, attracting and integrating new executives to replace any losses of our existing executive officers,
all of which could adversely affect our business, financial condition, and operating results.

Our success depends upon our ability to attract, hire, train, and retain highly qualified managers and staff.

Our success depends in part on our ability to attract, hire, train and retain qualified managers and staff. Purchasing hard surface flooring is an infrequent event for
consumers, and the typical consumer in these groups has limited knowledge of the range, characteristics and suitability of the products available before starting the purchasing
process. Therefore, consumers in the hard surface flooring market expect to have sales associates serving them who are knowledgeable about the entire assortment of products
offered by the retailer and the process of choosing and installing hard surface flooring.

Each of our stores is managed by a store manager who has the flexibility (with the support of regional managers) to use his or her knowledge of local market dynamics
to customize each store in a way that is most likely to increase net sales and profitability. Our store managers are also expected to anticipate, gauge and quickly respond to
changing consumer demands in these markets. Further, it generally takes a substantial amount of time for our store managers to develop the entrepreneurial skills that we expect
them to have in order to make our stores successful.

Any failure by us to attract, hire, train, and retain highly qualified managers and staff could adversely affect our operating results and future growth opportunities, and
any increased labor costs due to competition, increased minimum wage (including various federal, state, and local actions to increase minimum wages), associate benefit costs,
unionization activity, or other factors would adversely impact our operating expenses.

Labor activities could cause labor relations difficulties for us.

Currently none of our associates are represented by a union; however, our associates have the right at any time to form or affiliate with a union, and in 2023, certain of
our subsidiary’s associates attempted to form a union in a small location operated by that subsidiary. Although such unionization attempt was unsuccessful, as we continue to
grow, enter different regions and operate distribution centers, unions may continue to attempt to organize all or part of our associate base at certain stores or distribution centers
within certain regions. We cannot predict the adverse effects that any future organizational activities will have on us. If we were to become subject to work stoppages, we could
experience disruption in our operations and increases in our labor costs, either of which could adversely affect our business, financial condition, and operating results.

We procure the majority of our products from suppliers located outside of the United States, and as a result, we are subject to risks associated with obtaining products from
abroad that could adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations.

We procure the majority of our products from suppliers located outside of the United States. As a result, we are subject to risks associated with obtaining products from
abroad, including the imposition of new or different duties (including antidumping and countervailing duties), tariffs, taxes and/or other charges on exports or imports,
including as a result of errors in the classification of products upon entry or changes in the interpretation or application of rates or regulations relating to the import or export of
our products; political unrest, acts of war, terrorism and economic instability resulting in the disruption of trade from foreign countries where our products originate; disruption
due to the public health crises; currency exchange fluctuations; the imposition of new or more stringent laws and regulations, including those relating to environmental, health
and safety matters and climate change issues, labor conditions, quality and safety standards, trade restrictions, and restrictions on funds transfers; the risk that one or more of
our suppliers will not adhere to applicable legal requirements, including fair labor standards, the prohibition on child labor, environmental, product safety or manufacturing
safety standards, anti-bribery and anti-kickback laws such as the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act (the “FCPA”) and sourcing laws such as the Lacey Act; disruptions or delays in
production, shipments, delivery or processing through ports of entry (including those resulting from strikes, lockouts, work-stoppages or slowdowns, or other forms of labor
unrest).
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Additionally, approximately 25% of the products we sold in fiscal 2023 were produced in China. The Chinese government has in the past imposed restrictions on
manufacturing facilities, including a shut-down of transportation of materials and power plants to reduce air pollution. If, in the future, restrictions are imposed that include our
operations, our suppliers’ ability to supply current or new orders would be significantly impacted. These and other factors beyond our control could disrupt the ability of our
suppliers to ship certain products to us cost-effectively or at all, expose us to significant operational and legal risk and negatively affect our reputation, any of which could
adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Rising geopolitical tensions and U.S. policies related to global trade and tariffs, including with respect to antidumping and countervailing duties, could adversely affect our
business, financial condition and results of operations.

The current domestic and international political environment, including existing and potential changes to U.S. policies related to global trade and tariffs, have resulted
in uncertainty surrounding the future state of the global economy. In particular, the ongoing trade dispute between the U.S. and China has resulted in the U.S. imposing tariffs of
25% on the vast majority of the products we import from China. Approximately 25% of the products we sold in fiscal 2023 were produced in China. Any further expansion in
the types or levels of tariffs implemented on China or other countries has the potential to negatively impact our business, financial condition and results of operations.
Additionally, there is a risk that the U.S. tariffs on imports are met with tariffs on U.S. produced exports and that a further trade conflict could ensue, which has the potential to
significantly impact global trade and economic conditions, including the imposition of new measures with little notice. Potential costs and any attendant impact on pricing
arising from these tariffs and any further expansion in the types or levels of tariffs implemented could require us to modify our current business practices and could adversely
affect our business, financial condition, and results of operations.

In addition, the U.S. government has imposed import restrictions under the withhold release orders for goods from the Xinjiang Uyghur Autonomous Region and
under the Uyghur Forced Labor Prevention Act, which effectively prohibits imports of any goods made either wholly or in part in Xinjiang, which may induce greater supply
chain compliance costs and delays to us and to our suppliers. The law prohibits “the importation of goods made with forced labor” unless U.S. Customs and Border Protection
determines, based on “clear and convincing evidence” that the goods in question were not produced “wholly or in part by forced labor” and submits a report to the U.S.
Congress setting out its findings. While we do not believe that our suppliers source materials from Xinjiang for the products they sell to us, certain of our products, including
luxury vinyl plank, have been subject to detentions and inquires. While such detentions and inquiries have not had a material impact on our business as of December 28, 2023,
continued detentions, withhold release orders, inquiries, or other policy developments could result in shortages, delays, and/or price increases that could disrupt our own supply
chain or cause our suppliers to renegotiate existing arrangements with us or fail to perform on such obligations. While we have developed multiple supply sources in a variety
of countries and believe our vendor compliance program reflects our commitment to a supply chain free of forced labor, we could still be adversely affected by increases in our
costs, negative publicity related to the industry, or other adverse consequences to our business.

Rising geopolitical tensions also could adversely affect our business, financial condition, and results of operations. In particular, in recent years, tensions between
mainland China and Taiwan have further escalated, with China accelerating the development of military capabilities in order to “reunite Taiwan by force.” In case of a military
conflict between China and Taiwan, our ability to import products from China could be limited. Similarly, the ongoing war between Russia and Ukraine could escalate and
impact our ability to import products from Europe, including due to further increases in energy costs, and attacks on shipping in the Red Sea could increase our supply chain
costs.

Our comparable store sales have become negative, and in the future our comparable store growth may be less than we expect, which has had and may continue to have a
negative impact on our net sales, business, financial condition, and operating results.

Our comparable store sales decreased 7.1% for the fiscal year ended December 28, 2023 compared to an increase of 9.2% for the fiscal year ended December 29,
2022, primarily due to decreased consumer demand for the products we sell. This decrease in comparable store sales has had a negative impact on our net sales for the fiscal
year ended December 28, 2023, and while future net sales growth will depend substantially on our plans for new store openings, our comparable store sales growth is a
significant driver of our net sales, profitability, cash flow, and overall business results. Because numerous factors affect our comparable store sales growth, it is possible that we
will not achieve our targeted comparable store sales growth or that the change in comparable store sales could continue to be negative. If this trend continues, it is likely that
overall net sales growth would be adversely affected, which could have a negative impact on our business, financial condition, and operating results.
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We depend on a number of suppliers, and any failure by any of them to supply us with quality products on attractive terms and prices may adversely affect our business,
financial condition, and operating results.

We depend on our suppliers to deliver quality products to us on a timely basis at attractive prices. Additionally, we source the products that we sell from over 240
domestic and international suppliers. Although we purchase from a diverse supplier base, purchases from our largest supplier, which has substantial operations in China,
accounted for approximately 13% of our net sales in fiscal 2023. No other singular vendor supplied products representing more than 10% of net sales in fiscal 2023. If we are
unable to acquire desired merchandise in sufficient quantities on terms acceptable to us, or if we experience a change in business relationship with any of our major suppliers, it
could impair our relationship with our customers, impair our ability to attract new customers, reduce our competitiveness, and adversely affect our business, financial condition,
and operating results.

Additionally, we provide certain of our suppliers access to supply chain financing arrangements with financial institutions with whom we have relationships. The terms
of such supply chain financing arrangements could be modified or canceled by such financial institutions at any time. If such programs are modified or cancelled, our suppliers
may not be able to obtain alternate financing at all or on acceptable terms. If our suppliers experience difficulty obtaining financing, it may result in delays or non-delivery of
shipments of our products or require us to pay our suppliers more quickly, which would have a negative impact on our liquidity.

The failure of our suppliers to adhere to the quality standards that we set for our products could lead to investigations, litigation, write-offs, recalls or boycotts of our
products, which could damage our reputation and our brand, increase our costs, and otherwise adversely affect our business.

We do not control the operations of our suppliers. Although we conduct initial due diligence prior to engaging our suppliers and require our suppliers to certify
compliance with applicable laws and regulations, we cannot guarantee that our suppliers will comply with applicable laws and regulations or operate in a legal, ethical and
responsible manner. Violation of applicable laws and regulations by our suppliers or their failure to operate in a legal, ethical or responsible manner, could expose us to legal
risks, cause us to violate laws and regulations and reduce demand for our products if, as a result of such violation or failure, we attract negative publicity. In addition, the failure
of our suppliers to adhere to the quality standards that we set for our products could lead to government investigations, litigation, write-offs and recalls, which could damage
our reputation and our brand, increase our costs, and otherwise adversely affect our business.

Our ability to offer compelling products, particularly products made of more exotic species or unique stone, depends on the continued availability of sufficient suitable
natural products.

Our business strategy depends on offering a wide assortment of compelling products to our customers. We sell, among other things, flooring made from various wood
species and natural stone from quarries throughout the world. Our ability to obtain an adequate volume and quality of hard-to-find products depends on our suppliers’ ability to
furnish those products, which, in turn, could be affected by many things, including events such as forest fires, insect infestation, tree diseases, prolonged drought, other adverse
weather and climate conditions and the exhaustion of stone quarries. Government regulations relating to forest management practices also affect our suppliers’ ability to harvest
or export timber and other products, and changes to regulations and forest management policies, or the implementation of new laws or regulations, could impede their ability to
do so. If our suppliers cannot deliver sufficient products, and we cannot find replacement suppliers, our net sales and operating results may be adversely affected.

The effects of weather conditions, natural disasters or other unexpected events, including public health crises, may disrupt our operations and have a negative impact on
our business.

The effects of global climate change, such as extreme weather conditions and natural disasters occurring more frequently or with more intense effects, or the
occurrence of unexpected events including wildfires, tornadoes, hurricanes, earthquakes, floods, tsunamis and other severe hazards could adversely affect our business,
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows. Extreme weather, natural disasters, power outages or other unexpected events could disrupt our operations by
impacting the availability and cost of materials needed for manufacturing, causing physical damage and partial or complete closure of our manufacturing sites, retail stores,
store support center or distribution centers, loss of human capital, temporary or long-term disruption in the manufacturing and supply of products and services and disruption in
our ability to deliver products and services to customers. These events and disruptions could also adversely affect our customers’ and suppliers’ financial condition or ability to
operate, resulting in reduced customer demand, delays in payments received or supply chain disruptions, including adverse effects on our ability to stock our stores and deliver
products to our customers. Further, these events and disruptions could increase insurance and other operating costs, including impacting our decisions regarding construction of
new facilities to select areas less prone to climate change risks and natural disasters, which could result in indirect financial risks passed through the supply chain or other price
modifications to our products and services.
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Public health crises in the U.S. or countries where we source or sell products could adversely affect our operations and financial performance. Further, any national,
state or local government mandates or other orders taken to minimize the spread of a public health crisis could restrict our ability to conduct business as usual, as well as the
business activities of our key customers and suppliers, including the potential for labor shortages. In particular, the ultimate extent of the impact of any epidemic, pandemic or
other public health crisis on our business, financial condition and results of operations will depend on future developments which are highly uncertain and cannot be predicted,
including new information that may emerge concerning the duration and severity of such public health crisis, actions taken to contain or prevent their further spread and the
pace of global economic recovery following containment of the spread.

We will require significant capital to fund our expanding business and service our existing indebtedness, and such capital may not be available to us on satisfactory terms
or at all. If we are unable to maintain sufficient levels of cash flow or if we are unable to meet our debt service obligations under our Credit Facilities, we may not meet our
growth expectations or we may require additional financing, which could adversely affect our financial health and impose covenants that limit our business activities.

We plan to continue investing for growth, including opening new stores, remodeling existing stores, adding staff, adding distribution center capacity, upgrading our
information technology systems and other infrastructure, and strategic acquisitions. These investments will require significant capital, which we plan on funding with cash flow
from operations and borrowings under our $800.0 million asset based revolving credit facility (the “ABL Facility”).

If our business does not generate sufficient cash flow from operations to fund these activities or if these investments do not yield cash flows in line with past
performance or our expectations, we may need additional equity or debt financing. If such financing is not available to us, or is not available on satisfactory terms, our ability to
operate and expand our business or respond to competitive pressures would be curtailed, and we may need to delay, limit or eliminate planned store openings or operations or
other elements of our growth strategy. If we raise additional capital by issuing equity securities or securities convertible into equity securities, our stockholders’ ownership
would be diluted.

Further, our ability to pay interest on and principal of our debt obligations under our ABL Facility and our $202.4 million senior secured term loan facility (as amended
to date, the “Term Loan Facility” and together with the ABL Facility, our “Credit Facilities””) will primarily depend upon our future operating performance. As a result,
prevailing economic conditions and financial, business and other factors, many of which are beyond our control, will affect our ability to make these payments.

If we do not generate sufficient cash flow from operations to satisfy our debt service obligations, we may have to undertake alternative financing plans, such as
refinancing or restructuring our indebtedness, selling our assets, reducing or delaying capital investments, or seeking to raise additional capital. Our ability to restructure or
refinance our debt will depend on the condition of the capital markets and our financial condition at such time. From time to time, capital markets may experience periods of
disruption and instability. See “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—Liquidity and Capital Resources” for more
information.

Our business exposes us to personal injury, product liability and warranty claims and r
our brand and adversely affect our business, financial condition, and operating results.

lated governmental investigations, which could result in negative publicity, harm

Our stores and distribution centers are warehouse environments that involve the operation of forklifts and other machinery and the storage and movement of heavy
merchandise, all of which are activities that have the inherent danger of injury or death to associates or customers despite safety precautions, training and compliance with
federal, state and local health and safety regulations. While we have insurance coverage in place in addition to policies and procedures designed to minimize these risks, we
may nonetheless be unable to avoid material liabilities for an injury or death arising out of these activities.

In addition, we face an inherent risk of exposure to product liability or warranty claims or governmental investigations in the event that the use of our products is
alleged to have resulted in economic loss, personal injury or property damage or violated environmental or other laws. If any of our products proves to be defective or otherwise
in violation of applicable law, we may be required to recall such products and be subject to legal action.

In connection with the installation or delivery of our products, customers may engage third parties associated with us to enter their homes. In addition, we are piloting
in-home design services. While we believe we have appropriate indemnification and risk management practices in place, such activities involve liability and reputational risk,
which could adversely affect us.
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Unfavorable allegations, government investigations and legal actions surrounding our products and us could harm our reputation, impair our ability to grow or sustain
our business, and adversely affect our business, financial condition, and operating results.

We rely on our reputation for offering great value, superior service and a broad assortment of high-quality, safe products. If we become subject to unfavorable
allegations, government investigations or legal actions involving our products or us, such circumstances could harm our reputation and our brand and adversely affect our
business, financial condition, and operating results. If this negative impact is significant, our ability to grow or sustain our business could be jeopardized.

Negative publicity surrounding product matters, including publicity about other retailers, may harm our reputation and affect the demand for our products. In addition,
if more stringent laws or regulations are adopted in the future, we may have difficulty complying with the new requirements imposed by such laws and regulations, and in turn,
our business, financial condition, and operating results could be adversely affected. Moreover, regardless of whether any such changes are adopted, we may become subject to
claims or governmental investigations alleging violations of applicable laws and regulations. Any such matter may subject us to fines, penalties, injunctions, litigation and/or
potential criminal violations. Any one of these results could negatively affect our business, financial condition, and operating results and impair our ability to grow or sustain
our business.

If we violate or are alleged to have violated environ tal, health and safety laws and regulations, we could incur significant costs and other negative effects that could
reduce demand for our products and adversely affect our business, financial condition, and operating results.

Certain portions of our operations are subject to laws and regulations governing the environmental protection of natural resources and health and safety, including
formaldehyde emissions and the use, storage, generation, transportation, treatment, emission, release and disposal of certain hazardous materials and wastes.

We operate our business in accordance with standards and procedures designed to comply with the applicable laws and regulations in these areas and work closely
with our suppliers in order to comply with such laws and regulations. If we violate or are alleged to have violated these laws, we could incur significant costs, be liable for
damages, experience delays in shipments of our products, be subject to fines, penalties, criminal charges or other legal risks, or suffer reputational harm, any of which could
reduce demand for our products and adversely affect our business, financial condition, and operating results.

We, and our officers and directors and stockholders, have been and may be the target of securities-related litigation in the future, which could divert our management’s
attention and resources, result in substantial costs, and have an adverse effect on our business, results of operations, financial condition and stock price.

We have been and may in the future be the target of securities-related litigation in the future. Litigation can divert our management’s attention and resources, result in
substantial costs, and have an adverse effect on our business, results of operations, financial condition and stock price. We maintain director and officer insurance to mitigate
the risks associated with potential claims; however, we are responsible for meeting certain deductibles under such policies, and, in any event, we cannot assure you that the
insurance coverage will adequately protect us from all claims made against us. There also may be adverse publicity associated with litigation that could negatively affect
customer perception of our business and materially damage our reputation and the value of our brand despite the fact that we deny the allegations or are ultimately found not
liable.

Federal, state or local laws and regulations, or our failure to comply with such laws and regulations, could increase our expenses, restrict our ability to conduct our
business and expose us to legal risks.

We are subject to a wide range of general and industry-specific laws and regulations imposed by federal, state and local authorities in the countries in which we
operate including those related to customs, foreign operations (such as the FCPA), truth-in-advertising, consumer protection (such as the California Consumer Privacy Act and
Telephone Consumer Protection Act), privacy, product safety (such as the Formaldehyde Standards in Composite Wood Products Act), the environment (such as the Lacey Act),
import and export controls (such as the Uyghur Forced Labor Prevention Act), intellectual property infringement, zoning and occupancy matters as well as the operation of
retail stores and distribution facilities. In addition, various federal and state laws govern our relationship with, and other matters pertaining to, our associates, including wage
and hour laws, laws governing independent contractor classifications, requirements to provide meal and rest periods or other benefits, family leave mandates, requirements
regarding working conditions and accommodations to certain associates, citizenship or work authorization and related requirements, insurance and workers’ compensation rules
and anti-discrimination laws. In recent years, we and other parties in the flooring industry have been or currently are parties to litigation involving claims that allege violations
of these laws, including claims related to product safety and patent claims. In addition, there has been an increase in the number of wage and hour class action claims that allege
misclassification of overtime eligible workers and/or failure to pay overtime-eligible workers for all hours worked, particularly in the retail industry, and we are currently
defending one such claim. Although we believe that we have complied with these laws and regulations, there is nevertheless a risk that we will become subject to additional
claims that allege we have failed to do so. Any claim that alleges a failure by us to comply with any of these laws and regulations may subject us to fines, penalties, injunctions,
litigation and/or potential criminal violations, which could adversely affect our reputation, business, financial condition, and operating results.
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Certain of our products may require us to spend significant time and resources in order to comply with applicable advertising, labeling, importation, exportation,
environmental, health and safety laws and regulations because if we violate these laws or regulations, we could experience delays in shipments of our goods, be subject to fines
or penalties, be liable for costs and damages or suffer reputational harm, any of which could reduce demand for our merchandise and adversely affect our business, financial
condition, and operating results. Any changes to these laws or regulations or any new laws or regulations that are passed or go into effect may make it more difficult for us to
operate our business and in turn adversely affect our operating results.

If our efforts to protect the privacy and security of information related to our customers, us, our associates, our suppliers and other third parties are not successful, we
could become subject to litigation, investigations, liability and negative publicity that could significantly harm our reputation and relationships with our customers and
adversely affect our business, financial condition, and operating results.

Our business, like that of most retailers, involves the receipt, storage and transmission of customers’ personal information, consumer preferences and payment card
data, as well as other confidential information related to us, our associates, our suppliers and other third parties, some of which is entrusted to third-party service providers and
vendors that provide us with technology, systems and services that we use in connection with the receipt, storage and transmission of such information. Techniques used for
cyber-attacks designed to gain unauthorized access to these types of sensitive information by breaching or sabotaging critical systems of organizations, including those that use
artificial intelligence, are constantly evolving and generally are difficult to recognize and react to effectively. We may be unable to anticipate these techniques or to implement
adequate preventive or reactive security measures. High profile electronic security breaches leading to unauthorized release of sensitive information have occurred in recent
years with increasing frequency at a number of major U.S. companies, including several large retailers, notwithstanding widespread recognition of the cyber-attack threat and
improved data protection methods.

Despite our security measures and those of third parties with whom we do business, our respective systems and facilities may be vulnerable to criminal cyber-attacks
or security incidents due to malfeasance, intentional or inadvertent security breaches by associates, or other vulnerabilities such as defects in design or manufacture.
Unauthorized parties may also attempt to gain access to our systems or facilities through fraud, trickery or other forms of deception targeted at our customers, associates,
suppliers and service providers. Any such, incidents could compromise our networks and the information stored there could be accessed, misused, publicly disclosed, lost or
stolen.

An actual or anticipated attack or security incident may cause us to incur additional costs, including costs related to diverting or deploying personnel, implementing
preventative measures, training associates and engaging third-party experts and consultants. Further, any security breach incident could expose us to risks of data loss,
regulatory and law enforcement investigations, litigation and liability and could seriously disrupt our operations and any resulting negative publicity could significantly harm
our reputation and relationships with our customers and adversely affect our business, financial condition, and operating results.

A material disruption in our information systems, including our website, could adversely affect our business or operating results and lead to reduced net sales and
reputational damage.

We rely on our information systems to process transactions, summarize our results of operations and manage our business. In particular, our website is an important
part of our integrated connected customer strategy and customers use these systems as information sources on the range of products available to them and as a way to order our
products. In addition, we rely on our enterprise resource planning, telecommunications, inventory tracking , billing and other information systems to track transactions, billing,
payments, inventory and a variety of day-to-day business decisions. Therefore, the reliability and capacity of our information systems is critical to our operations and the
implementation of our growth initiatives. However, our information systems are subject to damage or interruption from planned upgrades in technology interfaces, power
outages, computer and telecommunications failures, computer viruses, cyber-attacks or other security breaches and catastrophic events such as fires, floods, earthquakes,
tornadoes, hurricanes, acts of war or terrorism and usage errors by our associates. If our information systems are damaged or cease to function properly, we may have to make a
significant investment to fix or replace them, and we may suffer losses of critical data and/or interruptions or delays in our operations.

In addition, to keep pace with changing technology, we must continuously implement new information technology systems as well as enhance our existing systems,
including a significant upgrade planned to begin in 2024. Moreover, the successful execution of some of our growth strategies, in particular the expansion of our connected
customer and online capabilities, is dependent on the design and implementation of new systems and technologies and/or the enhancement of existing systems. If we encounter
implementation or usage problems with these new systems or other related systems and infrastructure, or if the systems do not operate as intended, do not give rise to
anticipated benefits, or fail to integrate properly with our other systems or software platforms, then the costs of such new information technology systems may be more than we
anticipate. Any material disruption in our information systems, or delays or difficulties in implementing or integrating new systems or enhancing or expanding current systems,
could have an adverse effect on our business and our operating results and could lead to reduced net sales and reputational damage.
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We may not be able to successfully maintain effective internal controls over financial reporting, which could have an adverse effect on our business and stock price.

We are required to comply with the SEC’s rules implementing Sections 302 and 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, which require management to certify financial and
other information in our quarterly and annual reports as well as our fiscal year-end assessment of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting. When
evaluating our internal control over financial reporting, we may identify material weaknesses that we may not be able to remediate in time to meet the applicable deadline
imposed upon us for compliance with the requirements of Sections 302 and 404. If we are unable to maintain effective internal control over financial reporting or disclosure
controls and procedures, our ability to record, process and report financial information accurately, and to prepare financial statements within required time periods, could be
adversely affected. This could subject us to litigation or investigations requiring management resources and payment of legal and other expenses and could result in negative
publicity, harm to our reputation and adversely affect our business, financial condition, and operating results or adversely affect the market price of our common stock.

Changes in tax laws, trade policies and regulations or in our operations and newly enacted laws or regulations may impact our effective tax rate or may adversely affect
our business, financial condition, and operating results.

Changes in tax laws in any of the multiple jurisdictions in which we operate, or adverse outcomes from tax audits that we may be subject to in any of the jurisdictions
in which we operate, could result in an unfavorable change in our effective tax rate, which could adversely affect our business, financial condition, and operating results.
Developments in tax policy or trade relations could also have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and liquidity.

We are subject to payments-related risks that could increase our operating costs, expose us to fraud, subject us to potential liability and potentially disrupt our business.

We accept payments using a variety of methods, including credit cards, debit cards, gift cards and physical bank checks. These payment options subject us to many
compliance requirements, including, but not limited to, compliance with the Payment Card Industry Data Security Standards, which represents a common set of industry tools
and measurements to help ensure the safe handling of sensitive information, and compliance with contracts with our third-party processors. These payment options also subject
us to potential fraud by criminal elements seeking to discover and take advantage of security vulnerabilities that may exist in some of these payment systems. We rely on third
parties to provide payment processing services, including the processing of credit cards, debit cards and gift cards, and it could disrupt or harm our business if these companies
become unwilling or unable to provide these services to us, experience a data security incident or fail to comply with applicable rules and industry standards. We are also
subject to payment card association operating rules, including data security rules, certification requirements, and rules governing electronic funds transfers, which could change
or be reinterpreted to make it difficult or impossible for us to comply. If we fail to comply with these rules or requirements, or if our data security systems or payment card
information of our customers are breached or compromised, there is the potential that parties could seek damages from us, we may be liable for card issuing banks’ costs,
subject to fines and higher transaction fees, and lose our ability to accept credit cards and debit card payments from our customers, process electronic funds transfers, or
facilitate other types of online payments, we could lose the confidence of customers and our business, financial condition, and operating results could be adversely affected.

Our intellectual property rights are valuable, and any failure to protect them could reduce the value of our products and brand and harm our business.

We regard our intellectual property as having significant value, and our brand is an important factor in the marketing of our products. However, we cannot assure you
that the steps we take to protect our trademarks or intellectual property will be adequate to prevent others from copying or using our trademarks or intellectual property without
authorization, which could harm the value of our brand.

We may be involved in disputes from time to time relating to our intellectual property and the intellectual property of third parties.

We are and may continue to become parties to disputes from time to time over rights and obligations concerning intellectual property, and we may not prevail in these
disputes. Third parties have and may raise future claims against us alleging infringement or violation of the intellectual property of such third-party. Even if we prevail in such
disputes, the costs we incur in defending such dispute may be material and costly. Some third-party intellectual property rights may be extremely broad, and it may not be
possible for us to conduct our operations in such a way as to avoid violating any such intellectual property rights. Any such intellectual property claim could subject us to costly
litigation and impose a significant strain on our financial resources and management personnel regardless of whether such claim has merit.
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We may, from time to time, consider or engage in strategic transactions. Any such strategic transactions would involve risks, which could have an adverse impact on our
financial condition and results of operation, and we may not realize the anticipated benefits of these transactions.

From time to time, we consider strategic transactions, including mergers, acquisitions, investments, alliances, and other growth and market expansion strategies, with
the expectation that these transactions will result in increases in sales, cost savings, synergies and various other benefits. Assessing the viability and realizing the benefits of
these transactions is subject to significant uncertainty. Additionally, in connection with evaluating potential strategic transactions and assets, we may incur significant expenses
for the evaluation and due diligence investigation and negotiation of any potential transaction. Although we have limited experience acquiring companies, any future
acquisitions may not be successful. If we complete an acquisition, we would need to successfully integrate the target company’s products, services, associates and systems into
our business operations. Integration can be a complex and time-consuming process, and if any such integration is not fully successful or is delayed for a material period of time,
we may not achieve the anticipated synergies or benefits of the acquisition. Furthermore, even if a target company is successfully integrated, an acquisition may fail to further
our business strategy as anticipated, expose us to increased competition or challenges with respect to our products or services, and expose us to additional liabilities. Any
impairment of goodwill or other intangible assets acquired in a strategic transaction may reduce our earnings.

We face risks related to our indebtedness.

As of December 28, 2023, the principal amount of our total indebtedness was $202.4 million related to our indebtedness outstanding under the Term Loan Facility. In
addition, as of December 28, 2023, we had the ability to access $718.4 million of unused borrowings available under the ABL Facility without violating any covenants
thereunder and had $35.3 million in outstanding letters of credit thereunder.

Our indebtedness, combined with our lease and other financial obligations and contractual commitments, could adversely affect our business, financial condition, and
operating results by:

*  making it more difficult for us to satisfy our obligations with respect to our indebtedness, including restrictive covenants and borrowing conditions, which may
lead to an event of default under the agreements governing our debt;

*  requiring us to dedicate a substantial portion of our cash flow from operations to payments on our indebtedness, thereby reducing the availability of cash flows to
fund current operations and future growth;

*  exposing us to the risk of increased interest rates as our borrowings under our Credit Facilities are at variable rates;
»  restricting us from making strategic acquisitions;

*  requiring us to comply with financial and operational covenants, restricting us, among other things, from placing liens on our assets, making investments,
incurring debt, making payments to our equity or debt holders and engaging in transactions with affiliates;

»  limiting our ability to borrow additional amounts for working capital, capital expenditures, debt service requirements, execution of our business and growth
strategies or other purposes; and

»  limiting our ability to obtain credit from our suppliers and other financing sources on acceptable terms or at all.

The credit agreements governing our Credit Facilities contain, and any future indebtedness would likely contain, a number of customary financial, operative and other
restrictive covenants that impose significant operating and financial restrictions, including restrictions on our subsidiaries paying dividends and otherwise transferring cash or
other assets to us except in certain limited circumstances, and other restrictions on our ability to engage in acts that may be in our best long-term interests. Such financial,
operative and other restrictive covenants in our current debt agreements and any future financing agreements could adversely affect our ability to finance future operations or
capital needs or to engage in other business activities.

We may also incur substantial additional indebtedness in the future, subject to the restrictions contained in our Credit Facilities. If such new indebtedness is in an
amount greater than our current debt levels, the related risks that we now face could intensify. However, we cannot give assurance that any such additional financing will be
available to us on acceptable terms or at all.
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Our variable rate debt subjects us to interest rate risk that could cause our debt service obligations to increase significantly.

The debt we incurred under our Credit Facilities are at variable rates of interest, which exposes us to interest rate risk. Reference rates used to determine the applicable
interest rates for our variable rate debt began to rise significantly in the second half of fiscal 2022 and into fiscal 2023. If interest rates continue to increase, the debt service
obligations on such indebtedness will continue to increase even if the amount borrowed remains the same, and our net income and cash flows, including cash available for
servicing our indebtedness, will correspondingly decrease. In addition, as a result of our latest amendments to the Credit Facilities certain of the variable rate indebtedness
extended to us uses the Secured Overnight Financing Rate (“SOFR”) as a benchmark for establishing the interest rate. While we believe we will continue to use SOFR, other
factors may impact SOFR including factors causing SOFR to cease to exist, new methods of calculating SOFR to be established, or the use of an alternative reference rate(s).
These consequences are not entirely predictable and could have an adverse impact on our financing costs, returns on investments, valuation of derivative contracts and our
financial results.

Our fixed lease obligations could adversely affect our operating results.

We are required to use a significant portion of cash generated by our operations to satisfy our fixed lease obligations, which could adversely affect our ability to obtain
future financing to support our growth or other operational investments. We will require substantial cash flows from operations to make our payments under our operating
leases, all of which provide for periodic increases in rent. If we are not able to make payments under our operating leases, this could trigger defaults under other leases or, in
certain circumstances, under our Credit Facilities, which could cause the counterparties or lenders under those agreements to accelerate the obligations due thereunder.

Risks Related to the Ownership of Our Common Stock
Our stock price may continue to be volatile, which could result in a significant loss or impairment of your investment.

On May 2, 2017, we completed our initial public offering (the “IPO”). Since the IPO, the price of our common stock as reported by The New York Stock Exchange
(“NYSE”) has ranged from a low closing sales price of $24.00 on December 24, 2018 to a high closing sales price of $143.31 on November 4, 2021. In addition, the trading
price of our common stock has been, and may continue to be, subject to wide price fluctuations in response to various factors, many of which are beyond our control, including
those described above in “Risks Related to Our Business.”

Stock markets have experienced price and volume fluctuations that have affected and continue to affect the market prices of equity securities of many companies,
including ours. These fluctuations sometimes have been unrelated or disproportionate to the operating performance of those companies. These and other factors may cause the
market price and demand for our common stock to fluctuate substantially, which may limit or prevent investors from readily selling their shares of common stock and may
otherwise adversely affect the price or liquidity of our common stock.

We do not currently expect to pay any cash dividends.

The continued operation and growth of our business will require substantial funding. Accordingly, we do not currently expect to pay any cash dividends on shares of
our common stock. Any determination to pay dividends in the future will be at the discretion of our Board of Directors (the “Board”) and will depend upon our operating
results, financial condition, contractual restrictions, restrictive covenants under our Credit Facilities, restrictions imposed by applicable law and other factors our Board deems
relevant. Accordingly, realization of a gain on your investment in our common stock will depend on the appreciation of the price of our common stock, which may never occur.
See Item 5, “Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities” for more information.

Anti-takeover provisions could impair a takeover attempt and adversely affect existing stockholders and the market value of our common stock.

Certain provisions of our certificate of incorporation and bylaws and applicable provisions of Delaware law may have the effect of rendering more difficult, delaying
or preventing an acquisition of the Company, even when this would be in the best interest of our stockholders. These provisions include:

* the sole power of a majority of our Board to fix the number of directors;

* the requirement that certain advance notice procedures be followed for our stockholders to submit nominations of candidates for election to our Board and to bring
other proposals before a meeting of the stockholders;

* the power of our Board to amend our bylaws without stockholder approval;

* the sole power of the Board to fill any vacancy on the Board, whether such vacancy occurs as a result of an increase in the number of directors or otherwise;
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« the ability of a majority of our Board (even if less than a quorum) to designate one or more series of preferred stock and issue shares of preferred stock without
stockholder approval;

* arequirement that, to the fullest extent permitted by law, certain proceedings against or involving us or our directors, officers, or associates be brought exclusively
in the Court of Chancery in the State of Delaware; and

« the lack of cumulative voting rights for the holders of our Class A common stock with respect to the election of directors.
Further, Delaware law imposes conditions on the voting of “control shares” and on certain business combination transactions with “interested stockholders.”

Our issuance of shares of preferred stock could delay or prevent a change of control of the Company. Our Board has the authority to cause us to issue, without any
further vote or action by our stockholders, shares of preferred stock, par value $0.001 per share, in one or more series, to designate the number of shares constituting any series
and to fix the rights, preferences, privileges, and restrictions thereof, including dividend rights, voting rights, rights and terms of redemption, redemption price or prices, and
liquidation preferences of such series. The issuance of shares of preferred stock may have the effect of delaying, deferring, or preventing a change in control of our Company
without further action by our stockholders, even where stockholders are offered a premium for their shares.

In addition, the issuance of shares of preferred stock with voting rights may adversely affect the voting power of the holders of our other classes of voting stock either
by diluting the voting power of our other classes of voting stock if they vote together as a single class, or by giving the holders of any such preferred stock the right to block an
action on which they have a separate class vote even if the action were approved by the holders of our other classes of voting stock.

These provisions could delay or prevent hostile takeovers and changes in control or changes in our management. Also, the issuance of shares of preferred stock with
dividend or conversion rights, liquidation preferences, or other economic terms favorable to the holders of preferred stock could adversely affect the market price for our
common stock by making an investment in our common stock less attractive. Any provision of our certificate of incorporation or bylaws or Delaware law that has the effect of
delaying or deterring a change in control or otherwise makes an investment in our common stock less attractive could limit the opportunity for our stockholders to receive a
premium for their shares of our common stock and could also affect the price that some investors are willing to pay for our common stock.

General Risk Factors

We are engaged in various legal actions, claims and proceedings arising in the ordinary course of business and, while we cannot predict the outcomes of such proceedings
and other contingencies with certainty, this litigation and any potential future litigation could have an adverse impact on us.

We are engaged in various legal actions, claims and proceedings arising in the ordinary course of business, including claims related to breach of contract, product
liabilities, intellectual property matters and employment related matters resulting from our business activities. As with most actions such as these, an estimate of any possible
and/or ultimate liability cannot always be determined. Regardless of the outcome, litigation can have an adverse impact on us because of defense and settlement costs, diversion
of management resources, and other factors. Additionally, we cannot guarantee that we will not become engaged in additional legal actions, claims, proceedings or
governmental investigations in the future. Any such action could result in negative publicity, harm to our reputation and adversely affect our business, financial condition, and
operating results.

We are subject to risks related to corporate social responsibility.

Our business could face public scrutiny related to environmental, social and governance (“ESG”) activities. We risk damage to our brand and reputation if we fail to
act responsibly in a number of areas, such as diversity and inclusion, environmental stewardship, corporate governance and transparency. We will incur additional expenses as
we continue to execute our ESG framework in the coming years. Adverse incidents could impact the value of our brand, the cost of our operations and relationships with
investors, all of which could adversely affect our business and operating results.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS.

None.
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ITEM 1C. CYBERSECURITY.

Cybersecurity is the responsibility of our information security team, overseen by our Chief Information Security Officer (“CISO”). Our CISO reports to our Chief
Information Officer (“C10”), and our CISO and CIO regularly meet with our General Counsel to review cybersecurity risks, and evaluate their nature and severity, as well as
identify potential mitigation and assess the impact of those mitigations on residual risk. Our enterprise risk management program also considers cybersecurity risks, including
risks associated with our use of third-party service providers, alongside other company risks, and as part of these efforts, we gather information necessary to identify
cybersecurity risks, and evaluate their nature and severity, as well as identify mitigations and assess the impact of those mitigations on residual risk. Our enterprise risk
management program is reviewed annually with our Board.

We maintain a system of data protection and cybersecurity resources, technology, and processes. We regularly evaluate new and emerging risks and ever-changing
legal and compliance requirements. We make strategic investments to address these risks and compliance requirements. We also perform annual and ongoing cybersecurity
awareness training, which includes regular simulated phishing campaigns. We also run tabletop exercises, including with external advisors, to simulate a response to a
cybersecurity incident, and we use the findings to improve our practices, procedures, incident response plan, and technologies. In the event of a cybersecurity incident, we have
worked with external advisors to develop an incident response plan, which provides guidelines for responding to an incident and facilitates coordination across multiple parts of
our Company. The incident response plan includes a procedure for notifying the CISO and CIO of any incident as well as a procedure for reporting any material incidents to the
Audit Committee of our Board (the “Audit Committee”) and Board as appropriate.

Our cybersecurity risk program is structured according to the National Institute of Standards and Technology (NIST) Cybersecurity framework. This program includes
multiple layers of security controls, including network segmentation, security monitoring, endpoint protect, and identity and access management. The Company annually
engages third parties to advise and assess the Company’s cybersecurity programs, including to engage in penetration testing. The results of these assessments are reported to the
CISO and our CISO, in consultation with our CIO and General Counsel, use the findings to improve our practices, procedures, and technologies. A summary of our
cybersecurity efforts is reported to the Audit Committee, which has primary responsibility for oversight and review of guidelines and policies with respect to risk assessment
and risk management, including cybersecurity, regularly. Our Board also receives periodic updates relating to information security and cybersecurity risks. We have also
purchased cyber liability insurance to provide a level of financial protection against the potential losses arising from a cybersecurity incident. However, there is no assurance
that our insurance coverage will cover or be sufficient to cover all losses or claims that may result from a cybersecurity incident.

Our CISO, CIO, and General Counsel collectively have over 35 years of business experience managing risks from cybersecurity threats and developing and
implementing cybersecurity policies and procedures. Team members who support our information security program have relevant educational and industry experience.

In the last three fiscal years, we have not experienced a material information security breach incident and the expenses we have incurred from information security
breach incidents have been immaterial, and we are not aware of any cybersecurity risks that are reasonably likely to materially affect our business. However, future incidents
could have a material impact on our business strategy, results of operations, or financial condition. For additional discussion of the risks posed by cybersecurity threats, see
“Risk Factors— Risks Related to our Business—If our efforts to protect the privacy and security of information related to our customers, us, our associates, our suppliers and
other third parties are not successful, we could become subject to litigation, investigations, liability and negative publicity that could significantly harm our reputation and
relationships with our customers and adversely affect our business, financial condition, and operating results.” and “Risk Factors— Risks Related to our Business—A material
disruption in our information systems, including our website or call center, could adversely affect our business or operating results and lead to reduced net sales and reputational
damage.” in Part 1 of this Annual Report.
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ITEM 2. PROPERTIES.

As of December 28, 2023, we operated 221 U.S. warehouse-format stores located in 36 states as shown in the table below:

State

Number of
Stores

Alabama
Arizona
California
Colorado
Connecticut
Florida
Georgia
Ilinois
Indiana

Iowa

Kansas
Kentucky
Louisiana
Maryland
Massachusetts
Michigan
Minnesota
Missouri
Nebraska
Nevada

New Hampshire
New Jersey
New Mexico
New York
North Carolina
Ohio
Oklahoma
Oregon
Pennsylvania
South Carolina
Tennessee
Texas

Utah

Virginia
Washington
Wisconsin

Total

w
N W W—=5BR WahAR—NDPRWO~O—bh —=DNDWahRARIODBRNDDND—

221

26



Table of Contents

The following table presents the percentage of our owned versus leased facilities in operation at the end of fiscal 2023 and their total square footage:

Total Square
square footage in thousands Owned Leased Footage
Stores 6 % 94 % 17,237
Distribution centers 20 % 80 % 5,680
Offices and other —% 100 % 530
Total 23,447

Stores include our 221 warehouse-format stores and five small-format design studios. Distribution centers include our four distribution centers located in or near
Houston, Savannah, Los Angeles, and Baltimore and our transload facility near Los Angeles. Offices and other includes our headquarters, which we refer to as our store support
center, located in Atlanta, our product review and sample fulfillment center located near Atlanta, and other administrative, sales, and warehousing facilities supporting our
commercial surfaces business. The property tables above exclude locations where we have taken possession of the premises but are not yet operating. See Note 9,
“Commitments and Contingencies” of the notes to our consolidated financial statements included in this Annual Report for additional details related to our leases.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS.

We are engaged in various legal actions, claims and proceedings arising in the ordinary course of business, including claims related to breach of contracts, product
liabilities, intellectual property matters and employment related matters resulting from our business activities. As with most actions such as these, an estimation of any possible
and/or ultimate liability cannot always be determined. Regardless of the outcome, litigation can have an adverse impact on us because of defense and settlement costs, diversion
of management resources, and other factors. See the information disclosed under the “Litigation” caption in Note 9, “Commitments and Contingencies” to our consolidated
financial statements included in this Annual Report for further detail on legal proceedings.

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES.

Not applicable.

PART II

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY
SECURITIES.

Market Information

Our common stock is publicly traded on the NYSE under the symbol “FND.” On February 19, 2024, there were 19 stockholders of record of our Class A common
stock. The actual number of stockholders is greater than the number of record holders stated above, and includes stockholders who are beneficial owners, but whose shares are
held in “street name” by brokers and other nominees. This number of holders of record also does not include stockholders whose shares may be held in trust by other entities.

Dividend Policy

No dividends have been declared or paid on our common stock. We intend to continue to retain all available funds and any future earnings for use in the operation and
growth of our business, and therefore we do not currently expect to pay any cash dividends on our common stock. Any future determination to pay dividends will be at the
discretion of our Board and will depend on then existing conditions, including our operating results, financial condition, contractual restrictions, capital requirements, business
prospects and other factors that our Board may deem relevant.
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Stock Performance Graph

The following graph shows a comparison of cumulative total return to holders of our common stock against the cumulative total return of the S&P 500 Index and the
S&P 500 Home Improvement Retail Index for our fiscal years 2019 through 2023. The comparison of the cumulative total returns for each investment assumes that $100 was
invested in our Class A common stock and the respective indices on December 27, 2018 (the last trading day of fiscal 2018) through December 28, 2023, including
reinvestment of any dividends. Historical share price performance should not be relied upon as an indication of future share price performance.
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S&P 500 Home
Fiscal Year Ended FND S&P 500 Index Improvement Retail Index
December 27, 2018 $100.00 $100.00 $100.00
December 26, 2019 $193.39 $130.18 $129.83
December 31, 2020 $356.98 $150.92 $161.10
December 30, 2021 $499.73 $192.01 $251.16
December 29, 2022 $272.93 $ 154.66 $197.03
December 28, 2023 $437.87 $192.19 $214.71

Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds

During fiscal 2023, the Company did not sell any unregistered equity securities.
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Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

The following table presents the number and average price of the Company’s common shares repurchased in each fiscal month of the fourth quarter of fiscal 2023:

Total Number of

Total Number of
Shares Purchased
as Part of Publicly

Maximum Dollar
Value of Shares
That May Yet Be
Purchased Under

Shares Purchased  Average Price Paid  Announced Plans the Plans or

Period ()] per Share (1) or Programs (1) Programs (1)
September 29 - October 26 $ — N/A N/A
October 27 - November 23 63 84.92 N/A N/A
November 24 - December 28 — — N/A N/A
Total 63 § 84.92 N/A N/A

(1) Under the Floor & Decor Holdings, Inc. 2017 Stock Incentive Plan (the “2017 Plan”), participants may surrender shares as payment of applicable tax withholding on the vesting of restricted

stock awards. Shares so surrendered by participants in the 2017 Plan are repurchased pursuant to the terms of the 2017 Plan and applicable award agreements and not pursuant to any

publicly announced share repurchase programs.

ITEM 6. RESERVED

29



Table of Contents

ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS.

You should read the following discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations together with our consolidated financial statements and the
related notes thereto and other financial information included elsewhere in this filing. This discussion and analysis contains forward-looking statements that involve risks and
uncertainties. Our actual results could differ materially from those anticipated in these forward-looking statements as a result of certain factors, including those discussed in
“Item 1A. Risk Factors.” See the cautionary note regarding forward-looking statements set forth at the beginning of this Annual Report.

Overview

Founded in 2000, Floor & Decor is a high-growth, differentiated, multi-channel specialty retailer of hard surface flooring and related accessories and seller of
commercial surfaces with 221 warehouse-format stores across 36 states as of December 28, 2023. We believe our unique approach to selling hard surface flooring and our
consistent and disciplined culture of innovation and reinvestment create a differentiated business model in the hard surface flooring category. We believe that we offer the
industry’s broadest in-stock assortment of tile, wood, laminate and vinyl, and natural stone flooring along with decorative and installation accessories and adjacent categories at
everyday low prices, positioning us as the one-stop destination for our customers’ entire hard surface flooring needs. We appeal to a variety of customers, including professional
installers and commercial businesses (“Pro”) and homeowners, which are comprised of do it yourself customers (“DIY”) and buy it yourself customers, who buy the products
for professional installation (“BIY”). Our warehouse-format stores, which average approximately 78,000 square feet, carry on average approximately 4,500 flooring and
decorative and installation accessory SKUs, approximately 1.0 million square feet of flooring products, and $3.0 million of inventory at cost as of December 28, 2023. We
believe that our inspiring design centers and creative and informative visual merchandising also greatly enhance our customers’ renovation experience. In addition to our stores,
our website FloorandDecor.com showcases our products.

The following table presents a performance summary of our results of operations for fiscal years 2023 and 2022:

Fiscal Year Ended

dollars in thousands 12/28/2023 12/29/2022

Net sales $ 4413884 $ 4,264,473
Net income $ 245980 $ 298,195
Adjusted EBITDA $ 551,133 § 577,050
Comparable store sales (7.1)% 92 %
Number of warehouse-format stores 221 191

During fiscal 2023, we continued to make key long-term strategic investments, including:
*  opening 31 new warehouse-format stores and closing one warehouse-format store, ending the year with 221 warehouse-format stores and five design studios;

e continuing our strategic expansion into commercial surfaces through our acquisition of Salesmaster, a seller of commercial surfaces that primarily serves end users
and flooring contractors in New York City and certain New England markets (refer to Note 15, “Acquisitions” of the notes to the consolidated financial statements
included in this Annual Report for additional details);

«  focusing on innovative new products and localized assortments, supported by inspirational in-store and online visual merchandising solutions;
* adding more resources dedicated to serving our Pro customers, including hiring professional external sales staff to drive more Pro sales;

*  investing in our Pro, connected customer, in-store designer, customer relationship, and store focused technology; and

*  investing capital to continue enhancing the in-store shopping experience for our customers.

The housing market continued to be impacted by a number of macroeconomic factors during fiscal 2023, including rising interest rates and higher home prices putting
pressure on housing affordability and resulting in declines in existing home sales, inflation, and a shift in consumer spending toward services. We believe these factors directly
contributed to a slowdown in demand for flooring resulting in year-over-year declines in our comparable store sales and net income. We believe that our continued focus on
providing exceptional value to customers through our broad assortment and everyday low price strategy, while remaining disciplined to maintain profitability through cost
control and strategic growth investments, have been instrumental in helping us to navigate this challenging housing market. However, the potential significance and duration of
these macroeconomic difficulties is uncertain, and further pressures on the housing market could have an adverse impact on our business.
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Key Performance Indicators

We consider a variety of performance and financial measures in assessing the performance of our business. The key measures we use to determine how our business is
performing are comparable store sales, the number of new store openings, gross profit and gross margin, operating income, and EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA.

Comparable Store Sales

Our comparable store sales growth is a significant driver of our net sales, profitability, cash flow, and overall business results. We believe that comparable store sales
growth is generated by continued focus on providing a dynamic and expanding product assortment in addition to other merchandising initiatives, quality of customer service,
enhancing sales and marketing strategies, improving visual merchandising and overall aesthetic appeal of our stores and our website, effectively serving our Pro customers,
continued investment in store staff and infrastructure, growing our proprietary credit offering, and further integrating connected customer strategies and other key information
technology enhancements.

Comparable store sales refer to period-over-period comparisons of our net sales among the comparable store base and are based on when the customer obtains control
of the product, which is typically at the time of sale. A store is included in the comparable store sales calculation on the first day of the thirteenth full fiscal month following a
store’s opening, which is when we believe comparability has been achieved. Changes in our comparable store sales between two periods are based on net sales for stores that
were in operation during both of the two periods. Any change in the square footage of an existing comparable store, including for remodels and relocations within the same
primary trade area of the existing store being relocated, does not eliminate that store from inclusion in the calculation of comparable store sales. Stores that are closed for a full
fiscal month or longer are excluded from the comparable store sales calculation for each full fiscal month that they are closed. Since our e-commerce, regional account
manager, and design studio sales are fulfilled by individual stores, they are included in comparable store sales only to the extent the fulfilling store meets the above mentioned
store criteria. Sales through our Spartan Surfaces, LLC. (“Spartan”) subsidiary do not involve our stores and are therefore excluded from the comparable store sales calculation.

Definitions and calculations of comparable store sales differ among companies in the retail industry; therefore, comparable store metrics disclosed by us may not be
comparable to the metrics disclosed by other companies.

We believe that comparable store sales is a useful measure as it allows management, analysts, investors, and other interested parties to evaluate the sales performance
of our retail stores. In addition, comparable store sales highlights our sales and market share growth. Management uses comparable store sales to evaluate the effectiveness of
our selling strategies, to make budgeting decisions, and to compare our performance against that of other peer companies using similar measures.

Various factors affect comparable store sales, including:

* national and regional economic conditions;

« the retail sales environment and other retail trends;

»  the home improvement spending environment;

« the hard surface flooring industry trends;

« the impact of competition;

* changes in our product mix;

* changes in staffing at our stores;

*  cannibalization resulting from the opening of new stores in existing markets;
*  changes in pricing;

»  changes in advertising and other operating costs; and

*  weather conditions.
Number of New Stores

The number and timing of new store openings, and the costs and fixed lease obligations associated with those openings, have had, and are expected to continue to
have, a significant impact on our results of operations. The number of new stores reflects the number of stores opened during a particular reporting period. Before we open new
stores, we incur pre-opening expenses, which are defined below. While net sales at new stores are generally lower than net sales at our stores that have been open for more than
one year, our new stores have historically been profitable in their first year. Our ability to open new, profitable stores is important to our long-term sales and profit growth goals.
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Gross Profit and Gross Margin

Our gross profit is variable in nature and generally follows changes in net sales. Our gross profit and gross margin can also be impacted by changes in our prices, our
merchandising assortment, shrinkage, damage, selling of discontinued products, the cost to transport our products from the manufacturer to our stores, and our distribution
center costs. With respect to our merchandising assortment, certain of our products tend to generate somewhat higher margins than other products within the same product
categories or among different product categories. We have experienced inflation increases in certain of our product categories but historically have been able to source from a
different manufacturer or pass increases on to our consumers. Our gross profit and gross margin, which reflect our net sales and our cost of sales and any changes to the
components thereof, allow us to evaluate our profitability and overall business results.

Gross profit is calculated as net sales less cost of sales. Gross profit as a percentage of net sales is referred to as gross margin. Cost of sales consists of merchandise
costs, as well as freight costs to transport inventory to our distribution centers and stores, and duty and other costs that are incurred to distribute the merchandise to our stores.
Cost of sales also includes shrinkage, damage, warehousing costs, sourcing and compliance costs. We receive cash consideration from certain vendors related to vendor
allowances and volume rebates, which is recorded as a reduction of costs of sales as the inventory is sold or as a reduction of the carrying value of inventory while the inventory
is still on hand. Costs associated with arranging and paying for freight to deliver products to customers is included in cost of sales. The components of our cost of sales may not
be comparable to the components of cost of sales, or similar measures, of other retailers. As a result, data in this filing regarding our gross profit and gross margin may not be
comparable to similar data made available by other retailers.

We believe that gross profit and gross margin are useful measures as they allow management and analysts, investors, and other interested parties to evaluate the cost
and profitability of our products and overall cost of sales, which is our largest expense. Gross profit and gross margin are also important indicators of our ability to grow profits
and leverage our expenses on a growing sales base. Management uses gross profit and gross margin, among other measures, to make decisions related to product, pricing,
supplier, and distribution strategies as well as other areas affecting the products we offer to our customers.

Operating Income, EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA

Operating income, EBITDA, and Adjusted EBITDA are key metrics used by management and our Board to assess our financial performance and enterprise value. We
believe that operating income, EBITDA, and Adjusted EBITDA are useful measures, as they eliminate certain expenses that are not indicative of our core operating
performance and facilitate a comparison of our core operating performance on a consistent basis from period to period. We also use Adjusted EBITDA as a basis to determine
covenant compliance with respect to our Credit Facilities, to supplement GAAP measures of performance to evaluate the effectiveness of our business strategies, to make
budgeting decisions, and to compare our performance against that of other peer companies using similar measures. Operating income, EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA are also
frequently used by analysts, investors and other interested parties as performance measures to evaluate companies in our industry.

EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA are supplemental measures of financial performance that are not required by, or presented in accordance with, GAAP. We define
EBITDA as net income before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization. We define Adjusted EBITDA as net income before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization,
adjusted to eliminate the impact of non-cash stock-based compensation expense and certain items that we do not consider indicative of our core operating performance.

EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA are non-GAAP measures of our financial performance and should not be considered as alternatives to net income as a measure of
financial performance or any other performance measure derived in accordance with GAAP, and they should not be construed as an inference that our future results will be
unaffected by unusual or non-recurring items. Additionally, EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA are not intended to be measures of liquidity or free cash flow for management's
discretionary use. In addition, these non-GAAP measures exclude certain non-recurring and other charges. Each of these non-GAAP measures has its limitations as an
analytical tool, and you should not consider them in isolation or as a substitute for analysis of our results as reported under GAAP. In evaluating EBITDA and Adjusted
EBITDA, you should be aware that in the future we will incur expenses that are the same as or similar to some of the items eliminated in the adjustments made to determine
EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA, such as stock-based compensation expense, distribution center relocation expenses, fair value adjustments related to contingent-earn out
liabilities, and other adjustments. Our presentation of EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA should not be construed to imply that our future results will be unaffected by any such
adjustments. Definitions and calculations of EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA differ among companies in the retail industry, and therefore EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA
disclosed by us may not be comparable to the metrics disclosed by other companies.
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Other Key Financial Definitions
Net Sales

Net sales reflect our sales of merchandise, less discounts and estimated returns and include our in-store sales and e-commerce sales. In certain cases, we arrange and
pay for freight to deliver products to customers and bill the customer for the estimated freight cost, which is also included in net sales. Revenue is recognized when we satisfy
the performance obligations in contracts with our customers, which is typically when the customer obtains control of the underlying inventory.

The retail and commercial sectors in which we operate are cyclical, and consequently our sales are affected by general economic conditions. Purchases of our products
are sensitive to trends in the levels of consumer spending, which are affected by a number of factors such as consumer disposable income, housing market conditions,
unemployment trends, stock market performance, consumer debt levels and consumer credit availability, interest rates and inflation, tax rates and overall consumer confidence
in the economy.

Selling and Store Operating Expenses

Selling and store operating expenses consist primarily of store personnel wages, bonuses and benefits, rent and infrastructure expenses, supplies, depreciation and
amortization, training expenses, and advertising costs. Credit card fees, insurance, personal property taxes, and other miscellaneous operating costs are also included. We expect
that our selling and store operating expenses will increase in future periods with future growth. Selling and store operating expenses include variable as well as fixed
components, which may not directly correlate with net sales. The components of our selling and store operating expenses may not be comparable to the components of similar
measures of other retailers.

General and Administrative Expenses

General and administrative expenses consist primarily of costs incurred outside of our stores and include administrative personnel wages in our store support center
and regional functions, bonuses and benefits, supplies, depreciation and amortization, and store support center expenses. Insurance, legal expenses, information technology
costs, consulting, and other miscellaneous operating costs are also included. We expect that our general and administrative expenses will increase in future periods with future
growth. General and administrative expenses include variable as well as fixed components, which may not directly correlate with net sales. The components of our general and
administrative expenses may not be comparable to the components of similar measures of other retailers.

Pre-opening Expenses

We account for non-capital operating expenditures incurred prior to opening a new store or relocating an existing store as “pre-opening” expenses in our Consolidated
Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income. Our pre-opening expenses begin, on average, three months to one year in advance of a store opening or relocating due to,
among other things, the amount of time it takes to prepare a store for its grand opening. The majority of pre-opening expenses are incurred during the three months before a
store opens. Pre-opening expenses primarily include the following: rent, advertising, training, staff recruiting, utilities, personnel, and equipment rental. A store is considered to
be relocated if it is closed temporarily and re-opened within the same primary trade area.

Segments

We have two operating segments and one reportable segment. For additional segment information, refer to Note 1, “Summary of Significant Accounting Policies” of
the notes to the consolidated financial statements included in this Annual Report.

33



Table of Contents

Results of Operations

The comparison of the fiscal years ended December 29, 2022 and December 30, 2021 can be found in our annual report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
December 29, 2022 (the “2022 Annual Report”) located within Part II, Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.

Results of operations for prior periods should not be considered indicative of future results. For information about the potential impacts that risks, such as declines in
economic conditions that affect the residential housing market and consumer spending for hard surface flooring, interest rates, inflation, global supply chain disruptions, and
geopolitical instability, among others, may have on our results of operations and overall financial performance for future periods, see “Management’s Discussion and Analysis
of Financial Condition and Results of Operations - Overview” and Item 1A., “Risk Factors”.

For the fiscal years ended December 28, 2023 and December 29, 2022

The following tables summarize key components of our results of operations for the periods indicated (certain numbers may not sum due to rounding):

Fiscal Year Ended

12/28/2023 12/29/2022 Increase (Decrease)
dollars in thousands Amount % of Net sales Amount % of Net sales $ %
Net sales $ 4,413,884 100.0% $ 4,264,473 100.0% $ 149,411 3.5%
Cost of sales 2,555,536 57.9 2,536,757 59.5 18,779 0.7 %
Gross profit 1,858,348 42.1 1,727,716 40.5 130,632 7.6 %
Operating expenses:
Selling and store operating 1,239,225 28.1 1,078,466 253 160,759 14.9 %
General and administrative 252,713 5.7 213,848 5.0 38,865 18.2 %
Pre-opening 44,982 1.0 38,642 0.9 6,340 16.4 %
Total operating expenses 1,536,920 34.8 1,330,956 31.2 205,964 15.5%
Operating income 321,428 7.3 396,760 9.3 (75,332) (19.0)%
Interest expense, net 9,897 0.2 11,138 0.3 (1,241) (11.1)%
Income before income taxes 311,531 7.1 385,622 9.0 (74,091) (19.2)%
Income tax expense 65,551 1.5 87,427 2.1 (21,876) (25.0)%
Net income $ 245,980 5.6% $ 298,195 7.0% $ (52,215) (17.5)%
Fiscal Year Ended
12/28/2023 12/29/2022
Comparable store sales 7.1)% 9.2 %
Comparable average ticket 0.2 % 17.0 %
Comparable customer transactions (7.2)% (6.6)%
Number of warehouse-format stores 221 191
Adjusted EBITDA (in thousands) (1) $ 551,133  § 577,050
Adjusted EBITDA (% of net sales) 12.5 % 13.5%

(1) Refer to “Reconciliation of Non-GAAP Measures” further below for reconciliation of Adjusted EBITDA to net income.
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Net Sales

Net sales during fiscal 2023 increased $149.4 million, or 3.5%, compared to fiscal 2022 due to sales from the 31 new warehouse-format stores that we opened during
the year and growth in our commercial business, partially offset by a decrease in comparable store sales of 7.1%. The comparable store sales decline during the period of 7.1%,
or $289.7 million, was primarily due to the 7.2% decrease in comparable customer transactions, which we believe was largely driven by declines in existing home sales. Non-
comparable store sales of $439.1 million during the same period were primarily driven by new stores and revenue from Spartan.

We estimate that retail sales during fiscal 2023 were approximately 55% from homeowners and 45% from Pros compared to approximately 58% from homeowners
and 42% from Pros during fiscal 2022.

Gross Profit and Gross Margin

Gross profit during fiscal 2023 increased $130.6 million, or 7.6%, compared to fiscal 2022. The increase in gross profit was primarily driven by the 3.5% increase in
net sales and an increase in gross margin to 42.1%, up approximately 160 basis points from 40.5% in fiscal 2022. The increase in gross margin was primarily due to a decline in
supply chain costs in 2023.

Selling and Store Operating Expenses

Selling and store operating expenses during fiscal 2023 increased $160.8 million, or 14.9%, compared to fiscal 2022. The increase in selling and store operating
expenses was primarily due to $154.9 million for new stores and $8.9 million at Spartan, partially offset by a decrease of $3.0 million at our comparable stores. As a percentage
of net sales, selling and store operating expenses increased by approximately 280 basis points to 28.1% from 25.3% in fiscal 2022. This increase was primarily attributable to
deleverage from a decrease in comparable store sales and new stores.

General and Administrative Expenses

General and administrative expenses during fiscal 2023 increased $38.9 million, or 18.2%, compared to fiscal 2022. The increase in general and administrative
expenses was primarily comprised of costs to support store growth, including approximately $23.3 million for additional staff and $11.8 million in other administrative costs.
Our general and administrative expenses as a percentage of net sales increased by approximately 70 basis points to 5.7% from 5.0% in fiscal 2022. The increase as a percentage
of net sales was primarily driven by deleverage from a decrease in comparable store sales.

Pre-Opening Expenses

Pre-opening expenses during fiscal 2023 increased $6.3 million, or 16.4%, compared to fiscal 2022. The increase primarily resulted from an increase in the number of
future stores that we were preparing to open and delays in getting our stores open compared to the prior year.

Interest Expense, Net

Net interest expense during fiscal 2023 decreased $1.2 million, or 11.1%, compared to fiscal 2022 due to a decrease in average amounts outstanding under our ABL
Facility, higher interest income from our interest cap derivative contracts, and an increase in interest capitalized, partially offset by interest rate increases on outstanding debt.

Income Tax Expense

The provision for income taxes was $65.6 million in fiscal 2023 compared to $87.4 million in fiscal 2022. The effective tax rate was 21.0% for fiscal 2023 compared
to 22.7% for fiscal 2022. The decrease in the effective tax rate was primarily due to an increase in excess tax benefits related to stock-based compensation awards that was
partially offset by limitations on deductions for compensation to certain employees under Internal Revenue Code Section 162(m).
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Reconciliation of Non-GAAP Financial Measures
EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA

For the periods presented, the following table reconciles EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA to net income, the most directly comparable financial measure calculated and
presented in accordance with GAAP:

Fiscal Year Ended

in thousands 12/28/2023 12/29/2022

Net income $ 245,980 $ 298,195
Depreciation and amortization (a) 199,856 153,446
Interest expense, net 9,897 11,138
Income tax expense 65,551 87,427
EBITDA 521,284 550,206
Stock-based compensation expense (b) 27,240 22,233
Other (c) 2,609 4,611
Adjusted EBITDA $ 551,133 § 577,050

(a) Excludes amortization of deferred financing costs, which is included as part of interest expense, net in the table above.

(b) Non-cash charges related to stock-based compensation programs, which vary from period to period depending on the timing of awards and forfeitures.

(c) Other adjustments include amounts management does not consider indicative of our core operating performance. Amounts for fiscal 2023 relate to changes in the fair value of contingent
earn-out liabilities. Amounts for fiscal 2022 primarily relate to relocation expenses for our Houston distribution center and changes in the fair value of contingent earn-out liabilities.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Liquidity is provided primarily by cash flows from operations and our $800.0 million ABL Facility. Unrestricted liquidity as of December 28, 2023 was $752.8
million, consisting of $34.4 million in cash and cash equivalents and $718.4 million immediately available for borrowing under the ABL Facility without
violating any covenants thereunder. Our liquidity is generally not seasonal, and our uses of cash are primarily tied to when we open stores and make other capital expenditures.

Our primary cash needs are for merchandise inventories, payroll, store rent, and other operating expenses and capital expenditures associated with opening new stores
and remodeling existing stores, as well as information technology, e-commerce, and store support center infrastructure. We also use cash for the payment of taxes and interest
and, as applicable, acquisitions. We expect that cash generated from operations together with cash on hand, the availability of borrowings under our credit facilities, and if
necessary, additional funding through other forms of external financing, will be sufficient to meet liquidity requirements, anticipated capital expenditures, and payments due
under our credit facilities for the next twelve months and the foreseeable future.

Total capital expenditures in fiscal 2024 are planned to be between approximately $400 million to $475 million and are expected to be funded primarily by cash
generated from operations and borrowings under the ABL Facility. Our capital needs may change in the future due to changes in our business, new opportunities that we choose
to pursue, or other factors. We currently expect the following for capital expenditures in fiscal 2024:

*  invest approximately $315 million to $365 million to open 30 to 35 warehouse-format stores, relocate stores, and begin construction on stores opening in fiscal
2025;

*  invest approximately $60 million to $75 million in existing store remodeling projects and our distribution centers; and

*  invest approximately $25 million to $35 million in information technology infrastructure, e-commerce, and other store support center initiatives.
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Cash Flow Analysis

A summary of our operating, investing, and financing activities are shown in the following table:

Fiscal Year Ended

in thousands 12/28/2023 12/29/2022

Net cash provided by operating activities $ 803,589 § 112,450
Net cash used in investing activities (564,966) (455,637)
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities (214,035) 213,537
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents $ 24,588 $ (129,650)

Net Cash Provided By Operating Activities

Cash provided by operating activities consists primarily of (i) net income adjusted for non-cash items, including depreciation and amortization, stock-based
compensation, deferred income taxes, and changes in the fair values of contingent earn-out liabilities and (ii) changes in working capital.

Net cash provided by operating activities was $803.6 million for fiscal 2023 and $112.5 million for fiscal 2022. The increase in net cash provided by operating
activities was primarily driven by a decrease in inventory, an increase in trade accounts payable, an increase in cash earnings after adjusting net income for non-cash items such
as depreciation and amortization, and other working capital items.

Net Cash Used In Investing Activities

Investing activities typically consist primarily of capital expenditures for new store openings and existing store remodels, including leasehold improvements, racking,
fixtures, vignettes, and design centers, and new infrastructure and information systems. Cash payments to acquire businesses are also included in investing activities.

Net cash used in investing activities was $565.0 million for fiscal 2023 and $455.6 million for fiscal 2022. The increase in cash used in investing activities was due to
an increase in capital expenditures and cash paid for the Salesmaster acquisition. The year-over-year growth in capital expenditures was primarily driven by settlements of
outstanding construction payables for recently completed stores and increases in new stores under construction.

Net Cash (Used in) Provided by Financing Activities

Financing activities consist primarily of borrowings and related repayments under our credit agreements, tax payments related to the vesting or exercise of stock-based
compensation awards, proceeds from the exercise of stock options and our employee share purchase program, and payments of contingent earn-out consideration.

Net cash used in financing activities was $214.0 million for fiscal 2023 compared to net cash provided by financing activities of $213.5 million for fiscal 2022. The
increase in net cash used in financing activities was primarily driven by net ABL Facility repayments and an increase in tax payments related to the vesting or exercise of stock-
based compensation awards.

Our Credit Facilities

As of December 28, 2023, total Term Loan Facility debt was $202.4 million, and no amounts were outstanding under our ABL Facility. For additional information
regarding our Term Loan Facility and ABL Facility, including applicable covenants, and other details, please refer to Note 10, “Debt” of the notes to the consolidated financial
statements included in this Annual Report.

Credit Ratings

Our credit ratings are periodically reviewed by rating agencies. In November 2023, Moody’s updated the Company’s outlook from positive to stable. Moody’s issuer
credit rating of Ba3 for the Company remains unchanged. As of December 28, 2023, Standard & Poor's issuer credit rating of BB with a stable outlook for the Company
remains unchanged. These ratings and our current credit condition affect, among other things, our ability to access new capital. Negative changes to these ratings may result in
more stringent covenants and higher interest rates under the terms of any new debt. Our credit ratings could be lowered or rating agencies could issue adverse commentaries in
the future, which could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations, and liquidity. In particular, a weakening of our financial
condition, including an increase in our leverage or decrease in our profitability or cash flows, could adversely affect our ability to obtain necessary funds, result in a credit
rating downgrade or change in outlook, or otherwise increase our cost of borrowing.
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Supply Chain Finance Programs

As part of our ongoing efforts to improve cash flow and liquidity, we facilitate supply chain finance programs through financial intermediaries. Suppliers that
participate in a supply chain finance program extend our payment terms by approximately 40 days on average. Amounts due to financial intermediaries for suppliers that
elected to participate in a supply chain finance program totaled $114.0 million and $82.5 million as of December 28, 2023 and December 29, 2022, respectively, and are
included in trade accounts payable in our Consolidated Balance Sheets. See Note 14, “Supply Chain Finance” of the notes to our consolidated financial statements included in
this Annual Report for additional details related to our Finance Programs.

Material Cash Requirements, including Contractual Obligations to Third Parties

We enter into long-term obligations and commitments in the normal course of business, primarily debt obligations and non-cancelable operating leases. The following
table summarizes our material cash requirements over the next several periods from known contractual or other obligations as of December 28, 2023:

Payments due by period

in thousands Total 12/26/2024 12/25/2025 12/31/2026 12/30/2027 12/28/2028 Thereafter

Operating leases (1) $ 2,067,348 $ 201,830 $ 202,451 $ 189,438 $ 179,514 $ 159,645 $ 1,134,470
Purchase obligations (2) 805,766 770,229 15,323 14,822 5,392 — —
Long-term debt 202,396 2,103 2,103 2,629 195,561 — —
Estimated interest on long-term debt (3) 52,350 14,214 16,770 16,615 4,751 — —
Total $ 3,127,860 $ 988,376 $ 236,647 $ 223,504 $ 385,218 § 159,645 § 1,134,470

(1) We enter into operating leases during the normal course of business. Most lease arrangements provide us with the option to renew the leases at defined terms. The future
operating lease obligations set forth above would change if we were to exercise these options or enter into additional operating leases.

(2) Purchase obligations include agreements to purchase goods or services that are enforceable or legally binding. The majority of our purchase obligations are for inventory
purchases, capital projects related to our stores and distribution centers, and software and license commitments. Purchase orders that are not binding agreements are
excluded from the table above.

(3) For purposes of this table, interest has been estimated assuming our long-term debt is held to maturity and based on interest rates in effect for our indebtedness, adjusted for
the effect of our interest rate caps, as of December 28, 2023. Actual borrowing levels and interest costs may differ.

In the ordinary course of business, we are required to post letters of credit as financial guarantees of our performance. As of December 28, 2023, letters of credit
totaled $35.3 million. We do not currently provide cash collateral for outstanding letters of credit. We have negotiated a letter of credit sublimit as part of our ABL Facility. The
amount available to be borrowed under our ABL Facility is reduced by the cumulative amount of any outstanding letters of credit.

For fiscal 2023, we were not party to any material off-balance sheet arrangements that are reasonably likely to have a current or future effect on our financial
condition, net sales, expenses, results of operations, liquidity, capital expenditures, or capital resources. We do not have any relationship with unconsolidated entities or
financial partnerships for the purpose of facilitating off-balance sheet arrangements or for other contractually narrow or limited purposes.

U.S. Tariffs and Global Economy

The current domestic and international political environment, including existing and potential changes to U.S. policies related to global trade and tariffs, have resulted
in uncertainty surrounding the future state of the global economy. In particular, the ongoing trade dispute between the U.S. and China has resulted in the U.S. imposing tariffs of
25% on many products from China. While exclusions from tariffs were granted for certain products from China, nearly all of these exclusions have expired. In fiscal 2023,
approximately 25% of the products we sold were produced in China. As we continue to manage the impact these tariffs may have on our business, we continue taking steps to
mitigate some of these cost increases through negotiating lower costs from our vendors, increasing retail pricing as we deem appropriate, and sourcing from alternative
countries. While our efforts have mitigated a substantial portion of the overall effect of increased tariffs, the enacted tariffs have increased our inventory costs and associated
cost of sales for the remaining products still sourced from China.
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Recently Adopted and Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

Refer to Note 1, “Summary of Significant Accounting Policies” of the notes to the consolidated financial statements included in this Annual Report for information on
the recently adopted and recently issued accounting pronouncements that are applicable to the Company.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States requires management to make estimates and
assumptions about future events that affect amounts reported in our consolidated financial statements and related notes as well as the related disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements. Management evaluates its accounting policies, estimates, and judgments on an ongoing basis. Management bases its estimates
and judgments on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results may differ under different
assumptions and conditions, and such differences could be material to the consolidated financial statements.

Management evaluated the development and selection of its critical accounting policies and estimates and believes that the following accounting policies are critical as
they involve a higher degree of judgment or complexity and are the most significant to reporting our results of operations and financial position. The following critical
accounting policies reflect the significant estimates and judgments used in the preparation of our consolidated financial statements. With respect to critical accounting policies,
even a relatively minor variance between actual and expected experience can potentially have a materially favorable or unfavorable impact on subsequent results of operations.
All of our significant accounting policies are discussed in “Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies” to our audited consolidated financial statements included in
this Annual Report.

Revenue Recognition

Description. We recognize revenue and the related cost of sales when we satisfy the performance obligations in contracts with our customers in accordance with
Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) 606, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (“ASC 606”). Our performance obligations for our retail store sales, as well as for
orders placed through our website and shipped to our customers, are satisfied at the point-of-sale, which is typically the point at which the customer obtains control of the
inventory. In some cases, merchandise is not physically ready for transfer to the customer at the point-of-sale, and revenue recognition is deferred until the customer has control
of the inventory. Shipping and handling activities are accounted for as activities to fulfill the promise to transfer goods rather than as separate performance obligations as
outlined within ASC 606. Payment is generally due from the customer immediately at the point-of-sale for both retail store sales and website sales with the exception of a small
number of commercial clients purchasing through our commercial credit program, which typically offers longer payment terms.

Judgments and uncertainties involved in the estimate. Our customers have the right to return the goods sold to them within a reasonable time period, typically 90 days.
The right of return is an element of variable consideration as defined within ASC 606. We estimate a reserve for future returns of previously sold goods based on historical
experience and various other assumptions that we believe to be reasonable. Merchandise exchanges of similar product and price are not considered merchandise returns and,
therefore, are excluded when calculating the sales returns reserve. While we believe that our current sales returns reserves are adequate, there can be no assurances that
historical data and trends will accurately predict returns or that future developments might not lead to a significant change in the reserve.

Effect if actual results differ from assumptions. A 10% change in our sales returns reserves and related return asset accruals at December 28, 2023 would have had a net
impact of approximately $1.3 million on operating income in fiscal 2023. Sales returns reserves and related return asset accruals over the last few years have fluctuated
primarily based on changes in sales levels and, to a lesser extent, changes in customer return rates.

Inventory Valuation and Shrinkage

Description. Inventories consist of merchandise held for sale and are stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value. When evidence exists that the net realizable
value of inventory is lower than its cost, the difference is recorded in cost of sales in the Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income as a loss in the
period in which it occurs. We determine inventory costs using the moving weighted average cost method. We capitalize transportation, duties, and other costs to get product to
our retail locations.

Judgments and uncertainties involved in the estimate. We provide provisions for losses related to shrinkage and other amounts that are otherwise not expected to be
fully recoverable. These provisions are calculated based on historical shrinkage, selling prices, margins, and current business trends. The estimates have calculations that
require management to make assumptions based on the current rate of sales, age, salability and profitability of inventory, historical percentages that can be affected by changes
in our merchandising mix, customer preferences, rates of sell through, and changes in actual shrinkage trends.
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Effect if actual results differ from assumptions. A 10% change in our inventory valuation and shrinkage reserves at December 28, 2023 would have affected operating
income by approximately $0.6 million in fiscal 2023. Inventory valuation and shrinkage reserves typically fluctuate in proportion to changes in inventory balances.

Vendor Rebates and Allowances

Description. Vendor allowances consist primarily of volume rebates that are earned as a result of reaching certain inventory purchase levels and advertising allowances
or incentives for the promotion of vendors' products. These vendor allowances are accrued as earned and are estimated based on annual projections. Vendor allowances earned
are initially recorded as a reduction to the carrying value of inventory and a subsequent reduction in cost of sales when the related product is sold. Certain incentive allowances
that are reimbursements of specific, incremental, and identifiable costs incurred to promote vendors’ products are recorded as an offset against these promotional expenses.

Judgments and uncertainties involved in the estimate. For vendor allowances, we develop accrual rates based on the provisions of the agreements in place. We perform
analyses and review historical purchase trends and volumes throughout the year, adjust accrual rates as appropriate, and confirm actual amounts with select vendors to ensure
the amounts earned are appropriately recorded. Amounts accrued throughout the year could be impacted if actual purchase volumes differ from projected purchase volumes,
especially in the case of programs that provide for increased funding when graduated purchase volumes are met.

Effect if actual results differ from assumptions. If actual results are not consistent with the assumptions and estimates used, we could be exposed to additional
adjustments that could positively or negatively impact gross margin and inventory. However, substantially all receivables associated with vendor rebates and allowances do not
require subjective long-term estimates because they are collected soon after each quarter end, primarily within the first two months. Adjustments to gross margin and inventory
in the following fiscal year have historically not been material.

Leases

Description. We recognize lease assets and corresponding lease liabilities for all operating leases on our Consolidated Balance Sheets, excluding short-term leases
(leases with terms of 12 months or less) as described under ASC 842, Leases (“ASC 842”). The majority of our long-term operating lease agreements include options to extend,
which are also factored into the recognition of their respective assets and liabilities when appropriate based on management’s assessment of the probability that the options will
be exercised. Lease payments are discounted using the rate implicit in the lease, or, if not readily determinable, a third-party secured incremental borrowing rate based on
information available at lease commencement. The secured incremental borrowing rate is estimated based on yields obtained from Bloomberg for U.S. consumers with a BB
credit rating and is adjusted for collateralization as well as inflation. Additionally, certain of our lease agreements include escalating rents over the lease terms, which, under
ASC 842, results in rent being expensed on a straight-line basis over the life of the lease that commences on the date we have the right to control the property.

Judgments and uncertainties involved in the estimate. The determination of an appropriate secured incremental borrowing rate requires judgments in selecting an
appropriate yield curve and estimating adjustments for collateralization and inflation.

Effect if actual results differ from assumptions. Based on the volume of new store leases that we enter into each year, a significant increase or decrease in the
incremental borrowing rates used to discount lease payments could have a significant impact on the value of operating lease liabilities and right-of-use assets subsequently
reported on our Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Recent Developments

The Company has interest cap agreements that expire in April 2024 (see Note 8, “Derivatives and Risk Management” of the notes to our consolidated financial
statements included in this Annual Report for additional details). To reduce interest rate risk associated with the Company’s Term Loan Facility, the Company entered into an
interest rate cap agreement on January 15, 2024 with a notional value of $150.0 million. The contract is designated as a cash flow hedge. The contract effectively caps SOFR
based interest payments on a portion of the Company’s Term Loan Facility at 5.50% beginning in May 2024 and will continue until the agreement expires in April 2026.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK.

Market risk represents the risk of changes in the value of market risk sensitive instruments caused by fluctuations in foreign exchange rates, interest rates and
commodity prices. Changes in these factors could cause fluctuations in the results of our operations and cash flows. In the ordinary course of business, we are primarily
exposed to foreign currency, interest rate risks, and risks from the impact of inflation or deflation. See further discussion in Item 7, “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations” for additional details.
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Foreign Currency Risk

Our primary supplier contracts outside of the U.S. are with third parties in Asia and Europe. While substantially all of these contracts are stated in U.S. dollars, there
can be no assurance that the cost for the future production of our products will not be affected by exchange rate fluctuations between the U.S. dollar and the local currencies of
these suppliers. Due to the number of currencies involved, we cannot quantify the potential impact of future currency fluctuations on net income or loss in future years. To date,
such exchange fluctuations have not had a material impact on our financial condition or results of operations.

Interest Rate Risk

Our operating results are subject to risk from interest rate fluctuations on our Credit Facilities, which have variable interest rates. Based on the $202.4 million total
outstanding principal balance of our Credit Facilities as of December 28, 2023, a 1.0% increase in the effective interest rate of this debt would cause an increase in interest
expense of approximately $2.0 million over the next twelve months, excluding the impact of interest rate cap agreements. To lessen our exposure to interest rate risk, we
entered into two $75.0 million interest rate cap agreements in May 2021. The contracts effectively cap Secured Overnight Financing Rate (“SOFR”) based interest payments on
a portion of our Term Loan Facility to less than 1.68% through April 2024. The U.S. Federal Reserve continued raising interest rates in fiscal 2023. As a result, these
agreements partially offset increases in interest expense on our Term Loan Facility as rates have increased to a level above the specified SOFR caps. For additional information
related to the Company’s Credit Facilities, refer to Note 10, “Debt” of the notes to the consolidated financial statements included in this Annual Report.

Impact of Inflation/Deflation

Substantial increases in costs, including the price of raw materials, labor, energy, transportation, and other inputs used in the production and distribution of our
merchandise, could have a significant impact on our business and the industry. Additionally, while deflation could positively impact our merchandise costs, it could have an
adverse effect on our average unit retail price, resulting in lower net sales and operating results.

Commodity Price Risk

We experience inflation and deflation related to our purchase of certain commodity products. There can be no assurance that this price volatility will not affect our
financial condition and/or our results of operations. In order to mitigate price volatility, we monitor commodity price fluctuations and may adjust our selling prices accordingly;
however, our ability to recover higher costs through increased pricing may be limited by the competitive environment in which we operate. To date, such fluctuations have not
had a material impact on our financial condition or results of operations.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
To the Stockholders and the Board of Directors of Floor & Decor Holdings, Inc.
Opinion on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Floor & Decor Holdings, Inc. and subsidiaries (the Company) as of December 28, 2023 and December 29,
2022, the related consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income, stockholders’ equity and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
December 28, 2023, and the related notes (collectively referred to as the “consolidated financial statements™). In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present
fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company at December 28, 2023 and December 29, 2022, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each
of the three years in the period ended December 28, 2023, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) (PCAOB), the Company’s internal control over
financial reporting as of December 28, 2023, based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of
the Treadway Commission (2013 framework), and our report dated February 22, 2024 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

Basis for Opinion

These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s financial statements based on our
audits. We are a public accounting firm registered with the PCAOB and are required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal
securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether due to error or fraud. Our audits included performing procedures to assess the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to error or fraud, and performing procedures that respond to those risks. Such procedures included examining, on a test
basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. Our audits also included evaluating the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Critical Audit Matter

The critical audit matter communicated below is a matter arising from the current period audit of the financial statements that was communicated or required to be
communicated to the audit committee and that: (1) relates to accounts or disclosures that are material to the financial statements and (2) involved our especially challenging,
subjective or complex judgments. The communication of the critical audit matter does not alter in any way our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, taken as a
whole, and we are not, by communicating the critical audit matter below, providing a separate opinion on the critical audit matter or on the accounts or disclosures to which it
relates.

43



Table of Contents

Description of the Matter

How We Addressed the Matter
in Our Audit

/s/ Ernst & Young LLP

Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities

As discussed in Notes 1 and 9 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company recognizes right-of-use assets and corresponding
lease liabilities for all leases on the balance sheet, excluding short-term leases (leases with terms of 12 months or less) as described under
Accounting Standards Codification 842 (“ASC 842”). Because most of the Company’s leases do not provide a determinable implicit rate,
the Company used a third party to assist in determining its incremental borrowing rates, which were used to calculate its right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities. As of December 28, 2023, the Company’s right-of-use assets were $1,282.6 million and lease liabilities were
$1,428.2 million (of which $126.4 million was current and $1,301.8 million was long-term).

Auditing the Company’s right-of-use assets and lease liabilities was challenging due to the requirement that management estimate its
incremental borrowing rates used in the application of ASC 842 because the Company does not have debt financing or other instruments
that have directly comparable collateral or similar terms as its leased assets. Therefore, our procedures involved a high degree of
subjective auditor judgment because of the significant judgments required for management to develop the estimates, including selection of
an appropriate yield curve and estimating adjustments for collateralization.

We obtained an understanding of and tested controls that address the risks of material misstatement relating to the valuation of the
Company’s right-of-use assets and lease liabilities. We tested controls over management’s review of the incremental borrowing rate
estimates, including selection of an appropriate yield curve and adjustments for collateralization.

To test the right-of-use assets and lease liabilities recorded by the Company for new or modified leases entered into during the year ended
December 28, 2023, our audit procedures included, among others, evaluating the methodology, the significant assumptions discussed
above and underlying data used by the Company. We involved our valuation specialists to assist in evaluating the Company’s
methodology to develop the incremental borrowing rates and preparing an independent calculation of the rates, which we compared to
management’s estimates.

We have served as the Company's auditor since 2011.

Atlanta, Georgia

February 22, 2024
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
To the Stockholders and the Board of Directors of Floor & Decor Holdings, Inc.
Opinion on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

We have audited Floor & Decor Holdings, Inc. and subsidiaries’ internal control over financial reporting as of December 28, 2023, based on criteria established in Internal
Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (2013 framework) (the COSO criteria). In our opinion,
Floor & Decor Holdings, Inc. and subsidiaries (the Company) maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 28, 2023,
based on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) (PCAOB), the consolidated balance sheets of the
Company as of December 28, 2023 and December 29, 2022, the related consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income, stockholders’ equity and cash flows
for each of the three years in the period ended December 28, 2023, and the related notes and our report dated February 22, 2024 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

Basis for Opinion

The Company’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over
financial reporting included in the accompanying Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the
Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit. We are a public accounting firm registered with the PCAOB and are required to be independent with
respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the
PCAOB.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects.

Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk, and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe
that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Definition and Limitations of Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company;
and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material
effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to
future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures
may deteriorate.

/s/ Ernst & Young LLP

Atlanta, Georgia

February 22, 2024
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in thousands, except for share and per share data
Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Income taxes receivable
Receivables, net
Inventories, net
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Total current assets
Fixed assets, net
Right-of-use assets
Intangible assets, net
Goodwill
Deferred income tax assets, net
Other assets
Total long-term assets
Total assets
Liabilities and stockholders’ equity
Current liabilities:
Current portion of term loan
Current portion of lease liabilities
Trade accounts payable
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities
Deferred revenue
Total current liabilities
Term loan
Revolving line of credit
Lease liabilities
Deferred income tax liabilities, net
Other liabilities
Total long-term liabilities
Total liabilities
Commitments and contingencies (Note 9)
Stockholders’ equity
Capital stock:

Preferred stock, $0.001 par value; 10,000,000 shares authorized; 0 shares issued and outstanding at December 28, 2023 and December 29, 2022
Common stock Class A, $0.001 par value; 450,000,000 shares authorized; 106,737,532 shares issued and outstanding at December 28, 2023 and

106,150,661 issued and outstanding at December 29, 2022

Common stock Class B, $0.001 par value; 10,000,000 shares authorized; 0 shares issued and outstanding at December 28, 2023 and December 29,

2022

Common stock Class C, $0.001 par value; 30,000,000 shares authorized; 0 shares issued and outstanding at December 28, 2023 and December 29,

2022
Additional paid-in capital
Accumulated other comprehensive income, net
Retained earnings
Total stockholders’ equity
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity

Floor & Decor Holdings, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Balance Sheets

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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As of December 28, As of December 29,
2023 2022

$ 34382 $ 9,794

27,870 7,325

99,513 94,732

1,106,150 1,292,336

48,725 53,298

1,316,640 1,457,485

1,629,917 1,258,056

1,282,625 1,205,636

153,869 152,353

257,940 255,473

14,227 11,265

7,332 10,974

3,345,910 2,893,757

$ 4,662,550 $ 4,351,242

$ 2,103 §$ 2,103

126,428 105,693

679,265 590,883

332,940 298,019

11,277 10,060

1,152,013 1,006,758

194,939 195,351

— 210,200

1,301,754 1,227,507

67,188 41,520

15,666 12,730

1,579,547 1,687,308

2,731,560 2,694,066

107 106

513,060 482,312

1,422 4,337

1,416,401 1,170,421

1,930,990 1,657,176

$ 4,662,550 $ 4,351,242
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Floor & Decor Holdings, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income

Fiscal Year Ended

December 28, December 29, December 30,

in thousands, except for per share data 2023 2022 2021
Net sales $ 4,413,884 $ 4264473 $ 3,433,533
Cost of sales 2,555,536 2,536,757 2,011,267
Gross profit 1,858,348 1,727,716 1,422,266

Operating expenses:

Selling and store operating 1,239,225 1,078,466 849,440
General and administrative 252,713 213,848 199,401
Pre-opening 44,982 38,642 34,433
Total operating expenses 1,536,920 1,330,956 1,083,274
Operating income 321,428 396,760 338,992
Interest expense, net 9,897 11,138 4,924
Income before income taxes 311,531 385,622 334,068
Income tax expense 65,551 87,427 50,838
Net income $ 245,980 $ 298,195 $ 283,230
Change in fair value of hedge instruments, net of tax (2,915) 3,802 371
Total comprehensive income $ 243,065 $ 301,997 $ 283,601
Basic earnings per share $ 231 $ 282§ 2.71
Diluted earnings per share $ 228 $ 278 $ 2.64

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Floor & Decor Holdings, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity

Common Stock Accumulated

Class A Additio.nal Other . . Total
Paid-in Comprehensive Retained Stockholders’
in thousands Shares Amount Capital Income (Loss) Earnings Equity
Balance, January 1, 2021 104,368 $ 104 $ 408,124 $ 164 $ 588,996 $ 997,388
Stock-based compensation expense — — 20,528 — — 20,528
Exercise of stock options 1,253 2 14,734 — — 14,736
Issuance of restricted stock awards 29 — — — — —
Forfeiture of restricted stock awards 3) — — — — —
Issuance of common stock upon vesting of restricted stock units 29 — — — — —
Shares issued under employee stock purchase plan 46 — 3,063 _ — 3,063
Issuance of stock related to acquisition 50 — 5,000 — — 5,000
Common stock redeemed for tax liability (11) — (1,117) — — (1,117)
Other comprehensive gain, net of tax — — — 371 — 371
Net income = o — — 283,230 283,230
Balance, December 30, 2021 105,761 § 106 $ 450,332 § 535§ 872,226 $ 1,323,199
Stock-based compensation expense — — 22,233 — — 22,233
Exercise of stock options 352 — 7,592 — — 7,592
Forfeiture of restricted stock awards (59) — — — — —
Issuance of common stock upon vesting of restricted stock units 59 — — — — —
Shares issued under employee stock purchase plan 62 — 4,379 — — 4,379
Common stock redeemed for tax liability (24) — (2,224) — — (2,224)
Other comprehensive gain, net of tax — — — 3,802 — 3,802
Net income — — — — 298,195 298,195
Balance, December 29, 2022 106,151 § 106 $ 482312 § 4,337 $ 1,170,421 $ 1,657,176
Stock-based compensation expense — — 27,240 — — 27,240
Exercise of stock options 491 1 10,959 — — 10,960
Issuance of common stock upon vesting of restricted stock units 151 — — — — —
Shares issued under employee stock purchase plan 84 — 5,159 — — 5,159
Common stock redeemed for tax liability (139) — (12,610) — — (12,610)
Other comprehensive loss, net of tax — — — (2,915) — (2,915)
Net income — — — — 245,980 245,980
Balance, December 28, 2023 106,738 $ 107 $ 513,060 $ 1,422 $ 1,416,401 $ 1,930,990

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Floor & Decor Holdings, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

in thousands

Operating activities
Net income $
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Stock-based compensation expense
Deferred income taxes
Change in fair value of contingent earn-out liabilities
Loss on asset impairments and disposals, net
Interest cap derivative contracts
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, net of effects of acquisitions:
Receivables, net
Inventories, net
Trade accounts payable
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities
Income taxes
Deferred revenue
Other, net

Net cash provided by operating activities
Investing activities

Purchases of fixed assets

Acquisitions, net of cash acquired
Proceeds from sales of property

Net cash used in investing activities
Financing activities

Proceeds from term loans

Payments on term loans

Borrowings on revolving line of credit
Payments on revolving line of credit
Payments of contingent earn-out liabilities
Proceeds from exercise of stock options
Proceeds from employee stock purchase plan
Debt issuance costs

Tax payments for stock-based compensation awards

Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of the period

Cash and cash equivalents, end of the period $

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information
Buildings and equipment acquired under operating leases
Cash paid for interest, net of capitalized interest

Cash paid for income taxes, net of refunds

Fixed assets accrued at the end of the period

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Fiscal Year Ended
December 28, December 29, December 30,
2023 2022 2021

245,980 $ 298,195 $ 283,230

201,869 155,023 118,196

27,240 22,233 20,528

23,722 2,525 3,042

2,609 2,529 —

925 20 438

113 114 357
1,151 (12,150) (19,768)
194,890 (283,438) (349,678)

96,985 (84,732) 232,761

7,507 38,716 36,684
(18,413) (8,865) (15,897)

1,217 (4,432) 3,158
17,794 (13,288) (11,709)

803,589 112,450 301,342
(547,613) (456,600) (407,671)
(17,353) (3,810) (63,567)

— 4,773 —
(564,966) (455,637) (471,238)

— — 65,000
(2,103) (2,103) (76,202)

518,900 1,047,100 13,466
(729,100) (836,900) (15,969)

(5,241) (2,571) —

10,960 7,592 14,736

5,159 4,379 3,063
— (1,736) (1,409)
(12,610) (2,224) (1,117)

(214,035) 213,537 1,568
24,588 (129,650) (168,328)

9,794 139,444 307,772

34382 $ 9,794 $ 139,444

$ 201,486 $ 225,968 $ 285,865
$ 9,595 $ 7,403 $ 6,279
$ 61,027 $ 92,923 $ 63,684
$ 135,707  $ 116,997 $ 87,645
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Floor & Decor Holdings, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 28, 2023

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Nature of Business

2 2 <

Floor & Decor Holdings, Inc., together with its subsidiaries (the “Company,” “we,” “our,” or “us”) is a high-growth, differentiated, multi-channel specialty retailer of
hard surface flooring and related accessories and seller of commercial surfaces. The Company offers a broad assortment of in-stock hard-surface flooring, including tile, wood,
laminate and vinyl, and natural stone along with decorative accessories and wall tile, installation materials, and adjacent categories at everyday low prices. Our stores appeal to
a variety of customers, including professional installers and commercial businesses (“Pro”) and homeowners, which are comprised of do it yourself customers (“DIY”) and buy
it yourself customers, who buy our products for professional installation (“BIY”). We operate within one reportable segment.

As of December 28, 2023, the Company, through its wholly owned subsidiary, Floor and Decor Outlets of America, Inc. (“Outlets”), operates 221 warehouse-format
stores, which average 78,000 square feet, and five small-format standalone design studios in 36 states as well as four distribution centers and an e-commerce site,
FloorandDecor.com. Substantially all of the Company’s operating assets and liabilities are held by Outlets.

Fiscal Year

The Company’s fiscal year is the 52- or 53-week period ending on the Thursday on or preceding December 31st. The fiscal years ended December 28, 2023 (“fiscal
2023”), December 29, 2022 (“fiscal 2022”), and December 30, 2021 (“fiscal 2021”) include 52 weeks. 52-week fiscal years consist of thirteen-week periods in each quarter of
the fiscal year. When a 53-week fiscal year occurs, we report the additional week at the end of the fiscal fourth quarter.

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States (“GAAP”).
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly owned subsidiaries.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements requires management of the Company to make a number of estimates and assumptions relating to the reported amount of
assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of sales and expenses during the
period. Actual results could differ from these estimates.

Business Combinations

The Company accounts for acquisitions in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) 805,
Business Combinations (“ASC 805”). The purchase price of an acquisition is measured as the aggregate fair value of the consideration transferred at the date of acquisition. The
purchase price is allocated to the fair values of the tangible and intangible assets acquired and liabilities assumed, with any excess recorded as goodwill. These fair value
determinations require judgment and may involve the use of significant estimates and assumptions. The purchase price allocation may be provisional during a measurement
period of up to one year from the acquisition date to provide reasonable time to obtain the information necessary to identify and measure the assets acquired and liabilities
assumed. Only facts and circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date are considered for subsequent adjustment to the purchase price allocation, and any such
adjustment will be recognized in the period in which it is determined prior to completion of the measurement period. Transaction costs associated with acquisitions are
expensed as incurred.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash consists of currency and demand deposits with banks.
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Receivables

Receivables consist primarily of amounts due from credit card companies, vendor receivables, and commercial credit receivables. The Company typically collects its
credit card receivables within three to five business days of the underlying sale to the customer, while commercial credit receivables are typically collected within 40 days after
the customer takes possession of the goods. The Company has agreements with a majority of its large merchandise vendors that allow for specified rebates based on purchasing
volume. Generally, these agreements are on an annual basis, and the Company collects the majority of rebates earned each quarter subsequent to quarter end. Additionally, the
Company has agreements with substantially all vendors that allow for the return of certain damaged or defective merchandise throughout the normal course of business. When
inventory is identified to return to a vendor, it is removed from inventory and recorded as a receivable on the Consolidated Balance Sheet, and any variance between capitalized
inventory cost associated with the return and the expected vendor reimbursement is expensed in Cost of sales in the Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive
Income when the inventory is identified to be returned to the vendor. The Company reserves for estimated uncollected receivables based on historical trends, which historically
have been immaterial. The allowance for doubtful accounts was $0.2 million and $0.4 million as of December 28, 2023 and December 29, 2022, respectively.

Credit Program

Credit is offered to the Company's customers through a proprietary credit card underwritten by third-party financial institutions at no recourse to the Company. The
Company also offers limited credit to its commercial clients. The Company’s total credit exposure for receivables not insured by a third party at the end of fiscal 2023 and fiscal
2022 was $18.3 million and $10.2 million, respectively.

Inventory Valuation and Shrinkage

Inventories consist of merchandise held for sale and are stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value. When evidence exists that the net realizable value of
inventory is lower than its cost, the difference is recorded in cost of sales in the Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income in the period in which it
occurs. The Company determines inventory costs using the moving weighted average cost method. The Company capitalizes transportation, duties, and other costs to get
product to its retail locations. The Company records reserves for estimated losses related to shrinkage and other amounts that are otherwise not expected to be fully recoverable.
These reserves are calculated based on historical shrinkage, selling price, margin, and current business trends. The estimates have calculations that require management to make
assumptions based on the current rate of sales, age, salability, and profitability of inventory, historical percentages that can be affected by changes in the Company's
merchandising mix, customer preferences, and changes in actual shrinkage trends. These reserves totaled $6.5 million and $8.7 million as of December 28, 2023 and
December 29, 2022, respectively.

Physical inventory counts and cycle counts are performed on a regular basis in each store and distribution center to ensure that amounts reflected in the accompanying
Consolidated Balance Sheets are properly stated. During the period between physical inventory counts in its stores, the Company accrues for estimated losses related to
shrinkage on a store-by-store basis. Shrinkage is the difference between the recorded amount of inventory and the physical inventory. Shrinkage may occur due to theft or loss,
among other things.

Fixed Assets

Fixed assets consist primarily of furniture, fixtures, and equipment, computer software and hardware, leasehold improvements (including those that are reimbursed by
landlords as tenant improvement allowances), buildings and improvements, and land. Fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation utilizing the straight-line
method over the assets’ estimated useful lives. The Company capitalizes interest on borrowings during the active construction period of certain capital projects.

Leasehold improvements are amortized using the straight-line method over the shorter of (i) the original term of the lease, (ii) renewal term of the lease if the renewal
is reasonably certain or (iii) the useful life of the improvement. The Company’s fixed assets are depreciated using the following estimated useful lives:

Useful Life
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 2 -7 years
Computer software and hardware 3 -7 years
Leasehold improvements 10 - 25 years
Buildings and improvements 10 - 35 years
Land Indefinite

The cost and related accumulated depreciation of assets sold or otherwise disposed are removed from the accounts, and the related gain or loss is reported in the
Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income.
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Internal-Use Software Costs

The Company capitalizes certain costs related to the acquisition and development of internal-use software which are included within fixed assets, net in the
Consolidated Balance Sheets. Capitalized internal-use software costs are amortized using the straight-line method over the estimated useful life of the software within selling
and store operating expense or general and administrative expense in the Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income. Costs related to internal-use
software not meeting the criteria for capitalization are expensed as incurred.

Cloud Computing Arrangements

The Company capitalizes certain costs to implement cloud computing arrangements that are service contracts “(CCA”) hosted by third-party vendors. CCA
implementation costs meeting the criteria for capitalization are included within prepaid and other current assets in the Consolidated Balance Sheets and are amortized using the
straight-line method over the expected term of the related contract, which may include reasonably certain renewals. Amortization expense for capitalized implementation costs
is presented in the Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income based on where the hosting fees for the related service contract are recognized, which is
either selling and store operating expense or general and administrative expense.

Finite-lived Intangible Assets

In accordance with ASC 350, Intangibles—Goodwill and Other (“ASC 350”), identifiable intangible assets with finite lives are amortized over their estimated useful
lives. The estimated lives of the Company’s finite-lived intangible assets are as follows:

Useful Life
Non-compete agreement 5 years
Customer relationships 12 years

Goodwill and Other Indefinite-lived Intangible Assets

Goodwill represents the excess of purchase price over the fair value of net assets acquired. The Company does not amortize goodwill and other intangible assets with
indefinite lives resulting from business combinations but, in accordance with ASC 350, does assess the recoverability of goodwill annually in the fourth quarter of each fiscal
year, or more often if events occur or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of goodwill may not be recoverable. Such circumstances could include, but are
not limited to, a significant adverse change in customer demand or business climate or an adverse action or assessment by a regulator. Each year, the Company may assess
qualitative factors to determine whether it is more likely than not that the fair value of the single reporting unit is less than its carrying amount as a basis for determining
whether it is necessary to complete quantitative impairment assessments.

Impairment Assessment of Goodwill and Other Indefinite-lived Intangible Assets

The Company tests goodwill and its trade names, which are indefinite-lived intangible assets, for impairment annually in the fourth quarter of each fiscal year, or more
often if events occur or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of goodwill or indefinite-lived intangible assets may not be recoverable. The Company has
the option to assess the value of its goodwill and other indefinite-lived intangible assets under either a qualitative or quantitative approach. Under a qualitative approach, the
Company evaluates various market and other factors to determine whether it is more likely than not that the Company’s goodwill or other indefinite-lived intangible assets have
been impaired. In performing the qualitative assessment, the Company considers the carrying value of its single reporting unit compared to its fair value as well as events and
changes in circumstances that could include, but are not limited to, a significant adverse change in customer demand or business climate, an adverse action or assessment by a
regulator, and significant adverse changes in the price of the Company’s common stock. If such qualitative assessment indicates that impairment may have occurred, an
additional quantitative assessment is performed by comparing the carrying value of the assets to their respective estimated fair values. If the recorded carrying value of goodwill
or an other indefinite-lived intangible asset exceeds its estimated fair value, an impairment charge is recorded to write the asset down to its estimated fair value.

During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2023, the Company qualitatively assessed whether it was more likely than not that the goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets
were impaired. Based on this assessment, the Company determined it was more likely than not that its goodwill and other indefinite-lived intangible assets were not impaired as
of October 27, 2023. No events or changes in circumstances have occurred since the date of the Company's most recent annual impairment assessment that would more likely
than not reduce the fair value of the reporting unit below its carrying amount.
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The Company’s goodwill and other indefinite-lived intangible assets impairment assessments contain uncertainties because they require management to make
significant judgments in estimating the fair value of the Company’s reporting unit and other indefinite-lived intangible assets and, if a quantitative assessment is deemed
necessary, may include the projection of future cash flows, assumptions about which market participants are the most comparable, the selection of discount rates, and the
weighting of the income and market approaches. These calculations contain uncertainties because they require management to make assumptions such as estimating economic
factors, including the profitability of future business operations and, if necessary, the fair value of the reporting unit’s assets and liabilities. Further, the Company’s ability to
realize the future cash flows used in its fair value calculations is affected by factors such as changes in economic conditions, changes in the Company’s operating performance,
and changes in the Company’s business strategies. Significant changes in any of the assumptions involved in calculating these estimates could affect the estimated fair value of
the Company’s reporting unit and indefinite-lived intangible assets and could result in impairment charges in a future period.

Long-lived Assets

Long-lived assets, such as fixed assets, operating lease right-of-use assets, and intangible assets with finite lives, are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. Conditions that may indicate impairment include, but are not limited to, a
significant adverse change in customer demand or business climate that could affect the value of an asset, significant changes or planned changes in the Company’s use of an
asset, a product recall, or an adverse action by a regulator. In accordance with ASC 360, Property, Plant and Equipment, the evaluation is performed at the lowest level for
which identifiable cash flows are available that are largely independent of the cash flows of other assets or asset groups. If the sum of the estimated undiscounted future cash
flows is less than the carrying value of the related asset or asset group, an impairment loss is recognized equal to the difference between carrying value and fair value.

Since there is typically no active market for the Company’s definite-lived intangible assets, the Company estimates fair value based on expected future cash flows at
the time they are identified. When events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable, the Company estimates future cash
flows based on store-level historical results, current trends, and operating and cash flow projections. Definite-lived intangible assets are amortized over their respective
estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis, which the Company believes to be the amortization methodology that best matches the pattern of economic benefit that is
expected from the assets. The useful lives of definite-lived intangible asset are evaluated on an annual basis.

Leases

The Company recognizes lease right-of-use assets and corresponding lease liabilities for all operating leases on the balance sheet, excluding short-term leases (leases
with terms of 12 months or less) as described under ASC 842, Leases (“ASC 842”). The majority of the Company’s long-term operating lease agreements include options to
extend, which are also factored into the recognition of their respective assets and liabilities when appropriate based on management’s assessment of the probability that the
options will be exercised. Lease payments are discounted using the rate implicit in the lease, or, if not readily determinable, a third-party secured incremental borrowing rate
based on information available at lease commencement. The secured incremental borrowing rate is estimated based on yields obtained from Bloomberg for U.S. consumers
with a BB credit rating and is adjusted for collateralization as well as inflation. Additionally, certain of the Company’s lease agreements include escalating rents over the lease
terms, which, under ASC 842, results in rent being expensed on a straight-line basis over the life of the lease that commences on the date the Company has the right to control
the property.

Self-Insurance Reserves

The Company is partially self-insured for workers’ compensation and general liability claims less than certain dollar amounts and maintains insurance coverage with
individual and aggregate limits. The Company’s liabilities represent estimates of the ultimate cost for claims incurred, including loss adjusting expenses, as of the balance sheet
date. The estimated liabilities are not discounted and are established based upon analysis of historical data, actuarial estimates, regulatory requirements, an estimate of claims
incurred but not yet reported, and other relevant factors. Management utilizes independent third-party actuarial studies to help assess the liability on a regular basis.

Commitments and Contingencies

Liabilities for loss contingencies arising from claims, assessments, litigation, fines, penalties, and other sources are recorded when it is probable that a liability has
been incurred and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated.
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Asset Retirement Obligations

An asset retirement obligation (“ARO”) represents a legal obligation associated with the retirement of a tangible long-lived asset that is incurred upon the acquisition,
construction, development or normal operation of that long-lived asset. The Company’s AROs are primarily associated with leasehold improvements that, at the end of a lease,
the Company is contractually obligated to remove in order to comply with certain lease agreements. The ARO is recorded in Other liabilities on the Consolidated Balance
Sheets and will be subsequently adjusted for changes in fair value. The associated estimated asset retirement costs are capitalized as part of the carrying amount of the long-
lived asset and depreciated over its useful life.

Changes in (i) inflation rates and (ii) the estimated costs, timing and extent of future store closure activities each result in (a) a current adjustment to the recorded
liability and related asset and (b) a change in the liability and asset amounts to be recorded prospectively. Any changes related to the assets are then recognized in accordance
with the Company’s depreciation policy, which would generally result in depreciation expense being recognized prospectively over the shorter of the remaining lease term or
estimated useful life.

As of December 28, 2023 and December 29, 2022, ARO assets included in fixed assets, net were $5.8 million and $5.2 million, respectively, and ARO liabilities
included in other long-term liabilities were $8.9 million and $6.8 million, respectively.

Fair Value Measurements

The Company estimates fair values in accordance with ASC 820, Fair Value Measurement (“ASC 820”). ASC 820 provides a framework for measuring fair value and
requires disclosures about fair value measurements. ASC 820 defines fair value as the price that would be received from the sale of an asset or paid to transfer a liability in the
principal or most advantageous market for the asset or liability in an orderly transaction between market participants. Additionally, ASC 820 defines levels within a hierarchy
based upon observable and non-observable inputs. If the inputs used to measure fair value fall within different levels of the hierarchy, the category level is based on the lowest
priority level input that is significant to the overall fair value measurement of the instrument.

*  Level 1: Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities as of the reporting date;

*  Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that are either directly or indirectly observable as of the reporting date;
and

*  Level 3: Unobservable inputs that reflect the reporting entity’s own estimates about the assumptions market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability.
Derivative Financial Instruments

Changes in interest rates impact the Company’s results of operations. In an effort to manage exposure to this risk, the Company enters into derivative contracts and
may adjust its derivative portfolio as market conditions change. Derivative contracts are recognized at fair value on the Consolidated Balance Sheets. Unrealized changes in the
fair value of hedged derivative instruments are recorded in accumulated other comprehensive income within the stockholders’ equity section of the Consolidated Balance
Sheets.

The Company has outstanding interest rate cap contracts designated as cash flow hedges that are expected to continue to be highly effective in offsetting changes in
cash flow attributable to floating interest rate risk. The effective portion of the gain or loss on effective cash flow hedges is reported as a component of accumulated other
comprehensive income and reclassified into earnings in the same period in which the hedged transaction affects earnings. To the extent that hedges are not highly effective, the
ineffective portion of the hedge is immediately recognized in earnings. The Company performs an assessment of the effectiveness of its derivative contracts designated as
hedges, including assessing the possibility of counterparty default. If it is determined that a derivative is no longer expected to be highly effective, hedge accounting is
discontinued prospectively, and subsequent changes in the fair value of the hedge are recognized in earnings. See Note 8, “Derivatives and Risk Management” for additional
information.
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Revenue Recognition

In accordance with ASC 606, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (“ASC 606”), revenue and cost of sales are recognized when the related performance
obligations in contracts with customers are settled. Performance obligations for the Company’s retail store sales, as well as for orders placed through its website and shipped to
customers, are satisfied at the point at which the customer obtains control of the inventory, which is typically at the point-of-sale. In some cases, merchandise is not physically
ready for transfer to the customer at the point-of-sale, and revenue recognition is deferred until the customer has control of the inventory. Shipping and handling activities are
accounted for as activities to fulfill the promise to transfer goods rather than as separate performance obligations as outlined within ASC 606. Payment is generally due from the
customer immediately at the point-of-sale for both retail store sales and website sales. The nature of the goods offered primarily include hard surface flooring and related
accessories. The Company does not perform installation services, and free design services are offered in-store. The transaction price recognized in revenue represents the selling
price of the products offered. Sales taxes collected are not recognized as revenue as these amounts are ultimately remitted to the appropriate taxing authorities.

The Company provides customers the right to return the goods sold to them within a reasonable time period, typically 90 days. The right of return is an element of
variable consideration as defined within ASC 606. Reserves for future returns of previously sold goods are estimated based on historical experience and various other
assumptions that management believes to be reasonable. These reserves reduce sales and cost of sales and establish a related return asset and refund liability as defined in ASC
606. The return asset is included within prepaid expenses and other current assets, and the refund liability is included within accrued expenses and other current liabilities, each
respectively on the Consolidated Balance Sheets. Merchandise exchanges of similar product and price are not considered merchandise returns and, therefore, are excluded when
calculating the sales returns reserve.

Gift Cards and Merchandise Credits

The Company sells gift cards to customers through its stores and website and also issues merchandise credits in its stores. Gift cards and merchandise credits are
accounted for by recognizing a liability at the time the gift card is sold or the merchandise credit is issued. The liability is relieved and revenue is recognized upon redemption.
We recognize breakage revenue that is not subject to escheatment based on historical redemption patterns for the portion of gift card values that are not expected to be
redeemed. Accordingly, in fiscal years 2023, 2022, and 2021, the Company recognized gift card breakage income related to unredeemed gift cards of $5.1 million, $3.7 million,
and $2.4 million, respectively, within net sales in the Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income.

Loyalty Program

Our Pro Premier loyalty program allows customers to earn points through purchases in our stores and our website. The Company allocates the transaction price
between the goods and services sold and the loyalty points earned based on their relative standalone selling prices, which takes into account the portion of loyalty points
expected to be redeemed. For eligible transactions, loyalty points are typically awarded at one percent, but may be awarded at up to four percent for our higher volume
customers, of the selling price of the merchandise sold and are recognized at the time of sale as a liability. Breakage for loyalty point rewards is estimated based on historical
customer redemption patterns and may change in the future as the program matures. In fiscal years 2023, 2022, and 2021, loyalty breakage of $1.0 million, $1.9 million, and
$2.2 million, respectively, was recognized as net sales in the Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income.

Sales Returns and Allowances

The Company accrues for estimated sales returns based on historical results. The allowance for sales returns at December 28, 2023 and December 29, 2022, was $27.4
million and $33.3 million, respectively.

Cost of Sales

Cost of sales consists of merchandise costs as well as freight, duty, and other costs to transport inventory to the Company’s distribution centers and stores. Cost of sales
also includes costs for shrinkage, damaged product disposals, distribution, warehousing, sourcing, compliance, and arranging and paying for freight to deliver products to
customers. The Company receives cash consideration from certain vendors related to vendor allowances and volume rebates, which is recorded as a reduction to the carrying
value of inventory if the inventory is on hand and a reduction to cost of sales when the inventory is sold.

Vendor Rebates and Allowances

Vendor allowances consist primarily of volume rebates that are earned as a result of attaining certain inventory purchase levels and advertising allowances or
incentives for the promotion of vendors' products. These vendor allowances are accrued as earned and are estimated based on annual projections.
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Vendor allowances earned are initially recorded as a reduction to the carrying value of inventory and a subsequent reduction in cost of sales when the related product is
sold. Certain incentive allowances that are reimbursements of specific, incremental, and identifiable costs incurred to promote vendors’ products are recorded as an offset
against these promotional expenses.

Total Operating Expenses

Total operating expenses consist primarily of store and administrative personnel wages and benefits, infrastructure expenses, supplies, fixed asset depreciation, store
and corporate facility expenses, pre-opening costs, training costs, and advertising costs. Credit card fees, insurance, personal property taxes, legal expenses, and other
miscellaneous operating costs are also included.

Adbvertising Expenses

The Company expenses advertising costs as the advertising takes place. Advertising costs incurred during the fiscal years ended December 28, 2023, December 29,
2022, and December 30, 2021 were $112.1 million, $104.3 million, and $90.4 million, respectively, and are included in selling and store operating expenses and pre-opening
expenses in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income.

Pre-Opening Expenses

The Company accounts for non-capital operating expenditures incurred prior to opening a new store as pre-opening expenses in its Consolidated Statements of
Operations and Comprehensive Income. The Company's pre-opening expenses begin on average three months to one year in advance of a store opening or relocating due to,
among other things, the amount of time it takes to prepare a store for its grand opening. Pre-opening expenses primarily include: advertising, rent, staff training, staff recruiting,
utilities, personnel, and equipment rental. A store is considered to be relocated if it is closed temporarily and re-opened within the same primary trade area.

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company accounts for stock-based compensation, including employee stock options, restricted stock, and employee stock purchase plans, in accordance with ASC
718, Compensation — Stock Compensation (“ASC 718”), which requires measurement of compensation cost for all stock awards at fair value on the date of grant and
recognition of compensation, net of forfeitures, over the requisite service period for awards expected to vest. As necessary, the Company obtains independent third-party
valuation studies to assist with determining the grant date fair value of employee stock awards. Stock-based compensation cost is recognized as expense over the requisite
service period based on the number of years for which the requisite service is expected to be rendered. Refer to Note 11, “Stockholders’ Equity” for additional details related to
the Company’s stock-based compensation awards.

Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes under the liability method in accordance with ASC 740, Income Taxes, which requires the recognition of deferred tax assets
and liabilities for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying amounts and tax basis of existing assets and liabilities.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be
recovered or settled. Changes in tax laws and rates could affect recorded deferred tax assets and liabilities in the future. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a
change in tax laws or rates is recognized in the period that includes the enactment date of such a change.

The ultimate realization of deferred tax assets is dependent upon the generation of future taxable income during the periods in which the associated temporary
differences became deductible. On a quarterly basis, the Company evaluates whether it is more likely than not that its deferred tax assets will be realized in the future and
concludes whether a valuation allowance must be established.

The Company includes any estimated interest and penalties on tax-related matters in income taxes payable and income tax expense. The Company accounts for
uncertain tax positions in accordance with ASC 740. ASC 740-10 clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recognized in an enterprise's financial statements
using a two-step process for evaluating tax positions taken, or expected to be taken, on a tax return. The Company may only recognize the tax benefit from an uncertain tax
position if it is more likely than not that the tax position will be sustained on examination by the taxing authorities, based on the technical merits of the position. The tax
benefits recognized in the financial statements from such a position should be measured based on the largest benefit that has a greater than 50% likelihood of being realized
upon ultimate settlement. In addition, the Company recognizes a loss contingency for uncertain tax positions when it is probable that a liability has been incurred and the
amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. Amounts recognized for uncertain tax positions require that management make estimates and judgments based on provisions of
the tax law, which may be subject to change or varying interpretations. The Company includes estimated interest and penalties related to uncertain tax position accruals within
accrued expenses and other current liabilities in the Consolidated Balance Sheets and within income tax expense in the Consolidated Statements of Operations and
Comprehensive Income.
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Segments

The Company operates as a multi-channel specialty retailer of hard surface flooring and related accessories and seller of commercial surfaces. The Company primarily
sells hard surface flooring and related accessories through retail stores located in the United States and through its website.

Operating segments are defined as components of an enterprise for which discrete financial information is available that is evaluated regularly by the chief operating
decision maker (“CODM?”) for purposes of allocating resources and evaluating financial performance. The Company’s CODM, its Chief Executive Officer, reviews financial
information presented on a consolidated basis, accompanied by information about the Company’s two operating segments, Floor & Decor Retail and Spartan Surfaces, LLC.
(“Spartan”), for purposes of allocating resources and evaluating financial performance. The Spartan segment, which engages in selling commercial surfaces and is entirely
comprised of the Company’s Spartan subsidiary, does not meet the materiality criteria of ASC 280, Segment Reporting (“ASC 280”), and is therefore not disclosed separately as
a reportable segment.

The Company concluded that the economic and operating characteristics of its one reportable segment, Floor & Decor Retail, are similar across its retail operations,
including the net sales, gross profit and gross margin, and operating income of its retail stores as well as the nature of products and services offered, customer base, marketing
initiatives, operating procedures, store layouts, employee incentive programs, methods of distribution, competitive and operating risks, and the level of shared resources across
the business.

Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements

Supplier Finance Programs. In September 2022, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) No. 2022-04,
“Liabilities - Supplier Finance Programs (Subtopic 405-50).” The ASU requires disclosure of the key terms of outstanding supply chain finance programs and a rollforward of
the related amounts due to vendors participating in these programs. The adoption of ASU 2022-04 did not affect the Company’s financial position, results of operations, or cash
flows as the standard only impacts financial statement footnote disclosures. The guidance was effective in the first quarter of fiscal 2023, except for a rollforward of activity
within supply chain finance programs, which is effective beginning in fiscal 2024. For additional information, refer to Note 14, “Supply Chain Finance.”

Business Combinations. In October 2021, the FASB issued ASU No. 2021-08, “Business Combinations (Topic 805), Accounting for Contract Assets and Contract
Liabilities from Contracts with Customers.” The ASU addresses diversity and inconsistency related to the recognition and measurement of contract assets and contract
liabilities acquired in a business combination and requires that an acquirer recognize and measure contract assets and contract liabilities acquired in a business combination in
accordance with ASC 606. The Company adopted ASU No, 2021-08 in the first quarter of 2023 on a prospective basis. The adoption of ASU No. 2021-08 did not have a
material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements or related disclosures.

Presentation of Financial Statements, Financial Services—Depository and Lending, Financial Services—Investment Companies. In August 2021, the FASB issued
ASU No. 2021-06, “Presentation of Financial Statements (Topic 205), Financial Services—Depository and Lending (Topic 942), and Financial Services—Investment
Companies (Topic 946).” The ASU includes Release N0.33-10786, Amendments to Financial Disclosures about Acquired and Disposed Businesses. This update amends certain
Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) disclosure guidance that is included in the accounting standards codification to reflect the SEC’s recent issuance of rules
intended to modernize and streamline disclosure requirements, including updates to business acquisition and disposition significance tests used, the significance thresholds for
pro forma statement disclosures, the number of preceding years of financial statements required for disclosure, and other provisions in the SEC releases. The guidance is
effective upon its addition to the FASB codification. The adoption of ASU No. 2021-06 did not have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements or
related disclosures.

Reference Rate Reform. In March 2020, the FASB issued ASU No. 2020-04, “Reference Rate Reform (Topic 848)”, which provides optional guidance to ease the
potential accounting and financial reporting burden of reference rate reform, including the expected market transition from the London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”) and
other interbank offered rates to alternative reference rates. The new guidance provides temporary optional expedients and exceptions for applying U.S. GAAP to transactions
affected by reference rate reform if certain criteria are met. These transactions include contract modifications, hedging relationships, and the sale or transfer of debt securities
classified as held-to-maturity. Entities may apply the provisions of the new standard as of the beginning of the reporting period when the election is made. In January 2021, the
FASB issued ASU No. 2021-01, “Reference Rate Reform (Topic 848),” which amended ASU 2020-04 to clarify the scope and application of the original guidance in ASU No.
2020-04. In December 2022, the FASB issued ASU No. 2022-06, “Reference Rate Reform (Topic 848): Deferral of the Sunset Date of Topic 848", which amended ASU 2020-
04 to extend the period of time entities can utilize the reference rate reform relief guidance under ASU 2020-04 from December 31, 2022 to December 31, 2024. In the fourth
quarter of fiscal 2022, the Company adopted ASU 2020-04 and its amendments. The adoption of ASU 2020-04 and its amendments did not have a material impact on the
Company’s consolidated financial statements or related disclosures.
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Simplifying the Accounting for Income Taxes. In December 2019, the FASB issued ASU No. 2019-12, “Income Taxes (Topic 740): Simplifying the Accounting for
Income Taxes.” The ASU simplifies the accounting for income taxes by removing certain exceptions to the general principles in Topic 740. The ASU also clarifies and amends
existing guidance to improve consistent application among reporting entities. In the first quarter of fiscal 2021, the Company adopted ASU No. 2019-12 on a prospective basis.
The adoption of ASU No. 2019-12 did not have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

Income Taxes. In December 2023, the FASB issued ASU No. 2023-09, “Income Taxes (Topic 740).” The amendments in this ASU improve the transparency of income
tax disclosures by requiring consistent categories and greater disaggregation of information in the rate reconciliation and income taxes paid disaggregated by jurisdiction.
Additionally, this ASU improves the effectiveness and comparability of disclosures by adding disclosures of pretax income (or loss) and income tax expense (or benefit) to be
consistent with SEC Regulation S-X 210.4-08(h) and by removing disclosures that no longer are considered cost beneficial or relevant. This guidance in ASU No. 2023-09 is
effective for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2024 on a prospective basis. Early adoption of the standard is permitted. The adoption of ASU 2023-09 is not
expected to have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements or related disclosures.

Segment Reporting. In November 2023, the FASB issued ASU No. 2023-07, “Segment Reporting (Topic 280): Improvements to Reportable Segment Disclosures.”
This ASU expands disclosure of reportable segments by requiring more enhanced information about a reportable segment’s expenses, interim segment profit or loss, and how
the CODM uses reported segment profit or loss information in assessing segment performance and allocating resources. The guidance in ASU No. 2023-07 is effective for
fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2023 and interim periods within fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2024. This guidance should be applied retrospectively to
all prior periods presented in the consolidated financial statements. Early adoption is permitted. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of ASU 2023-07 on our
consolidated financial statements and related disclosures.

Presentation and Disclosure Requirements. In October 2023, the FASB issued ASU No. 2023-06, “Disclosure Improvements - Codification Amendments in Response
to the SEC's Disclosure Update and Simplification Initiative.” The ASU amends the disclosure or presentation requirements related to various subtopics in the FASB ASC. The
ASU was issued in response to the SEC’s August 2018 final amendments in Release No. 33-10532, Disclosure Update and Simplification that updated and simplified disclosure
requirements that the SEC believed were duplicative, overlapping, or outdated. The guidance in ASU 2023-06 is intended to align GAAP requirements with those of the SEC
and to facilitate the application of GAAP for all entities. The amendments introduced by ASU 2023-06 are effective if the SEC removes the related disclosure or presentation
requirement from its existing regulations by June 30, 2027. If, by June 30, 2027, the SEC has not removed the applicable requirements from its existing regulations, the pending
content of the associated amendment will be removed from the ASC and will not become effective for any entities. Early adoption is permitted. The adoption of ASU 2023-06
is not expected to have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements or related disclosures.

Leases. In March 2023, the FASB issued ASU No. 2023-01, “Leases (Topic 842), Common Control Arrangements.” The amendments in the ASU applying to public
business entities clarifies the accounting for leasehold improvements associated with common control leases, reducing diversity in practice and providing investors with
financial information that will better reflect the economics of those transactions. This guidance in ASU No. 2023-01 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15,
2023, including interim periods within those fiscal years, and can be applied prospectively to all new leasehold improvements, prospectively to all new and existing leasehold
improvements, or retrospectively to the beginning of the period in which the entity first applied Topic 842. Early adoption of the standard is permitted, including adoption in an
interim period. The adoption of ASU 2023-01 is not expected to have an impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements or related disclosures and would only be
applicable to the extent that the Company has future common control leases.

2. Revenue

Net sales consist of revenue associated with contracts with customers for the sale of goods and services in amounts that reflect the consideration the Company is
entitled to receive in exchange for those goods and services.

Deferred Revenue & Contract Liabilities

In accordance with ASC 606, the Company recognizes revenue when the customer obtains control of the inventory. Amounts in deferred revenue at period-end reflect
orders for which the inventory was not yet ready for physical transfer to customers.
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Contract liabilities within the Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 28, 2023 and December 29, 2022 primarily consisted of deferred revenue as well as
amounts in accrued expenses and other current liabilities related to the Pro Premier Rewards loyalty program and unredeemed gift cards. As of December 28, 2023, contract
liabilities totaled $69.6 million and included $45.6 million of loyalty program liabilities, $12.7 million of unredeemed gift cards, and $11.3 million of deferred revenue. As of
December 29, 2022, contract liabilities totaled $57.0 million and included $33.8 million of loyalty program liabilities, $13.1 million of unredeemed gift cards, and $10.1 million
of deferred revenue. Of the contract liabilities outstanding as of December 29, 2022, approximately $18.0 million was recognized in revenue during fiscal 2023.

Disaggregated Revenue

The Company has one reportable segment. The following table presents the net sales of each major product category for each of the last three fiscal years:

Fiscal Year Ended

December 28, December 29, December 30,
in thousands 2023 2022 2021
% of % of % of

Product Category Net Sales Net Sales Net Sales Net Sales Net Sales Net Sales
Laminate and vinyl $ 1,153,476 26% $ 1,184,636 28% $ 876,714 26 %
Tile 1,033,830 23 963,999 23 801,101 23
Installation materials and tools 828,601 19 713,127 17 558,721 16
Decorative accessories and wall tile 743,571 17 744,888 17 642,697 19
Wood 258,359 6 274,528 6 259,637 8
Natural stone 208,286 5 212,167 5 199,140 6
Adjacent categories 83,525 2 69,820 2 54,482 1
Other (1) 104,236 2 101,308 2 41,041 1

Total $ 4,413,884 100 % $ 4,264,473 100 % $ 3,433,533 100 %

(1) Other includes delivery, sample, and other product revenue and adjustments for deferred revenue, sales returns reserves, and other revenue related adjustments that are not allocated on a
product-category basis.

3. Accrued Expenses and Other Current Liabilities

Accrued expenses and other current liabilities as of December 28, 2023 and December 29, 2022 consisted of the following:

December 28, December 29,

in thousands 2023 2022
Accrued construction in progress $ 102,163 $ 72,737
Loyalty program liability 45,645 33,818
Wages and payroll taxes payable 28,762 26,415
Sales returns and allowances 27,406 33,284
Sales taxes payable 24,064 25,253
Accrued incentive compensation 22,417 23,561
Insurance reserve incurred but not reported 21,650 19,635
Unredeemed gift cards 12,668 13,082
Other 48,165 50,234

Accrued expenses and other current liabilities $ 332,940 § 298,019
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4. Fixed Assets

Fixed assets as of December 28, 2023 and December 29, 2022 consisted of the following:

December 28, December 29,

in thousands 2023 2022
Leasehold improvements $ 758,462 § 653,151
Buildings and improvements (1) 567,926 315,343
Furniture, fixtures, and equipment 451,142 350,556
Computer software and hardware 209,199 158,519
Land 97,361 86,927
Construction in process 168,198 145,709
Fixed assets, at cost 2,252,288 1,710,205
Less: accumulated depreciation and amortization 622,371 452,149

Fixed assets, net $ 1,629,917 $ 1,258,056

(1) Represents buildings and improvements on land that the Company owns as well as on land that the Company is leasing through ground leases.

Depreciation and amortization on fixed assets for the fiscal years ended December 28, 2023, December 29, 2022, and December 30, 2021 was $195.8 million, $149.6
million, and $113.4 million, respectively.

5. Intangible Assets

Goodwill and changes in the carrying amount of goodwill are as follows for the periods presented:

December 28, December 29,
in thousands 2023 2022
Goodwill, balance at beginning of year $ 255473 $ 255,473
Acquisition (1) 2,467 _
Goodwill, balance at end of year $ 257,940 $ 255,473

(1) Reflects goodwill related to the Salesmaster acquisition completed in fiscal 2023. See Note 15, “Acquisitions” for additional details.

The gross carrying amount and accumulated amortization of other intangible assets as of December 28, 2023 and December 29, 2022 are as follows:

December 28, 2023 December 29, 2022
Gross carrying Accumulated Gross carrying Accumulated

in thousands amount (1) amortization Net carrying value amount (1) amortization Net carrying value
Amortizable intangible assets:
Customer relationships $ 43216 $ (8,147) $ 35,069 $ 38,216 $ (4,728) $ 33,488
Non-compete agreement 300 (169) 131 300 (104) 196

Total amortizable intangible assets 43,516 (8,316) 35,200 38,516 (4,832) 33,684
Indefinite-lived intangible assets:
Trade names 118,669 — 118,669 118,669 — 118,669

Total intangible assets $ 162,185 $ (8,316) $ 153,869 $ 157,185 § (4,832) $ 152,353

(1) Refer to Note 15, “Acquisitions” for details related to intangible assets acquired during fiscal 2023 and fiscal 2022.

Amortization expense related to amortizable intangible assets was $3.5 million, $3.1 million, and $1.7 million for the fiscal years ended December 28, 2023,
December 29, 2022, and December 30, 2021, respectively, and was included within general and administrative expenses on the Company’s Consolidated Statements of
Operations and Comprehensive Income.
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As of December 28, 2023, the estimated aggregate future amortizable expense related to other intangible assets is as follows:

in thousands
2024
2025
2026
2027
2028
Thereafter
Total

6. Income Taxes

The components of income tax expense are as follows:

in thousands
Current expense:
Federal
State
Total current expense
Deferred expense (benefit):
Federal
State
Total deferred expense (benefit)

Income tax expense

Amount
$ 3,667
3,667
3,601
3,601
3,601
17,063
S 35200

Fiscal Year Ended
December 28, December 29, December 30,

2023 2022 2021
29,737 $ 73,463 $ 37,869
12,092 16,489 9,927
41,829 89,952 47,796
24,792 (78) 4,853
(1,070) (2,447) (1,811)
23,722 (2,525) 3,042
65,551 $ 87,427 $ 50,838

The following is a summary of the differences between the total income tax expense as shown on the financial statements and the income tax expense that would result
from applying the federal statutory tax rate of 21% for the fiscal years ended December 28, 2023, December 29, 2022, and December 30, 2021 to income before income taxes:

in thousands
Computed “expected” income tax expense at statutory rate
State income taxes, net of federal income tax benefit (1)
Permanent differences:
Excess tax benefit related to stock-based compensation awards
Other
Total permanent differences
Provision to return
Federal tax credits
Uncertain tax positions
Other, net

Income tax expense

Fiscal Year Ended
December 28, December 29, December 30,
2023 2022 2021

65421 $ 80,984 §$ 70,154
8,824 11,744 6,186
(8,748) (3,762) (25,710)
1,714 874 908
(7,034) (2,888) (24,802)
578 183 (34)
(2,019) (1,535) (1,471)
— (848) 308

(219) (213) 497
65,551 $ 87,427 $ 50,838

(1) Includes state excess tax benefits related to stock-based compensation awards for fiscal years 2023, 2022, and 2021 of $1.8 million, $0.8 million, and $4.6 million, respectively.
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The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to significant portions of the deferred income tax assets and (liabilities) are presented below:

Fiscal Year Ended
December 28, December 29,

in thousands 2023 2022
Deferred tax assets:

Lease liabilities $ 362,958 $ 339,972

Accruals not currently deductible for tax purposes 20,072 16,014

Inventories 10,596 10,337

Stock-based compensation 10,039 11,320

Other intangibles 6,289 4,187

Gift card liability 3,109 3,206

Other 2,918 2,608
Total deferred tax assets 415,981 387,644
Deferred tax liabilities:

Right-of-use assets (322,033) (302,008)

Fixed assets (113,130) (85,621)

Intangible assets (27,493) (27,430)

Other (6,286) (2,840)
Total deferred tax liabilities (468,942) (417,899)
Net deferred tax liabilities $ (52,961) § (30,255)

The Company utilized no tax-effected state net operating losses in fiscal 2023, and $1.3 million of tax-effected state net operating losses in fiscal 2022. As of
December 28, 2023, approximately $0.7 million of tax-effected state net operating losses were available to reduce future income taxes. The state net operating losses expire in
various amounts beginning in fiscal 2032.

In assessing the realization of deferred tax assets, including net operating losses, management considered whether it is more likely than not that some portion or all the
deferred tax assets will not be realized. The ultimate realization of deferred tax assets is dependent upon the generation of future taxable income during the periods in which
those temporary differences become deductible. Management considers taxable income in prior carryback periods, future reversals of existing taxable temporary differences,
tax planning strategies, and future taxable income exclusive of reversing temporary differences and carryforwards in making this assessment, and accordingly, has concluded
that no valuation allowance is necessary as of December 28, 2023 or December 29, 2022.

The Company files income tax returns with the U.S. Federal government and various state jurisdictions. Prior tax years beginning in year 2020 remain open to
examination by the Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”). Foreign, state, and local income tax returns are generally subject to examination for a period of three to five years after
filing of the respective returns.

There was no unrecognized tax benefit activity in fiscal 2023. The following is a reconciliation of the beginning and ending balance of unrecognized tax benefits for
fiscal years 2022 and 2021:

Fiscal Year Ended

December 29, December 30,
in thousands 2022 2021
Unrecognized tax benefits balance at beginning of fiscal year $ 1,073 $ 6,107
Additions based on tax positions related to the current year — 390
Reductions due to settlements — (5,424)
Reductions for tax positions of prior years (1,073) —
Unrecognized tax benefits balance at end of fiscal year $ — 1,073

As of December 28, 2023 and December 29, 2022, there were no unrecognized tax benefits that, if recognized, would affect the Company's effective tax rate. The
Company's policy is to classify interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits in income tax expense. The Company recognized no interest expense related to
unrecognized tax benefits during fiscal years 2023, 2022, or 2021.
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7. Fair Value Measurements

As of December 28, 2023 and December 29, 2022, the Company had certain financial assets and liabilities on its Consolidated Balance Sheets that were required to be
measured at fair value on a recurring or non-recurring basis. The estimated fair values of financial assets and liabilities such as cash and cash equivalents, receivables, prepaid
expenses and other current assets, other assets, accounts payable, and accrued expenses and other current liabilities approximate their respective carrying values as reported
within the Consolidated Balance Sheets. Refer to Note 1, “Summary of Significant Accounting Policies” and Note 15, “Acquisitions” for a discussion of the valuation of
goodwill and intangible assets, respectively. See Note 10, “Debt” for discussion of the fair value of the Company’s debt.

Recurring Fair Value Measurements

As of December 28, 2023, the contingent earn-out liabilities had an aggregate estimated fair value of $11.1 million, of which $5.9 million is included in accrued
expenses and other current liabilities and $5.2 million is included in other liabilities within the Consolidated Balance Sheets. The Company’s contingent earn-out liabilities are
classified as Level 3 within the fair value hierarchy due to the use of unobservable inputs that are significant to their respective valuations. For the fiscal year ended
December 28, 2023, $2.6 million was recognized in general and administrative expense within the Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income related
to increases in the fair value of the contingent earn-out liabilities. The table below summarizes changes in contingent earn-out liabilities during the fiscal year ended
December 28, 2023.

Contingent Earn-

in thousands out Liabilities

Balance at December 29, 2022 $ 11,019
Acquisition (1) 2,750
Fair value adjustments 2,609
Payments (5,241)
Balance at December 28, 2023 $ 11,137

(1)  During the fiscal year ended December 28, 2023, the Company acquired a seller of commercial surfaces for total consideration of $20.1 million, including $17.4 million of cash and
contingent earn-out consideration with an estimated fair value of $2.8 million. The estimated fair value of the contingent earn-out consideration was determined using a discounted cash flow
model which included significant unobservable inputs related to projected revenue and gross margin. Payout of the contingent consideration is subject to the acquired company s achievement
of certain annual gross margin and gross profit targets in fiscal years 2023 through 2025. A portion of these earn-out opportunities is payable each year only to the extent the applicable
performance targets for that year are met, with a maximum potential payout of $4.0 million requiring that each of the individual annual targets are achieved. Refer to Note 15, “Acquisitions”
for additional information.

The Company determined the fair value of the portion of the contingent earn-out liabilities related to the fiscal 2021 acquisition of Spartan with assistance from a
third-party valuation specialist using a Monte Carlo valuation method with significant unobservable inputs, including the following weighted-average assumptions as of
December 28, 2023, and December 29, 2022:

December 28, December 29,
2023 2022
Discount rate 13.0% 13.5%
Revenue volatility 21.0% 18.6%
EBITDA volatility 40.0% 35.0%

Interest Rate Cap Contracts

The Company has outstanding interest rate cap contracts that were valued primarily using Level 2 inputs based on data readily observable in public markets. The
Company's interest rate cap contracts were negotiated with counterparties without going through a public exchange. Accordingly, the Company's fair value assessments for
these derivative contracts gave consideration to the risk of counterparty default as well as the Company's own credit risk. As of December 28, 2023 and December 29, 2022, the
total fair value of the Company's interest rate cap contracts was approximately $1.8 million and $5.9 million, respectively, which are presented as a component of accumulated
other comprehensive income (“AOCI”) within stockholders’ equity on the Consolidated Balance Sheets net of tax of $0.4 million and $1.4 million, respectively.

Non-recurring Fair Value Measurements

Except for the acquisition-related fair value measurements described in Note 15, “Acquisitions,” there were no assets or liabilities as of December 28, 2023 or
December 29, 2022 that resulted from fair value measurements made on a non-recurring basis.

63



Table of Contents

8. Derivatives and Risk Management
Interest Rate Risk

The Company’s exposure to market risk from adverse changes in interest rates is primarily associated with its long-term debt obligations, which carry variable interest
rates. Market risk associated with the Company’s variable interest rate long-term debt relates to the potential negative impact to future earnings and cash flows from an increase
in interest rates.

In an effort to manage exposure to the risk associated with variable interest rate long term debt, the Company periodically enters into interest rate derivative contracts.
These interest rate derivative contracts are used to convert the interest rate exposure on a portion of the Company’s debt portfolio from a floating rate to a capped rate and are
designated as cash flow hedges.

Derivative Position as of December 28, 2023:

Final Maturity Other Current Other AOCI, Net
in thousands Notional Balance Date Assets Assets of Tax
Designated as cash flow hedges:
Interest rate cap $ 75,000  U.S. dollars April 2024 $ 909 $ — S (711)
Interest rate cap $ 75,000  U.S. dollars April 2024 $ 910 $ — 3 (711)
Derivative Position as of December 29, 2022:
Final Maturity Other Current Other AOCI, Net
in thousands Notional Balance Date Assets Assets of Tax
Designated as cash flow hedges:
Interest rate cap $ 75,000  U.S. dollars April 2024 $ 2275 § 654 $ (2,166)
Interest rate cap $ 75,000  U.S. dollars April 2024 $ 2,278 $ 656 $ (2,171)
Designated Hedge Gains
Gains related to designated hedge contracts are as follows:
Effective Portion Reclassified Effective Portion Recognized in
From AOCI to Earnings Other Comprehensive Income
Fiscal Year Ended Fiscal Year Ended
December 28, December 29, December 30, December 28, December 29, December 30,
in thousands 2023 2022 2021 2023 2022 2021
Interest rate caps (cash flow hedges) $ 5,069 $ 914 $ — 3 2,154 § 4,716 $ 371

Credit Risk

To manage credit risk associated with the Company’s interest rate hedges, the Company selects counterparties based on their credit ratings and limits exposure to any
one counterparty.

The counterparties to the Company’s derivative contracts are financial institutions with investment grade credit ratings. To manage credit risk related to its derivative
financial instruments, the Company periodically monitors the credit risk of its counterparties, limits its exposure in the aggregate and to any single counterparty, and adjust its
hedging positions, as appropriate. The impact of credit risk, as well as the ability of each party to fulfill its obligations under the derivative financial instruments, is considered
in determining the fair value of the contracts. Credit risk has not had a significant effect on the fair value of the Company’s derivative contracts. The Company’s derivative
financial instruments do not have any credit risk-related contingent features or collateral requirements.
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9. Commitments and Contingencies
Lease Commitments

The Company accounts for leases in accordance with ASC 842. The majority of the Company’s long-term operating lease agreements are for its retail locations,
distribution centers, and corporate office, which expire in various years through 2049. Most of these agreements are retail leases wherein both the land and building are leased.
The Company also has ground leases in which only the land is leased. The initial lease terms for the Company's retail locations, distribution centers, and corporate office
typically range from 10-20 years. The majority of the Company’s leases also include options to extend, which are factored into the recognition of their respective assets and
liabilities when appropriate based on management’s assessment of the probability that the options will be exercised. Lease payments used in measurement of the lease liability
typically do not include executory costs, such as taxes, insurance, and maintenance, unless those costs can be reasonably estimated at lease commencement. Additionally, one
building lease contains variable lease payments, which are determined based on a percentage of retail sales over a contractual level, and the Company subleases real estate
within one of its distribution centers to a third party. Certain of the lease agreements include escalating rents over the lease terms, which, under ASC 842, results in rent being
expensed on a straight-line basis over the life of the lease that commences on the date the Company has the right to control the property. The Company’s lease agreements do
not contain any residual value guarantees or restrictive covenants that would reasonably be expected to have a material impact on the business.

When readily determinable, the rate implicit in the lease is used to discount lease payments to present value; however, substantially all of the Company’s leases do not
provide a readily determinable implicit rate. If the rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable, the Company uses a third party to assist in the determination of a secured
incremental borrowing rate, determined on a collateralized basis, to discount lease payments based on information available at lease commencement. The secured incremental
borrowing rate is estimated based on yields obtained from Bloomberg for U.S. consumers with a BB credit rating and is adjusted for collateralization as well as inflation. As of
December 28, 2023 and December 29, 2022, the Company’s weighted average discount rate was 5.7% and 5.4%, respectively. As of both December 28, 2023 and
December 29, 2022, the weighted average remaining lease term of the Company’s leases was approximately 12 years.

Lease Costs
The table below presents components of lease expense for operating leases.

Fiscal Year Ended

December 28, December 29, December 30,
in thousands Classification 2023 2022 2021
Fixed operating lease cost: Selling and store operating $ 157,106 $ 139,603 $ 123,882
Cost of sales 24,058 25,465 24,170
Pre-opening 15,171 9,971 10,127
General and administrative 4,161 4,622 4,359
Total fixed operating lease cost $ 200,496 $ 179,661 $ 162,538
Variable lease cost (1): Selling and store operating $ 57,527 $ 49,605 $ 42,093
Cost of sales 4,009 3,894 5,506
Pre-opening 976 666 274
General and administrative 1,420 787 310
Total variable lease cost $ 63,932 § 54,952 § 48,183
Sublease income Cost of sales (2,722) (2,722) (2,694)
Total operating lease cost (2) $ 261,706 $ 231,891 $ 208,027

(1) Includes variable costs for common area maintenance, property taxes, and insurance on leased real estate.

(2) Excludes short-term lease costs, which were immaterial for the fiscal years ended December 28, 2023, December 29, 2022, and December 30, 2021.
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Undiscounted Cash Flows

Future minimum lease payments under non-cancelable operating leases as of December 28, 2023 were as follows:

in thousands Amount
2024 $ 201,830
2025 202,451
2026 189,438
2027 179,514
2028 159,645
Thereafter 1,134,470
Total minimum lease payments (1) (2) 2,067,348
Less: amount of lease payments representing interest 639,166
Present value of future minimum lease payments 1,428,182
Less: current obligations under leases 126,428
Long-term lease obligations $ 1,301,754

(1) Future lease payments exclude approximately $514.0 million of legally binding minimum lease payments for operating leases signed but not yet commenced.

(2) Operating lease payments include $246.7 million related to options to extend lease terms that are reasonably certain of being exercised.

For the fiscal years ended December 28, 2023, December 29, 2022, and December 30, 2021, cash paid for amounts included in the measurement of operating lease
liabilities was $194.0 million, $178.0 million, and $157.9 million, respectively.

Litigation

On November 15, 2021, the Company was added as a defendant in a wrongful death lawsuit, Nguyen v. Inspections Now, Inc., No. 21-DCV-287142, pending in the
434th Judicial District Court of Fort Bend County, Texas. Inspections Now, Inc.; Bestview International Company; and Bestview (Fuzhou) Import & Export Co. LTD are also
named as defendants in the case. Plaintiff’s petition alleges that “wood paneling” allegedly purchased from the Company was installed in the vicinity of plaintiff’s fireplace and
caught fire while the fireplace was lit. The fire consumed plaintiff’s home and resulted in injuries to plaintiff and another occupant and the death of plaintiff’s three children and
mother. Plaintiff alleges product defect and failure to warn claims against the Company; product defect, failure to warn, and strict liability claims against the Bestview entities;
and negligent inspection claims against Inspections Now. Plaintiff’s petition seeks damages in excess of $1.0 million for property damage, personal injury, and wrongful death.
The petition also seeks exemplary damages. Plaintiff’s ex-husband, brother, and the additional occupant have since intervened as plaintiffs in the lawsuit. Intervenors allege the
same claims against the Company, Inspections Now, and the Bestview entities and collectively seek damages in excess of $11.0 million for property damage, personal injury (as
to the other occupant), wrongful death, and exemplary damages. The Company has answered all petitions, denying the allegations, and is seeking dismissal of the lawsuit in
favor of a first-filed lawsuit against other defendants (but arising from the same fire) pending in Harris County, Texas. The trial court denied the Company’s motion seeking
dismissal on February 23, 2023, and on August 29, 2023, the Court of Appeals for the First Judicial District of Texas (in No. 01-23-00225-CV) denied the Company’s petition
for a writ of mandamus challenging the trial court’s ruling. On October 10, 2023, the Company filed a petition seeking mandamus relief from the trial court’s ruling in the
Supreme Court of Texas, No. 23-0845. That petition remains pending.

On June 18, 2020, an alleged stockholder filed a putative derivative complaint, Lincolnshire Police Pension Fund v. Taylor, et al., No. 2020-0487-JTL, in the Delaware
Court of Chancery, purportedly on behalf of the Company against certain of the Company’s officers, directors, and stockholders. An amended complaint was filed on
September 14, 2022. The Company along with the other defendants filed a motion to dismiss on October 31, 2022. The plaintiffs then filed a second amended complaint on
December 22, 2022. On February 6, 2023, the Company, along with the other defendants, filed a motion to dismiss the operative complaint. On December 5, 2023, the Court
denied the defendants’ motion to dismiss, and the case has proceeded to discovery. The complaint alleges breaches of fiduciary duties and unjust enrichment. The factual
allegations underlying these claims are similar to the factual allegations made in the previously dismissed In re Floor & Decor Holdings, Inc. Securities Litigation, as described
in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2020. The complaint seeks unspecified damages and restitution for the Company from the
individual defendants and the payment of costs and attorneys’ fees.
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The Company maintains insurance that may cover any liability arising out of the above-referenced litigation up to the policy limits and subject to meeting certain
deductibles and to other terms and conditions thereof. Estimating an amount or range of possible losses resulting from litigation proceedings is inherently difficult, particularly
where the matters involve indeterminate claims for monetary damages and are in the stages of the proceedings where key factual and legal issues have not been resolved. For
these reasons, the Company is currently unable to predict the ultimate timing or outcome of or reasonably estimate the possible losses or a range of possible losses resulting
from the above-referenced litigation.

The Company is also subject to various other legal actions, claims, and proceedings arising in the ordinary course of business, which may include claims related to
general liability, workers’ compensation, product liability, intellectual property, and employment-related matters resulting from its business activities. As with most actions such
as these, an estimation of any possible and/or ultimate liability cannot always be determined. The Company establishes reserves for specific legal proceedings when it
determines that the likelihood of an unfavorable outcome is probable and the amount of loss can be reasonably estimated. These various other ordinary course proceedings are
not expected to have a material impact on the Company's consolidated financial position, cash flows, or results of operations, however regardless of the outcome, litigation can
have an adverse impact on the Company because of defense and settlement costs, diversion of management resources, and other factors.

10. Debt

The following table summarizes the Company's long-term debt as of December 28, 2023 and December 29, 2022:

Interest Rate Per Annum at December

3 December 28, December 29,
in thousands Maturity Date 2023 (1) 2023 2022
Credit Facilities:
Term Loan Facility February 14, 2027 7.35% Variable $ 202,396 $ 204,499
Asset-based Loan Facility (“ABL Facility”) August 4, 2027 6.61% Variable — 210,200
Total secured debt at par value 202,396 414,699
Less: current maturities 2,103 2,103
Long-term debt maturities 200,293 412,596
Less: unamortized discount and debt issuance costs 5,354 7,045
Total long-term debt $ 194,939 § 405,551

(1) The applicable interest rate for the Term Loan Facility as presented herein does not include the effect of interest rate cap agreements, which caps the applicable interest rate for
$150.0 million of the Term Loan Facility at less than 1.68%.

The following table summarizes scheduled maturities of the Company’s debt as of December 28, 2023:

in thousands Amount

2024 $ 2,103
2025 2,103
2026 2,629
2027 195,561
Total minimum debt payments $ 202,396

Components of interest expense are as follows for the periods presented:

Fiscal Year Ended
December 28, December 29, December 30,
in thousands 2023 2022 2021
Total interest costs, net of interest income (1) $ 16,905 $ 14,942 $ 7,657
Less: interest capitalized 7,008 3,804 2,733
Interest expense, net $ 9,897 $ 11,138 § 4,924

(1) Total interest costs, net of interest income includes interest income related to the Company s interest rate cap agreements totaling $5.1 million during fiscal 2023 and $0.9 million during
fiscal 2022, respectively. No interest income was recognized related to the Company S interest cap agreements in fiscal 2021. Refer to Note 8, “Derivatives and Risk Management” for
additional details related to the Company s interest rate cap agreements.
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Term Loan Facility

The Term Loan Facility bears interest at a rate equal to either (a) a base rate determined by reference to the highest of (1) the “Prime Rate,” (2) the U.S. federal funds
rate plus 0.5% and (3) one-month Term Secured Overnight Financing Rate (“SOFR”) plus 1.0%, or (b) Adjusted Term SOFR, plus, in each case, the applicable margin (each
term as defined in the Term Loan Facility credit agreement). The applicable margin base rate loans will be between 1.00% and 1.25%, and the applicable margin for SOFR
loans will be between 2.00% and 2.25% (subject to a floor of 0.00%), in each case, if the Company exceeds certain leverage ratio tests.

All obligations under the Term Loan Facility are secured by (1) a first-priority security interest in substantially all of the property and assets of Outlets and the other
guarantors under the Term Loan Facility, with certain exceptions, and (2) a second-priority security interest in the collateral securing the ABL Facility.

ABL Facility

As of December 28, 2023, the Company's ABL Facility had a maximum availability of $800.0 million with actual available borrowings limited to the sum, at the time
of calculation, of (a) eligible credit card receivables multiplied by the credit card advance rate, plus (b) the cost of eligible inventory, net of inventory reserves, multiplied by the
applicable appraisal percentage, plus (c) 85% of eligible net trade receivables, plus (d) all eligible cash on hand, plus (¢) 100% of the amount for which the eligible letter of
credit must be honored after giving effect to any draws, minus certain Availability Reserves (each component as defined in the ABL Facility). The ABL Facility is available for
issuance of letters of credit and contains a sublimit of $50.0 million for standby letters of credit and commercial letters of credit combined. Available borrowings under the
facility are reduced by the face amount of outstanding letters of credit. The Company’s ABL Facility allows for the Company, under certain circumstances, to increase the size
of the facility by an additional amount up to $200.0 million.

All obligations under the ABL Facility are secured by (1) a first-priority security interest in the cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, inventory, and related
assets of Outlets and the other guarantors under the ABL Facility, with certain exceptions, and (2) a second-priority security interest in substantially all of the other property and
assets of Outlets and the other guarantors under the Term Loan Facility.

As of December 28, 2023, net availability under the ABL Facility was $718.4 million as reduced by letters of credit of $35.3 million.
Covenants

The credit agreements governing the Term Loan Facility and ABL Facility contain customary restrictive covenants, which, among other things and with certain
exceptions, limit the Company’s ability to (i) incur additional indebtedness and liens in connection with such indebtedness, (ii) pay dividends and make certain other restricted
payments, (iii) effect mergers or consolidations, (iv) enter into transactions with affiliates, (v) sell or dispose of property or assets, and (vi) engage in unrelated lines of business.
In addition, these credit agreements subject the Company to certain reporting obligations and require that the Company satisfy certain financial covenants, including, among
other things, a requirement that if borrowings under the ABL Facility exceed 90% of availability, the Company will maintain a certain fixed charge coverage ratio (defined as
Consolidated EBITDA less non-financed capital expenditures and income taxes paid to consolidated fixed charges, in each case as more fully defined in the ABL Facility).

The Term Loan Facility has no financial maintenance covenants. The Company is currently in compliance with all covenants under the credit agreements.
Deferred Debt Issuance Costs and Original Issue Discounts

Deferred debt issuance costs related to the ABL Facility were approximately $1.7 million as of December 28, 2023 and $2.2 million as of December 29, 2022 and are
included in other assets on the Consolidated Balance Sheets. Deferred debt issuance costs and original issue discounts related to the Term Loan Facility were $5.4 million as of
December 28, 2023 and $7.0 million as of December 29, 2022 and are included in term loan on the Consolidated Balance Sheets. For the fiscal years ended December 28,
2023, December 29, 2022, and December 30, 2021, deferred debt issuance and original issue discount amortization expense was $2.2 million, $2.0 million, and $1.9 million,
respectively, and is included in interest expense, net on the Company’s Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income.
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Fair Value of Debt

Market risk associated with the Company’s long-term debt relates to the potential change in fair value and negative impact to future earnings, respectively, from a
change in interest rates. The aggregate fair value of debt is based primarily on the Company’s estimates of interest rates, maturities, credit risk, and underlying collateral. The
estimated fair values and classifications within the fair value hierarchy of the Term Loan Facility and the ABL Facility were as follows as of December 28, 2023 and
December 29, 2022:

Fair Value

Hierarchy December 28, December 29,
in thousands Classification 2023 2022
Term Loan Facility Level 3 $ 201,637 $ 196,575
ABL Facility Level 2 — 210,200
Total $ 201,637 $ 406,775

The Term Loan Facility fair value is classified as Level 3 within the fair value hierarchy due to the use of unobservable inputs significant to the valuation, including
indicative pricing from counterparties and discounted cash flow methods. The carrying amount of the borrowings under the ABL Facility approximates fair value as the ABL
Facility variable interest rates are based on prevailing market rates, which are a Level 2 input.

11. Stockholders’ Equity
Common Stock

The Company has three classes of common stock: Class A, Class B, and Class C. The holders of Class A common stock, Class B common stock, and Class C common
stock are entitled to share equally, on a per share basis, in dividends or other distributions. Class A common stockholders are entitled to one vote per share held. Class B and
Class C common stockholders have no voting rights, except as otherwise provided by law. In the event of the voluntary liquidation or dissolution of the Company, each class of
stock will share equally, on a per share basis, in all the assets of the Company that are available for distribution to stockholders.

Stock Incentive Plans

On January 13, 2011, the Company adopted the 2011 Stock Option Plan (as amended, restated, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time, the “2011
Plan”) to provide for the grant of stock options to employees (including officers), consultants and non-employee directors of the Company and its subsidiaries. Pursuant to the
terms of the 2011 Plan, the Company was authorized to grant options for the purchase of up to 12,520,407 shares as of December 29, 2016 and 10,780,970 shares as of
December 31, 2015. As of December 29, 2016 and December 31, 2015, there were 179,575 and 104,269 shares available for grant pursuant to awards under the 2011 Plan,
respectively. The Company ceased granting awards under the 2011 Plan upon the implementation of the 2017 Plan (as defined below).

On April 13,2017, the board of directors approved the Floor & Decor Holdings, Inc. 2017 Stock Incentive Plan (the “2017 Plan”), which was subsequently approved
by the Company’s stockholders. The 2017 Plan authorizes the Company to grant equity awards, including options, restricted stock units, restricted stock awards, and other
stock-based awards to eligible employees (including officers), consultants, and non-employee directors up to an aggregate of 5,000,000 shares of Class A common stock.

On May 10, 2023, the Company amended the 2017 Plan to authorize the Company to grant equity awards, including options, restricted stock units, restricted stock
awards, and other stock-based awards to eligible employees (including officers), consultants, and non-employee directors up to an aggregate of 9,000,000 shares of Class A
common stock. As of December 28, 2023 and December 29, 2022, there were 5,187,323 and 1,745,649 shares available for grant pursuant to awards under the 2017 Plan,
respectively.

Stock-based Compensation

In accordance with ASC 718, the Company measures compensation cost for all stock-based awards at fair value on the date of grant and recognizes compensation
expense, net of forfeitures, using the straight-line method over the requisite service period of awards expected to vest, which for each of the awards is the service vesting period.
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The table below presents components of stock-based compensation expense within the Company’s Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive
Income:

Fiscal Year Ended

December 28, December 29, December 30,
in thousands 2023 2022 2021
General and administrative $ 25,095 $ 21,665 $ 20,528
Selling and store operating 2,145 568 —
Total stock-based compensation expense $ 27,240 $ 22233 §$ 20,528

Stock Options

Stock options are granted with an exercise price equal to the closing price of the Company’s Class A common stock on the date of grant, as authorized by the
Company’s board of directors or compensation committee. Options granted have contractual terms of ten years and vesting provisions ranging from one year to five years.
Stock option grants are generally subject to forfeiture if employment terminates prior to vesting.

No stock options were granted during fiscal years 2023 or 2022. During fiscal year 2021, stock option award grant date fair values were estimated using the Black-
Scholes-Merton option pricing model with the following weighted-average assumptions:

Fiscal Year Ended

December 30,

2021

Weighted average fair value per stock option $ 41.75
Risk-free interest rate 0.80%
Expected volatility 48%

Expected life (in years) 5.40
Dividend yield —%

The Company determines the grant date fair value of stock options with assistance from a third-party valuation specialist. The risk-free interest rate is based on the
term structure of interest rates at the time of the option grant and is determined using the risk-free interest rate on the yield of a zero coupon U.S. Treasury security with a
maturity equal to the expected life of the option from the date of the grant. Expected volatility is estimated based on the historical volatility of the Company’s Class A common
stock since its initial public offering in 2017 as well as the historical volatility of the common stock of similar public entities. The Company considers various factors in
determining the appropriateness of the public entities used in determining expected volatility, including the entity's life cycle stage, industry, growth profile, size, financial
leverage, and products offered. To determine the expected life of the options granted, the Company relies upon a combination of the observed exercise behavior of prior grants
with similar characteristics and the contractual terms and vesting schedules of the current grants. The Company estimates the dividend yield to be zero as it does not intend to
pay dividends during the respective lives of the options.

The table below summarizes stock option activity for the fiscal year ended December 28, 2023:

Weighted Weighted Average
Average Remaining
Exercise Contractual Life Aggregate Intrinsic
Options Price (Years) Value (in thousands)
Outstanding at December 30, 2022 2,101,559 $ 27.10
Exercised (491,056) $ 22.32
Forfeited or expired (3,162) $ 56.55
Outstanding at December 28, 2023 1,607,341 § 28.51 39 §$ 137,326
Vested and exercisable at December 28, 2023 1,521,654 $ 26.11 38 $ 133,569

The fair value of stock options vested during the fiscal years ended December 28, 2023, December 29, 2022, and December 30, 2021 was $3.0 million, $7.9 million,
and $8.8 million, respectively. The aggregate intrinsic value of stock options exercised was $37.9 million, $20.4 million, and $126.6 million for the fiscal years ended
December 28, 2023, December 29, 2022, and December 30, 2021, respectively.
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The Company’s total unrecognized compensation cost related to stock options as of December 28, 2023 and December 29, 2022 was $1.0 million and $3.3 million,
respectively. The unrecognized compensation cost remaining as of December 28, 2023 is expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of 0.9 years.

Restricted Stock Units

The Company periodically grants restricted stock units (“RSUs”) that represent an unfunded, unsecured right to receive a share of the Company’s Class A common
stock upon vesting. During the fiscal year ended December 28, 2023, the Company granted RSUs to certain employees, executive officers, and non-employee directors
comprised of service-based RSUs, performance-based RSUs, and total shareholder return (“TSR”) awards. Service-based RSUs vest based on the grantee’s continued service
through the vesting date. The performance-based RSUs cliff vest based on (i) the Company's achievement of predetermined financial metrics at the end of a three-year
performance period and (ii) the grantee’s continued service through the vesting date. Depending on the performance-based RSU grant and the extent to which the relevant
performance goals are achieved, the number of common shares earned upon vesting may range from either 0% to 150% or 0% to 200% of the award granted. The TSR awards
cliff vest based on (i) the Company's relative TSR compared to a specified peer group and (ii) the grantee's continued service through the vesting date. The number of common
shares earned upon vesting of the TSR awards may range from 0% to 150% of the TSR awards granted with no vesting above the target awards amount if the Company’s three-
year absolute TSR is negative. The Company assesses the probability of achieving all performance goals on a quarterly basis. The service periods for RSUs granted during the
period varies by grantee and ranges between approximately two to four years from the grant date.

The following table summarizes restricted stock unit activity during the fiscal year ended December 28, 2023:

Restricted Stock Units

Service-based Performance-based Total shareholder return
Weighted Average ‘Weighted Average ‘Weighted Average
Grant Date Fair Grant Date Fair Grant Date Fair
Shares Value Shares Value Shares Value

Unvested at December 30, 2022 408,829 $ 88.85 36,117 $ 95.62 — 3 —
Granted 378,839 § 90.60 188,543 $ 90.38 58,854 § 104.67
Vested (150,897) $ 86.96 — 3 — = —
Forfeited (28,631) $ 88.92 36,117) $ 95.62 — 3 —
Unvested at December 28, 2023 608,140 § 90.40 188,543 3 90.38 58,854 § 104.67

The grant-date fair value of service-based RSUs and performance-based RSUs is based on the closing market price of the Company’s Class A common stock on the
date of grant. The grant-date fair value of TSR awards is estimated using a Monte Carlo valuation method, which included the following assumptions for TSR awards granted
during the period:

Fiscal Year Ended
December 28,
2023
Expected term (in years) 2.8
Risk-free interest rate 4.5%
Expected volatility 49.5 %
Dividend yield — %

The total unrecognized compensation cost related to restricted stock units as of December 28, 2023 and December 29, 2022 was $42.8 million and $26.0 million,
respectively. The unrecognized compensation cost remaining as of December 28, 2023 is expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of 2.1 years.

The total fair value of restricted stock units that vested during the fiscal years ended December 28, 2023, December 29, 2022, and December 30, 2021 was $13.7
million, $5.3 million, and $2.9 million, respectively.
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Restricted Stock Awards

The following table summarizes restricted stock award activity during the fiscal year ended December 28, 2023 (no restricted stock awards were granted during fiscal

2023):
Restricted Stock Awards

Service-based Performance-based (1) Total shareholder return (1)

‘Weighted Average ‘Weighted Average ‘Weighted Average
Grant Date Fair Grant Date Fair Grant Date Fair

Shares Value Shares Value Shares Value
Unvested at December 30, 2022 103,326 $ 59.18 134,318 $ 57.70 87,517 $ 44.28
Vested (68,543) $ 55.57 (86,656) $ 57.70 (56,461) $ 44.28
Unvested at December 28, 2023 34783 $ 66.30 47,602 3 57.70 31,056 s 44.28

(1) The performance-based and total shareholder return restricted stock awards that vested during the period were issued at 100% of target based on achievement of the predetermined
performance and total shareholder return criteria as specified in the underlying grant agreements.

The fair value of performance-based and service-based restricted stock awards is based on the closing market price of the Company's Class A common stock on the
date of grant. The fair value of the total shareholder return awards is estimated on grant date using the Monte Carlo valuation method. Compensation cost for restricted stock
awards is recognized using the straight-line method over the requisite service period, which for each of the awards is the service vesting period. As of December 28, 2023 and
December 29, 2022, total unrecognized compensation cost related to unvested restricted stock awards was $0.7 million and $3.2 million, respectively. The unrecognized
compensation cost remaining as of December 28, 2023 is expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of 0.8 years.

The total fair value of restricted stock awards that vested during the fiscal years ended December 28, 2023, December 29, 2022, and December 30, 2021 was $19.2
million, $2.2 million, and $1.4 million, respectively.

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

The Employee Stock Purchase Plan (the “ESPP”) is a tax-qualified plan under Section 423 of the Internal Revenue Code and permits eligible employees to purchase
shares of the Company’s common stock through payroll deductions, subject to certain limitations. The Company has designated a purchase price per share of common stock
acquired under the ESPP at the lesser of 90% of the lower of the fair market value of its common stock on either the first or last trading day of each six-month offering period.
There are 1,500,000 shares of the Company’s Class A common stock, par value $0.001 per share, approved for issuance under the ESPP, 83,686, 62,274, and 46,273 of which
were issued during fiscal years 2023, 2022, and 2021, respectively. During fiscal years 2023, 2022, and 2021, the Company recognized stock-based compensation expense
related to the ESPP totaling $1.3 million, $1.2 million, and $1.0 million, respectively.

Deferred Compensation Plan

In October 2019, the Company adopted the 2019 Director Nonqualified Excess Plan (the “Plan”) to provide for certain employees or independent contractors of the
employer (including directors) to elect to defer compensation, including restricted stock grants, until they separate from service. The Plan is intended to be a nonqualified
deferred compensation plan that complies with the provisions of Section 409A of the Internal Revenue Code and is effective for compensation starting in fiscal 2020. Deferrals
and related compensation expense under the Plan were immaterial in fiscal years 2023, 2022, and 2021.

12. Earnings Per Share
Net Income per Common Share

The Company calculates basic earnings per share by dividing net income by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the period. Diluted
earnings per share is computed by dividing net income by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding adjusted for the dilutive effect of share-based awards
using the treasury stock method.
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The following table shows the computation of basic and diluted earnings per share for the periods presented:
Fiscal Year Ended

December 28, December 29, December 30,

in thousands, except per share data 2023 2022 2021

Net income $ 245980 $ 298,195 $ 283,230
Basic weighted average shares outstanding 106,264 105,626 104,683
Dilutive effect of share-based awards 1,618 1,817 2,707
Diluted weighted average shares outstanding 107,882 107,443 107,390
Basic earnings per share $ 231 § 282 § 2.71
Diluted earnings per share $ 228 $ 2.78 $ 2.64

The following potentially dilutive securities were excluded from the computation of diluted earnings per share as a result of their anti-dilutive effect:

Fiscal Year Ended

December 28, December 29, December 30,
in thousands 2023 2022 2021
Stock options 55 69 71
Restricted stock units 12 267 —
13. Selected Quarterly Financial Information (unaudited)
The following tables present the Company’s unaudited quarterly results for fiscal 2023 and fiscal 2022.
Fiscal 2023
in thousands, except per share data First Quarter Second Quarter Third Quarter Fourth Quarter
Net sales $ 1,122,052 $ 1,135,899 $ 1,107,812 $ 1,048,121
Gross profit $ 469,118 $ 479,633 §$ 467,455 $ 442,142
Net income $ 71,524 $ 71,452 $ 65,923 § 37,081
Basic earnings per share $ 067 § 067 § 062 $ 0.35
Diluted earnings per share $ 0.66 $ 0.66 $ 0.61 $ 0.34
Fiscal 2022

in thousands, except per share data First Quarter Second Quarter Third Quarter Fourth Quarter
Net sales $ 1,028,734 $ 1,089,846 $ 1,097,824 $ 1,048,069
Gross profit $ 408,058 $ 436,282  § 447475 $ 435,901
Net income $ 70,951 $ 81,832 § 76,175 § 69,237
Basic earnings per share $ 0.67 § 078 § 072 § 0.65
Diluted earnings per share $ 066 $ 076 $ 0.71 § 0.64

14. Supply Chain Finance

The Company facilitates supply chain finance programs through financial intermediaries, which provide certain suppliers the option to be paid by the financial
intermediaries earlier than the due date on the applicable invoice. When a supplier utilizes one of the supply chain finance programs and receives an early payment from a
financial intermediary, it takes a discount on the invoice. The Company then pays the financial intermediary the invoice on the original due date. The Company does not
reimburse suppliers for any costs they incur for participation in the program. Supplier participation is voluntary, and there are no assets pledged as security or other forms of
guarantees provided for the committed payment to the financial intermediaries. As a result, all amounts owed to the financial intermediaries are presented as trade accounts
payable in the Consolidated Balance Sheets. Amounts due to the financial intermediaries reflected in trade accounts payable at December 28, 2023 and December 29, 2022
were $114.0 million and $82.5 million, respectively.
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15. Acquisitions

The Company made acquisitions during fiscal 2023, fiscal 2022, and fiscal 2021 to expand its commercial surfaces business which are accounted for in accordance
with ASC 805. The results of operations, financial position, and cash flows related to these acquisitions have been included in the Company’s consolidated financial statements
since their respective acquisition dates. During fiscal 2023 and 2021, the Company recognized business acquisition and integration costs totaling $0.9 million and $3.4 million,
respectively, in general and administrative expenses within the Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income. Business acquisition and integration costs
incurred during fiscal 2022 were immaterial.

Salesmaster

As part of the Company’s continued expansion into commercial surfaces, the Company acquired a seller of commercial surfaces Salesmaster Associates, Inc.
(“Salesmaster”) on June 7, 2023 (“acquisition date”). Total estimated consideration for the acquisition was $20.1 million, including $17.4 million of cash and contingent
consideration with an estimated fair value of $2.8 million (refer to Note 7, “Fair Value Measurements” for additional information regarding the contingent consideration). The
acquisition was accounted for in accordance with ASC 805, and, accordingly, Salesmaster’s results of operations, financial position, and cash flows have been consolidated in
the Company’s consolidated financial statements since the date of acquisition. Net sales and net earnings for fiscal 2023 attributable to Salesmaster since the completion of the
acquisition were immaterial. Results of operations would not be materially different as a result of the acquisition and therefore pro forma information is not presented.
Salesmaster is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Spartan.

In accordance with ASC 805, the Company recorded the following assets and liabilities at their respective estimated acquisition date fair values: $12.1 million of net
working capital consisting primarily of inventory and receivables, $6.0 million of lease right-of-use assets and fixed assets, $5.0 million of customer relationships, $2.5 million
of goodwill, and $5.5 million of operating lease liabilities. The estimated fair value of the customer relationships was determined with assistance from a third-party valuation
specialist using the multi-period excess earnings method and included significant assumptions such as the amount and timing of projected cash flows, growth rates, customer
attrition rates, and discount rates, resulting in a Level 3 classification within the fair value hierarchy. The customer relationships will be amortized over an estimated useful life
of 12 years.

The goodwill arising from the acquisition is primarily attributable to operational synergies and acceleration of growth strategies. The goodwill and intangible assets
from the Salesmaster acquisition are fully deductible for U.S. federal and state tax purposes.

Spartan

On June 4, 2021, the Company acquired 100% of Spartan, a seller of commercial surfaces company for total purchase consideration of $77.7 million. Total purchase
consideration was comprised of the following components at their respective acquisition date fair values: $63.6 million cash, net of cash acquired, $9.1 million of contingent
consideration, and $5.0 million of the Company’s common stock.

The contingent consideration represents the estimated fair value associated with potential earn-out payments to the seller of up to $18.0 million subject to Spartan’s
achievement of certain financial performance targets in fiscal years 2021 through 2024. Of the total earn-out consideration, $9.0 million is related to the achievement of certain
earnings margin targets, and $9.0 million is related to the achievement of certain annual gross profit targets. A portion of these earn-out opportunities is payable each year
subject to achievement of the applicable performance targets for that year, with the maximum payout requiring that each of the individual annual targets are met. Refer to Note
7, “Fair Value Measurements” for additional information regarding the contingent consideration.

Other Sellers of Commercial Surfaces

During fiscal 2022, the Company acquired three small sellers of commercial surfaces for total consideration of $4.6 million, including $3.8 million of cash and
$0.8 million of contingent earn-out consideration. The acquired assets and liabilities were recorded at their estimated fair values and were primarily comprised of $3.3 million
of customer relationships with useful lives of 12 years.

16. Subsequent Event

The Company has interest cap agreements that expire in April 2024 (see Note 8, “Derivatives and Risk Management” for additional details). To reduce interest rate
risk associated with the Company’s Term Loan Facility, the Company entered into an interest rate cap agreement on January 15, 2024 with a notional value of $150.0 million.
The contract is designated as a cash flow hedge. The contract effectively caps SOFR based interest payments on a portion of the Company’s Term Loan Facility at 5.50%
beginning in May 2024 and will continue until the agreement expires in April 2026.
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE.

None.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES.
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Our management, with the participation of our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, has evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and
procedures (as such term is defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act™)) as of the end of the period
covered by this report. Disclosure controls and procedures are designed to provide reasonable assurance that the information required to be disclosed in the reports that we file
or submit under the Exchange Act has been appropriately recorded, processed, summarized and reported on a timely basis and are effective in ensuring that such information is
accumulated and communicated to the Company’s management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate to allow timely decisions
regarding required disclosure. Based on such evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have concluded that, as of December 28, 2023, our disclosure
controls and procedures were effective.

Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining an adequate system of internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and
15d-15(f) under the Exchange Act), pursuant to Rule 13a-15(c) of the Exchange Act. Our internal control over financial reporting is designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with GAAP.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes policies and procedures that: (i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company, (ii) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with GAAP, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company, and (iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition of the
company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Projections of any evaluation of effectiveness for
future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures
may deteriorate.

Under the supervision and with the participation of our management, we assessed the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of December 28,
2023, using the criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO) in Internal Control—Integrated Framework (2013).
Based on this assessment, management concluded that the Company’s internal control over financial reporting was effective as of December 28, 2023.

Ernst & Young LLP, our independent registered public accounting firm, has issued an unqualified opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over financial
reporting as of December 28, 2023, which is included in “Part I, Item 8 - Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.”

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

There have been no changes in our internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) or 15d-15(f) of the Exchange Act) during the fourth quarter
of our fiscal year ended December 28, 2023 that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION.
Rule 10b5-1 Trading Plans

During the fiscal quarter ended December 28, 2023, none of our directors or executive officers adopted or terminated any contract, instruction, or written plan for the
purchase or sale of our securities to satisfy the affirmative defense conditions of Rule 10b5-1(c) or any “non-Rule 10b5-1 trading arrangement.”

ITEM 9C. DISCLOSURE REGARDING FOREIGN JURISDICTIONS THAT PREVENT INSPECTIONS.

Not applicable.
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PART III

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE.

The information required by this Item will be contained in our definitive Proxy Statement in connection with our 2024 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, which will be
filed with the SEC within 120 days after the end of our fiscal year ended December 28, 2023 (the “Proxy Statement”), and is incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION.

The information required by this Item will be set forth in the Proxy Statement and is incorporated herein by reference, under the captions “Director Compensation,”
“Executive Compensation” and “Compensation Discussion and Analysis;” provided, however, that the subsection entitled “Executive Compensation—Compensation
Committee Report” shall not be deemed to be incorporated by reference.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS.

The information required by this Item will be set forth in the Proxy Statement and is incorporated herein by reference, under the captions “Securities Authorized for
Issuance under Equity Compensation Plans” and “Certain Beneficial Owners.”

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE.

The information required by this Item will be set forth in the Proxy Statement and is incorporated herein by reference, under the captions “Certain Relationships and
Related Transactions,” and “Other Board Information—Director Independence.”

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES.

The Information required under this Item will be included in the Proxy Statement and is incorporated herein by reference, under the caption “Ratification of
Appointment of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.”
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PART IV
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES.
(a) Documents filed as part of the Annual Report:
1. Financial Statements filed in Part II, Item 8 of this Annual Report:

Reports of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 28, 2023 and December 29, 2022

Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income for the fiscal years ended December 28, 2023, December 29, 2022, and December 30, 2021
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity for the fiscal years ended December 28, 2023, December 29, 2022, and December 30, 2021
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the fiscal years ended December 28, 2023, December 29, 2022, and December 30, 2021

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2. Financial Statement Schedules:

There are no Financial Statement Schedules included with this filing for the reason that they are not applicable or are not required or the information is included in
the financial statements or notes thereto.

3. Exhibits:
Incorporated by Reference
Exhibit Exhibit Description Form File No. Exhibit Filing Date
3.1 Amended & Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Floor & Decor Holdings, Inc. 10-Q 001-38070 3.1 8/5/2021
32 Third Amended and Restated Bylaws of Floor & Decor Holdings, Inc. 10-Q 001-38070 32 11/2/2023
4.1 Specimen Class A Common Stock Certificate S-1/A 333-216000 4.1 4/17/2017
42 Registration Rights Agreement, dated May 2, 2017, by and among Floor & Decor Holdings, Inc., Ares Corporate Opportunities Fund 8-K 001-38070 4.1 5/2/2017
111, L.P., FS Equity Partners VI, L.P. and the other stockholders party thereto
43 Description of Securities*
10.1 FDO Holdings, Inc. Amended and Restated 2011 Stock Incentive Plan# S-1/A 333-216000 10.1 4/7/2017
10.2 First Amendment to FDO Holdings, Inc. Amended and Restated 2011 Stock Incentive Plan# S-1/A 333-216000 10.2 4/7/2017
10.3 Second Amendment to FDO Holdings, Inc. Amended and Restated 2011 Stock Incentive Plan# S-1/A 333-216000 10.3 4/7/2017
10.4 Third Amendment to FDO Holdings, Inc. Amended and Restated 2011 Stock Incentive Plan# S-1/A 333-216000 10.4 4/7/2017
10.5 Fourth Amendment to FDO Holdings, Inc. Amended and Restated 2011 Stock Incentive Plan# S-1 333-221525 10.5 11/13/2017
10.6 Form of Stock Option Agreement under the FDO Holdings, Inc. Amended and Restated 2011 Stock Incentive Plan# S-1/A 333-216000 10.5 4/7/2017
10.7 Floor & Decor Holdings, Inc. 2017 Stock Incentive Plan# 8-K 001-38070 10.1 5/2/2017
10.8 Amendment No. 1 to the Floor & Decor Holdings, Inc. 2017 Stock Incentive Plan# 8-K 001-38070 10.1 5/12/2023
109 Form of Stock Option Agreement under the Floor & Decor Holdings, Inc. 2017 Stock Incentive Plan# S-1/A 333-216000 10.7 4/17/2017
10.10 Form of Restricted Stock Agreement under the Floor & Decor Holdings, Inc. 2017 Stock Incentive Plan# S-1/A 333-216000 10.8 4/7/2017
10.11 Form of Performance Restricted Stock Agreement under the Floor & Decor Holdings, Inc. 2017 Stock Incentive Plan# 8-K 001-38070 10.6 2/4/2020
10.12 Form of Non-CEO Restricted Stock Unit Agreement under the Floor & Decor Holdings, Inc. 2017 Stock Incentive Plan# 10-K 001-38070 10.11 2/23/2023
10.13 Form of CEO Restricted Stock Unit Agreement under the Floor & Decor Holdings, Inc. 2017 Stock Incentive Plan# 10-K 001-38070 10.12 2/23/2023
10.14 Form of Non-CEO Performance Restricted Stock Unit Agreement under the Floor & Decor Holdings, Inc. 2017 Stock Incentive Plan# 10-K 001-38070 10.13 2/23/2023
10.15 Form of CEO Performance Restricted Stock Unit Agreement under the Floor & Decor Holdings, Inc. 2017 Stock Incentive Plan# 10-K 001-38070 10.14 2/23/2023
10.16 Form of Non-CEO Performance Restricted Stock Unit Agreement under the Floor & Decor Holdings, Inc. 2017 Stock Incentive Plan# 10-Q 001-38070 10.1 5/4/2023
10.17 Form of CEO Performance Restricted Stock Unit Agreement under the Floor & Decor Holdings, Inc. 2017 Stock Incentive Plan# 10-Q 001-38070 10.2 5/4/2023
10.18 Form of Non-CEO 2023 Special Performance and Service Restricted Stock Unit Agreement under the Floor & Decor Holdings, Inc. 10-Q 001-38070 10.3 5/4/2023
2017 Stock Incentive Plan#
10.19 Form of CEO 2023 Special Performance and Service Restricted Stock Unit Agreement under the Floor & Decor Holdings, Inc. 2017 10-Q 001-38070 10.4 5/4/2023
Stock Incentive Plan#
10.20 Form of Indemnification Agreement by and between Floor & Decor Holdings, Inc. and its directors and officers 10-K 001-38070 10.11 2/25/2021
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Incorporated by Reference

Exhibit Exhibit Description Form File No. Exhibit Filing Date

10.21 Second Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, dated February 3, 2020, between Floor and Decor Holdings, Inc., Floor and 8-K 001-38070 10.1 2/4/2020
Decor Outlets of America, Inc. and Thomas V. Taylor#

10.22 Consulting Agreement, dated December 3, 2012, by and between Floor and Decor Outlets of America, Inc., FDO Holdings, Inc. and S-1/A 333-216000 10.11 4/7/2017
George Vincent West#

10.23 First Amendment, dated March 11, 2019, to Consulting Agreement by and between Floor and Decor Outlets of America, Inc., FDO 10-Q 001-38070 10.1 5/2/2019
Holdings, Inc., and George Vincent West#

10.24 Second Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, dated February 3, 2020, between Floor and Decor Holdings, Inc., Floor and 8-K 001-38070 10.2 2/4/2020
Decor Outlets of America, Inc. and Trevor S. Lang#

10.25 Second Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, dated February 3, 2020, between Floor and Decor Holdings, Inc., Floor and 8-K 001-38070 10.5 2/4/2020
Decor Outlets of America, Inc. and David V. Christopherson#

10.26 Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, dated February 3, 2020, between Floor and Decor Holdings, Inc., Floor and Decor 8-K 001-38070 10.4 2/4/2020
Outlets of America, Inc. and Brian K. Robbins#

10.27 Addendum to Employment Agreement, dated March 26, 2020, between Floor & Decor Holdings, Inc., Floor and Decor Outlets of 10-Q 001-38070 10.9 4/30/2020
America, Inc. and Thomas V. Taylor#

10.28 Addendum to Employment Agreement, dated March 26, 2020, between Floor & Decor Holdings, Inc., Floor and Decor Outlets of 10-Q 001-38070 10.10 4/30/2020
America, Inc. and David V. Christopherson#

10.29 Addendum to Employment Agreement, dated March 26, 2020, between Floor & Decor Holdings, Inc., Floor and Decor Outlets of 10-Q 001-38070 10.11 4/30/2020
America, Inc. and Brian K. Robbins#

10.30 Addendum to Employment Agreement, dated March 26, 2020, between Floor & Decor Holdings, Inc., Floor and Decor Outlets of 10-Q 001-38070 10.12 4/30/2020
America, Inc. and Trevor S. Lang#

10.31 Addendum to Employment Agreement, dated August 3, 2022, between Floor & Decor Holdings, Inc., Floor and Decor Outlets of 8-K 001-38070 10.2 8/4/2022
America, Inc. and Trevor S. Lang#

10.32 Employment Agreement, dated February 23, 2023, between Floor & Decor Holdings, Inc., Floor and Decor Outlets of America, Inc., 10-K 001-38070 10.27 2/23/2023
and Bryan Langley#

10.33 Addendum to Employment Agreement, dated August 1, 2023, between Floor & Decor Holdings, Inc., Floor and Decor Outlets of 10-Q 001-38070 10.1 8/3/2023
America, Inc. and Thomas V. Taylor#

10.34 Addendum to Employment Agreement, dated August 1, 2023, between Floor & Decor Holdings, Inc., Floor and Decor Outlets of 10-Q 001-38070 10.2 8/3/2023
America, Inc. and Trevor S. Lang#

10.35 Addendum to Employment Agreement, dated August 1, 2023, between Floor & Decor Holdings, Inc., Floor and Decor Outlets of 10-Q 001-38070 10.3 8/3/2023
America, Inc. and David V. Christopherson#

10.36 Addendum to Employment Agreement, dated August 1, 2023, between Floor & Decor Holdings, Inc., Floor and Decor Outlets of 10-Q 001-38070 10.4 8/3/2023
America, Inc. and Brian K. Robbins#

10.37 Addendum to Employment Agreement, dated August 1, 2023, between Floor & Decor Holdings, Inc., Floor and Decor Outlets of 10-Q 001-38070 10.5 8/3/2023
America, Inc. and Bryan Langley#

10.38 Addendum to Employment Agreement, dated August 25, 2023, between Floor & Decor Holdings, Inc., Floor and Decor Outlets of 8-K 001-38070 10.1 8/28/2023
America, Inc. and Brian K. Robbins#

10.39 Floor & Decor Holdings, Inc. Employee Stock Purchase Plan# DEF 14A 001-38070 Annex A 3/27/2018

10.40 First Amendment to Floor & Decor Holdings, Inc. Employee Stock Purchase Plan# S-8 333-225092 99.2 5/22/2018

10.41 Second Amendment to Floor & Decor Holdings, Inc. Employee Stock Purchase Plan# 10-Q 001-38070 10.1 11/1/2018

10.42 Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated as of September 30, 2016, by and among Floor and Decor Outlets of America, Inc., S-1/A 333-216000 10.16 4/7/2017
FDO Acquisition Corp., Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as administrative agent and collateral agent and swing line lender, the
lenders from time to time party thereto, Bank of America, N.A. and U.S. Bank National Association, as each as syndication agent, and
Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, Bank of America, N.A. and U.S. Bank National Association as joint lead arrangers and joint
book managers

10.43 Amended and Restated Security Agreement, dated as of September 30, 2016, by and among Floor and Decor Outlets of America, Inc., S-1/A 333-216000 10.17 4/7/2017
the other borrowers and guarantors from time to time party thereto, Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as collateral agent

10.44 Credit Agreement, dated as of September 30, 2016, by and among Floor and Decor Outlets of America, Inc., FDO Acquisition Corp., S-1/A 333-216000 10.18 4/7/2017
the lenders from time to time party thereto, UBS AG, Stamford Branch, as administrative agent and collateral agent, the lenders from
time to time party thereto and UBS Securities LLC, Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith Incorporated and Wells Fargo Securities
LLC, as joint lead arrangers and joint bookrunners

10.45 Security Agreement, dated as of September 30, 2016, by and among Floor and Decor Outlets of America, Inc., FDO Acquisition Corp., S-1/A 333-216000 10.19 4/7/2017
the other loan parties from time to time party thereto and UBS AG, Stamford Branch, as collateral agent

10.46 Guaranty Agreement, dated as of September 30, 2016, by FDO Acquisition Corp. in favor of UBS AG, Stamford Branch, as collateral S-1/A 333-216000 10.20 4/7/12017
agent

10.47 Amendment No. 1 to Credit Agreement, dated as of March 31, 2017, by and among Floor and Decor Outlets of America, Inc., FDO S-1/A 333-216000 10.21 4/7/2017
Acquisition Corp., the other loan parties party thereto, the lenders party thereto, and UBS AG, Stamford Branch, as administrative
agent and collateral agent

10.48 Amendment No. 2 to Credit Agreement, dated as of November 22, 2017, by and among Floor and Decor Outlets of America, Inc., FDO 10-K 001-38070 10.23 3/5/2018
Acquisition Corp., the other loan parties party thereto, the lenders party thereto, and UBS AG, Stamford Branch, as administrative
agent and collateral agent

10.49 Amendment No. 3 to Credit Agreement and Amendment No. 1 to Security Agreement, dated as of February 14, 2020, by and among 8-K 001-38070 10.1 2/19/2020

Floor and Decor Outlets of America, Inc., FDO Acquisition Corp., FD Sales Company, LLC, the lenders party thereto and UBS AG,
Stamford Branch, as administrative agent and collateral agent
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Incorporated by Reference

Exhibit Exhibit Description Form File No. Exhibit Filing Date

10.50 Amendment No. 4 and Incremental Term Loan Agreement to Credit Agreement, dated as of May 18, 2020, by and among Floor and 8-K 001-38070 10.1 5/18/2020
Decor Outlets of America, Inc., FDO Acquisition Corp., FD Sales Company, LLC, the lenders party thereto and UBS AG, Stamford
Branch, as administrative agent and collateral agent

10.51 Amendment No. 5 and Incremental Term Loan Agreement to Credit Agreement, dated as of February 9, 2021, by and among Floor and 8-K 001-38070 10.1 2/9/2021
Decor Outlets of America, Inc., FDO Acquisition Corp., FD Sales Company LLC, the lenders party thereto, UBS AG, Stamford
Branch, as administrative agent and collateral agent and Golub Capital LLC, as additional initial term Loan arranger

10.52 Amendment No. 6 to Credit Agreement, dated as of November 15, 2022, by and among Floor and Decor Outlets of America, Inc., FDO 8-K 001-38070 10.1 11/15/2022
Acquisition Corp., FD Sales Company LLC and UBS AG Stamford Branch, as administrative agent and collateral agent
10.53 Amendment No. 1 to Amended and Restated Credit Agreement and Amendment No. 1 to Amended and Restated Security Agreement, 8-K 001-38070 10.2 2/19/2020

dated as of February 14, 2020, by and among Floor and Decor Outlets of America, Inc., FDO Acquisition Corp., FD Sales Company
LLC, the lenders party thereto and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as administrative agent and collateral agent
10.54 Amendment No. 2 to Amended and Restated Credit Agreement and Amendment No. 2 to Amended and Restated Security Agreement, 8-K 001-38070 10.1 8/4/2022
dated as of August 4, 2022, by and among Floor and Decor Outlets of America, Inc., FDO Acquisition Corp., FD Sales Company LLC,
the lenders party thereto and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as administrative agent and collateral agent

10.55 Floor & Decor Holdings, Inc. Director Nonqualified Excess Plan 10-K 001-38070 10.38 2/25/2021

10.56 Floor & Decor Holdings, Inc., Incentive Compensation Recoupment Policy, effective as of May 2, 2019, as amended and restated as of
November 1, 2023#*

21.1 List of subsidiaries*

23.1 Consent of Ernst & Young LLP, independent registered public accounting firm*

31.1 Certification of Principal Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002*

31.2 Certification of Principal Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002*

32.1 Ccrtig:ation of CEO and CFO Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002

97 Dodd-Frank Clawback Policy*
101.INS XBRL Instance Document- the instance document does not appear in the Interactive Data File because its XBRL tags are embedded

within the Inline XBRL document.*
101.SCH Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document*
101.CAL Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document*
101.DEF Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document*
101.LAB Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document*
101.PRE Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document*

104 Cover Page Interactive Data File- the cover page interactive data file does not appear in the Interactive Data File because its XBRL tags
are embedded within the Inline XBRL document.*

# Denotes a contract or comp 'y plan or arr
* Filed herewith.

These certifications are not deemed filed by the SEC and are not to be incorporated by reference in any filing we make under the Securities Act of 1933 or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,
**  irrespective of any general incorporation language in any filings.

ITEM 16. FORM 10-K SUMMARY

None.
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https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1507079/000110465922119144/tm2230570d1_ex10-1.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1507079/000110465920022561/tm207869d1_ex10-2.htm
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https://content.equisolve.net/flooranddecor/sec/0001507079-24-000010/for_pdf/fnd-20231228x10kexx311.htm
https://content.equisolve.net/flooranddecor/sec/0001507079-24-000010/for_pdf/fnd-20231228x10kexx312.htm
https://content.equisolve.net/flooranddecor/sec/0001507079-24-000010/for_pdf/fnd-20231228x10kexx321.htm
https://content.equisolve.net/flooranddecor/sec/0001507079-24-000010/for_pdf/fnd-20231228x10kexx97.htm
https://content.equisolve.net/flooranddecor/sec/0001507079-24-000010/for_pdf/fnd-20231228x10kexx97.htm
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

FLOOR & DECOR HOLDINGS, INC.

By: /s/ Thomas V. Taylor

Thomas V. Taylor
Chief Executive Officer

Date: February 22, 2024

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the Company and in the
capacities indicated on February 22, 2024.

Signature Title Date
/s/ Thomas V. Taylor Chief Executive Officer (Principal Executive Officer) and February 22, 2024
Thomas V. Taylor Director ’
/s/ Bryan H. Langley Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Bryan H. Langley (Principal Financial Officer) February 22,2024

/s/ Luke T. Olson Vice President and Chief Accounting Officer (Principal February 22. 2024
Luke T. Olson Accounting Officer) yes
N H. Axel
/s/ Norman xelrod Chairman of the Board February 22, 2024
Norman H. Axelrod
Vi t t
/s/ George Vincent Wes Vice Chairman of the Board February 22, 2024
George Vincent West
/s/ William T. Giles Director February 22, 2024
William T. Giles
/s/ Dwight L. James Director February 22, 2024
Dwight L. James
Melissa D. K
/s/ Melissa ersey Director February 22, 2024
Melissa D. Kersey
/s/ Ryan R. Marshall Dircctor February 22, 2024
Ryan R. Marshall
/s/ Peter M. Starrett Director February 22, 2024
Peter M. Starrett
Richard L. Sulli
/s/ Richard L. Sullivan Director February 22, 2024
Richard L. Sullivan
/s/ Felicia D. Thornton Director February 22, 2024
Felicia D. Thornton
/s/ Charles D. Young Director February 22, 2024

Charles D. Young
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Exhibit 4.3
DESCRIPTION OF THE REGISTRANT’S SECURITIES
REGISTERED PURSUANT TO SECTION 12 OF THE
SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

Floor & Decor Holdings, Inc. (the “Company”) has one class of securities registered under Section 12 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. In this Exhibit 4.3, when we

e B

refer to “Floor & Decor,” the “Company,” “we,” “us” or “our” or when we otherwise refer to ourselves, we mean Floor & Decor Holdings, Inc. excluding, unless otherwise
expressly stated or the context requires, our subsidiaries, all references to “common stock” refer only to common stock issued by us and not to any common stock issued by any
subsidiary.

DESCRIPTION OF COMMON STOCK

The general terms and provisions of our common stock are summarized below. This summary does not purport to be complete and is subject to, and is qualified in its entirety
by express reference to, the provisions of our Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation (our “Certificate of Incorporation”) and our Third Amended and Restated
Bylaws (our “Bylaws”), each of which is filed as an exhibit to the Annual Report on Form 10-K of which this Exhibit 4.3 is a part. We encourage you to read our Certificate of
Incorporation and Bylaws, and the applicable provisions of the Delaware General Corporation Law (the “DGCL”) for additional information.

(a) Common Stock, $0.01 par value per share

As of December 28, 2023, our authorized capital stock consisted of (i) 450,000,000 shares of common stock, $0.001 par value per share and (ii) 10,000,000 shares of preferred
stock, $0.001 par value per share. As of December 28, 2023, 106,737,532 shares of common stock were outstanding, and no shares of preferred stock were outstanding.

Our common stock is listed on the New York Stock Exchange as Class A common stock under the ticker symbol “FND.” References herein to Class A common stock refer to
our common stock. Under Delaware law, our stockholders generally will not be personally liable for our debts or obligations.

Dividend Rights

Subject to preferences that may apply to shares of preferred stock outstanding at the time, the holders of outstanding shares of our common stock are entitled to receive and
share equally dividends out of funds legally available at the times and in the amounts that our board of directors may determine.

Voting Rights

Each holder of our Class A common stock is entitled to one vote for each share of Class A common stock held on all matters submitted to a vote of stockholders. Our
stockholders do not have cumulative voting rights.

Preemptive or Similar Rights

Our common stock is not entitled to preemptive rights and is not subject to redemption. The rights of the holders of our common stock are subject to, and may be adversely
affected by, the rights of the holders of shares of any series of our preferred stock that our board of directors may designate and issue in the future.

Liquidation Rights

Upon our liquidation, dissolution or winding-up, the assets legally available for distribution to our stockholders would be distributable ratably among the holders of our
common stock and any participating preferred stock outstanding at that time after payment of liquidation preferences, if any, on any outstanding shares of preferred stock and
payment of other claims of creditors.



Exclusive Venue

Our Certificate of Incorporation requires, to the fullest extent permitted by law, that (i) any derivative action or proceeding brought on our behalf, (ii) any action asserting a
claim of breach of a fiduciary duty owed by any of our directors, officers or other employees to us or our stockholders, (iii) any action asserting a claim against us arising
pursuant to any provision of the DGCL or our Certificate of Incorporation or Bylaws or (iv) any action asserting a claim against us governed by the internal affairs doctrine will
have to be brought only in the Court of Chancery in the State of Delaware. In addition, our Bylaws provide that, unless we consent in writing to the selection of an alternative
forum, any complaints asserting a cause of action arising under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act””) must be brought only in the federal district courts
of the United States. Although we have included exclusive venue provisions in our Certificate of Incorporation and Bylaws, it is possible that a court could rule that such
provisions are inapplicable or unenforceable. Although we believe these provisions benefit us by providing increased consistency in the application of applicable law in the
types of lawsuits to which they apply, the provisions may have the effect of discouraging lawsuits against our directors and officers. In addition, these provisions would not
affect the ability of our stockholders to seek remedies under the federal securities laws. These provisions would not apply to any suits brought to enforce any liability or duty
created by the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, or any other claim for which the federal courts of the United States have exclusive jurisdiction.

(b) Provisions of our Certificate of Incorporation or Bylaws may have the effect of delaying, deferring or preventing a change in control.

We are governed by the DGCL. Our Certificate of Incorporation and Bylaws contain certain provisions that could have the effect of delaying, deterring or preventing another
party from acquiring control of us. These provisions, which are summarized below, may discourage coercive takeover practices and inadequate takeover bids. These provisions
are also designed, in part, to encourage persons seeking to acquire control of us to negotiate first with our board of directors. We believe that the benefits of increased protection
of our potential ability to negotiate more favorable terms with an unfriendly or unsolicited acquirer outweigh the disadvantages of potentially discouraging a proposal to acquire
us.

Undesignated Preferred Stock

As discussed above, our board of directors has the ability to issue preferred stock with voting or other rights or preferences that could impede the success of any attempt to
acquire control of us. These and other provisions may have the effect of deterring hostile takeovers or delaying changes in control or management of us.

Limits on Ability of Stockholders to Act by Written Consent or Call a Special Meeting

Our Certificate of Incorporation provides that, subject to the terms of any series of preferred stock, our stockholders may not act by written consent, which may lengthen the
amount of time required to take stockholder actions. As a result, a holder controlling a majority of our capital stock would not be able to amend our Bylaws or remove directors
without holding a meeting of our stockholders called in accordance with our Bylaws. In addition, our Certificate of Incorporation and Bylaws provide that special meetings of
the stockholders may be called only by the chairperson of our board or our board of directors. Stockholders may not call a special meeting, which may delay the ability of our
stockholders to force consideration of a proposal or for holders controlling a majority of our capital stock to take any action, including the removal of directors.

Requirements for Advance Notification of Stockholder Nominations and Proposals

Our Bylaws establish advance notice procedures with respect to stockholder proposals and the nomination of candidates for election as directors, other than nominations made
by or at the direction of our board of directors or a committee of our board of directors. Our Bylaws also establish certain qualifications for candidates for our board of directors
that are nominated by stockholders. These provisions may have the effect of precluding the conduct of certain business at a meeting if the proper procedures are not followed.
These provisions may also discourage or deter a potential acquirer from conducting a solicitation of proxies to elect the acquirer’s own slate of directors or otherwise attempting
to obtain control of us.



Removal of Directors; Vacancies

Directors may only be removed for cause by the affirmative vote of at least a majority of the voting power of our common stock. Our board of directors has the sole power to
fill any vacancy on the board of directors, whether such vacancy occurs as a result of an increase in the number of directors or otherwise.

No Cumulative Voting

Our Certificate of Incorporation and Bylaws do not permit cumulative voting in the election of directors. Cumulative voting allows a stockholder to vote a portion or all of the
stockholder’s shares for one or more candidates for seats on the board of directors. Without cumulative voting, a minority stockholder may not be able to gain as many seats on
our board of directors as the stockholder would be able to gain if cumulative voting were permitted. The absence of cumulative voting makes it more difficult for a minority
stockholder to gain a seat on our board of directors to influence our board of directors’ decision regarding a takeover or otherwise.

Amendment of Charter and Bylaw Provisions

The amendment of certain of the above provisions of our Certificate of Incorporation requires approval by holders of at least a majority of our outstanding Class A common
stock. Our Certificate of Incorporation provides that our board of directors may from time to time adopt, amend, alter or repeal our Bylaws by a vote of a majority of our board
of directors without stockholder approval and that our stockholders may adopt, amend, alter or repeal our Bylaws by the affirmative vote of the holders of at least a majority of
our outstanding Class A common stock.

Delaware Anti-Takeover Statute

Our Certificate of Incorporation provides that we are not governed by Section 203 of the DGCL, which, in the absence of such provision, would have imposed additional
requirements regarding mergers and other business combinations.

The provisions of our Certificate of Incorporation and Bylaws could have the effect of discouraging others from attempting hostile takeovers and, as a consequence, might also
inhibit temporary fluctuations in the market price of our common stock that often result from actual or rumored hostile takeover attempts. These provisions might also have the
effect of preventing changes in our management. It is possible that these provisions could make it more difficult to accomplish transactions that stockholders might otherwise
deem to be in their best interests.

Limitations of Liability, Indemnification and Advancement

Our Certificate of Incorporation and Bylaws provide that we will indemnify and advance expenses to our directors and officers, and may indemnify and advance expenses to
our employees and other agents, to the fullest extent permitted by Delaware law, which prohibits our Certificate of Incorporation from limiting the liability of our directors for
the following:

— any breach of the director’s duty of loyalty to us or to our stockholders;

— acts or omissions not in good faith or that involve intentional misconduct or a knowing violation of law;
— unlawful payment of dividends or unlawful stock repurchases or redemptions; and

— any transaction from which the director derived an improper benefit.

If Delaware law is amended to authorize corporate action further eliminating or limiting the personal liability of a director, then the liability of our directors will be eliminated
or limited to the fullest extent permitted by Delaware law, as so amended. Our Certificate of Incorporation does not eliminate a director’s duty of care and, in appropriate
circumstances, equitable remedies, such as injunctive or other forms of non-monetary relief, remain available under Delaware law. This provision also does not affect a
director’s responsibilities under any other laws, such as the federal securities laws or other state or federal laws. Under our Certificate of Incorporation and Bylaws, we are also
empowered to purchase insurance on behalf of any person whom we are required or permitted to indemnify.



In addition to the indemnification and advancement of expenses required in our Certificate of Incorporation and Bylaws, we have entered into indemnification agreements with
each of our current directors and executive officers. These agreements provide for the indemnification of, and the advancement of expenses to, such persons for all reasonable
expenses and liabilities, including attorneys’ fees, judgments, fines and settlement amounts, incurred in connection with any action or proceeding brought against them by
reason of the fact that they are or were serving in such capacity. We believe that these charter and bylaw provisions and indemnification agreements are necessary to attract and
retain qualified persons as directors and officers. We also maintain directors’ and officers’ liability insurance.

The limitation of liability, indemnification and advancement provisions in our Certificate of Incorporation and Bylaws may discourage stockholders from bringing a lawsuit
against directors for breach of their fiduciary duties. They may also reduce the likelihood of derivative litigation against directors and officers, even though an action, if
successful, might benefit us and our stockholders. A stockholder’s investment may be harmed to the extent we pay the costs of settlement and damage awards against directors
and officers pursuant to these indemnification provisions. Insofar as indemnification for liabilities arising under the Securities Act may be permitted to our directors, officers
and controlling persons pursuant to the foregoing provisions, or otherwise, we have been advised that, in the opinion of the SEC, such indemnification is against public policy
as expressed in the Securities Act, and is, therefore, unenforceable. There is no material pending litigation or proceeding naming any of our directors or officers as to which
indemnification is being sought, nor are we aware of any material pending or threatened litigation that may result in claims for indemnification or advancement by any director
or officer.

Transfer Agent and Registrar

The transfer agent and registrar for our common stock is American Stock Transfer & Trust Company, LLC.



Exhibit 10.56

FLOOR & DECOR HOLDINGS, INC.
INCENTIVE COMPENSATION RECOUPMENT POLICY
(Effective as of May 2, 2019 and amended and restated as of November 1, 2023)

Introduction

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Floor & Decor Holdings, Inc. (the “Company”) believes it to be in the best interests of the
Company and its stockholders to create and maintain a culture that emphasizes integrity and accountability and that reinforces the Company’s pay-
for-performance compensation philosophy. The Board, upon recommendation of the Compensation Committee of the Board (the “Committee”),
hereby adopts this Incentive Compensation Recoupment Policy (this “Policy”), effective as of May 2, 2019 and amended and restated as of
November 1, 2023, which provides for the recoupment of certain compensation upon the occurrence of a Trigger Event or Restatement (each, as
defined below).

Administration

This Policy shall be administered by the Board or, if so designated by the Board, the Committee, in which case references herein to the
Board shall be deemed references to the Committee. The Board shall interpret this Policy and shall prescribe such rules and regulations in
connection with the operation of this Policy as it determines to be advisable for the administration of this Policy, and may rescind and amend its
regulations from time to time, consistent with this Policy. Any determinations made by the Board shall be final and binding upon the Company
and all persons affected hereunder.

Covered Persons

This Policy applies to the Company’s current and former executive officers, Executive Vice Presidents, and Senior Vice Presidents
(“Covered Persons™). For purposes of this Policy, determinations as to whether an employee is or was an executive officer shall be made by the
Board, consistent with Rule 3b-7 or Rule 16a-1(f) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, and any successor statute, and the rules promulgated
thereunder (the “Exchange Act”).

Definition of Incentive Compensation

For purposes of this Policy, “Incentive Compensation” means any of the following cash or non-cash incentive compensation awarded to a
Covered Person: cash bonuses and other cash incentives (whether short-term or long-term, and whether paid on a current or deferred basis),
restricted stock units, restricted stock, stock options, stock appreciation rights, performance shares, performance units and other cash or non-cash
incentive compensation, in each case, paid or awarded pursuant to any incentive plan or arrangement maintained, contributed to or sponsored by
the Company and its affiliates, as each may be amended from time to time.



Trigger Events; Restatement

For purposes of this Policy, “Trigger Event” means with respect to any Covered Person, (i) such Covered Person’s willful misconduct or
gross negligence with regard to the Company or any subsidiary of the Company or willful violation of a material Company policy; or perpetration
of an illegal act, dishonesty, fraud or act of moral turpitude, or (ii) with respect to any of the circumstances in subclause (i), the Covered Person
had supervisory authority over the employee(s) or business area engaged in such activity and knew of, or willfully disregarded, such activity.

For purposes of this Policy, “Restatement” means, with respect to a Covered Person, any material negative restatement of the Company’s
financial statements, where such restatement is due to such Covered Person’s fraud or intentional misconduct or where the Covered Person had
supervisory authority over the employee(s) or business area engaged in such activity and knew of, or willfully disregarded, such activity. For
purposes of this Policy, a Restatement need not be a formal restatement of financial statements required by accounting standards nor must an
accounting restatement be actually prepared, but shall not include a restatement due solely to changes in accounting principles or applicable law.

Recoupment

If there is a Restatement or Trigger Event and, with respect to a Covered Person, the Board determines that the Covered Person received
Incentive Compensation during the fiscal year in which the Restatement or Trigger Event occurred or during the last completed fiscal year of the
Company prior to the fiscal year in which the Restatement or Trigger Event occurred (the “Look-Back Period”), the Board may in its sole
discretion (unless otherwise required by law), with respect to such Covered Person recoup from such Covered Person all or any portion of the
Incentive Compensation received by such Covered Person during the Look-Back Period.

The Board will determine in its sole discretion the amount of Incentive Compensation, if any, that it will seek to recover from such
Covered Person pursuant to this Policy.

Method of Recoupment of Incentive Compensation

Upon any recoupment determination by the Board, the Board shall notify the Covered Person in writing of its determination at a time
determined by the Board in its sole discretion. The Board will determine, in its sole discretion, the method for the recoupment of the Incentive
Compensation. Methods of recoupment may include, without limitation, any of the following:

(a) requiring repayment of any cash Incentive Compensation previously paid;

(b) cancelling outstanding vested or unvested equity or equity-linked Incentive Compensation;

(c) seeking recovery of any gain realized from the vesting, exercise, settlement, sale, transfer or other disposition of any equity or equity-
linked Incentive Compensation;

(d) offsetting the recouped amount from any compensation otherwise owed by the Company to the Covered Person; and

(e) taking any other remedial and recovery action permitted by law, as determined by the Board.



To the extent that a Covered Person is required to repay any Incentive Compensation, or to take any other action required or appropriate to
effectuate recoupment in accordance with this Policy, then the Covered Person shall promptly repay such Incentive Compensation and shall
promptly take all such other actions, upon the Company’s demand or within a specified time period (and with or without interest), as determined
by the Board. Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary and for the avoidance of doubt, unless determined otherwise by the Board in its sole
discretion, with respect to each Covered Person, the excess amount subject to recoupment hereunder shall be reduced, on a dollar-for-dollar basis,
by aggregate amount of Incentive Compensation that is successfully recovered from such Covered Person under any other plan, policy, agreement
or provision of the Company relating to recoupment, clawback, and/or forfeiture, including without limitation, the Company’s Dodd-Frank
Clawback Policy, effective as of October 2, 2023.

Interpretation

The Board is authorized to interpret and construe this Policy and to make all determinations necessary, appropriate or advisable for the
administration of this Policy.

No Indemnification
The Company shall not indemnify any Covered Person against the loss of any erroneously awarded Incentive Compensation.
Effective Date

This Policy is effective as of May 2, 2019 (the “Effective Date”) and amended and restated as of November 1, 2023, and shall apply to
Incentive Compensation that is approved, awarded or granted to Covered Persons on or after that date.

Amendment; Termination
The Board may amend or terminate this Policy from time to time in its discretion.

Other Recoupment Rights

The Board intends that this Policy will be applied to the fullest extent of the law. The Board may require that any equity award agreement
or similar agreement entered into on or after the Effective Date shall, as a condition to the grant of any benefit thereunder, require a Covered
Person to agree to abide by the terms of this Policy. Any right of recoupment under this Policy is in addition to, and not in lieu of, any other
remedies or rights of recoupment that may be available to the Company pursuant to the terms of any similar policy or in any employment
agreement, equity award agreement, or similar agreement, plan or program, and shall not limit any other legal remedies available to the Company,
including termination of employment or institution of civil or criminal proceedings. Nothing herein shall limit the authority of the Board to impose
additional requirements or conditions that may give rise to the Company’s right to forfeit or recoup any compensation. To the extent that
applicable law, court order or court-approved settlement requires recovery of Incentive Compensation in additional circumstances beyond those
specified in this Policy, nothing in this Policy shall be deemed to limit or restrict the right or obligation of the Company to recover Incentive
Compensation or other compensation to the fullest extent required or permitted by applicable law.



Section 409A

Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, the Board may not implement the recoupment of any Incentive Compensation of any
Covered Person pursuant to this Policy by offset from or reduction of any amount that is payable and/or to be provided to the Covered Person and
that is considered “non-qualified deferred compensation” under Section 409A of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and the
regulations and guidance promulgated thereunder (collectively, “Section 409A”), except to the extent permitted without penalty under Section
409A.

Successors

This Policy shall be binding and enforceable against all Covered Persons and their beneficiaries, heirs, executors, administrators or other
legal representatives.



FLOOR & DECOR HOLDINGS, INC.
INCENTIVE COMPENSATION RECOUPMENT POLICY
Covered Person Acknowledgment
It is the policy of Floor & Decor Holdings, Inc. (the “Company”) that as a Covered Person to whom the Company’s Incentive Compensation
Recoupment Policy (the “Policy”) applies, you acknowledge your receipt of, and agree to be subject to the terms and conditions of the Policy. A
copy of the Policy is enclosed for your records. You should thoroughly review the Policy, then complete and sign the acknowledgement below and
return it to the Company’s General Counsel. Please return the acknowledgement by [ e], 2023. Any questions regarding the Policy should be

directed to the Company’s General Counsel.

Acknowledgement

I , have received a copy of the Floor & Decor Holdings, Inc. Incentive Compensation Recoupment Policy which outlines
the terms and conditions of the Policy and I have read and familiarized myself with the contents of the Policy. I understand that I am a “Covered
Person” within the meaning of the Policy. By my signature below, I acknowledge, understand, accept and agree to be subject to the terms and
conditions of the Policy including, without limitation, the possible clawback or recoupment of Incentive Compensation (within the meaning of the
Policy) previously paid to me or the forfeiture of vested or unvested Incentive Compensation. I acknowledge that the Policy may be amended by
the Board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”), or the Compensation Committee of the Board to comply with any rules or standards
adopted by a national securities exchange on which the Company’s shares are listed, or other applicable rule or regulation. I further acknowledge
that I am subject to the terms and conditions of the Policy, as such Policy may be amended from time to time, in each case, notwithstanding the
terms and conditions of any Company agreement, arrangement, plan, award, program or policy (whether oral or written). I further understand and
agree that any action taken by the Company pursuant to the Policy shall not constitute or give rise to any constructive termination of employment,
“good reason,” breach of contract or other similar rights under any Company agreement, arrangement, plan, award, program or policy (whether
oral or written) or give rise to any right I have, or otherwise could have, to indemnification from the Company or otherwise in respect thereof.

(Signature of Covered Person) (Date)



List of Subsidiaries

EXHIBIT 21.1

Name of Subsidiary Jurisdiction of Incorporation, Organization or Formation
FDO Acquisition Corp. Delaware
Floor and Decor Outlets of America, Inc. Delaware
FD Sales Company LLC Delaware
Floor and Decor Business Information Consultancy (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. Shanghai
Spartan Surfaces, LLC Delaware
Salesmaster Associates, LLC Delaware

Great Northern Associates, LLC

Delaware




EXHIBIT 23.1

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

We consent to the incorporation by reference in the following Registration Statements:

(1) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-217474) pertaining to the Floor & Decor Holdings, Inc. 2017 Stock Incentive Plan & FDO Holdings, Inc. Amended and
Restated 2011 Stock Incentive Plan,

(2) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-225092) pertaining to the Floor & Decor Holdings, Inc. Employee Stock Purchase Plan, and
(3) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-272080) pertaining to the Floor & Decor Holdings, Inc. 2017 Stock Incentive Plan

of our reports dated February 22, 2024, with respect to the consolidated financial statements of Floor & Decor Holdings, Inc. and Subsidiaries and the effectiveness of internal
control over financial reporting of Floor & Decor Holdings, Inc. and Subsidiaries included in this Annual Report (Form 10-K) of Floor & Decor Holdings, Inc. for the year
ended December 28, 2023.

/s/ Ernst & Young LLP
Atlanta, Georgia

February 22, 2024



EXHIBIT 31.1

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
PURSUANT TO RULES 13a-14(a) AND 15d-14(a) UNDER THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934,

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Thomas V. Taylor, certify that:

1.

I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Floor & Decor Holdings, Inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light
of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition,
results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-
15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material
information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which
this report is being prepared,

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure
controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the
registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over
financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors
and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect
the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial
reporting.

Date: February 22, 2024

/s/ Thomas V. Taylor
Thomas V. Taylor

Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Olfficer)




EXHIBIT 31.2
CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO RULES 13a-14(a) AND 15d-14(a) UNDER THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934,

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Bryan H. Langley, certify that:

1.

I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Floor & Decor Holdings, Inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light
of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition,
results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-
15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material
information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which
this report is being prepared,

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure
controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the
registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over
financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors
and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect
the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial
reporting.

Date: February 22, 2024

/s/ Bryan H. Langley

Bryan H. Langley

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)




EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATIONS OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the annual report on Form 10-K of Floor & Decor Holdings, Inc. (the “Company”), for the fiscal year ended December 28, 2023, as filed with the Securities
and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) on the date hereof (the “Periodic Report”), Thomas V. Taylor, as Chief Executive Officer of the Company, and Bryan H. Langley, as
Chief Financial Officer of the Company, each hereby certifies, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to § 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (“Section 906”),
that, to the best of his knowledge:

1. The Periodic Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C. §78m or 780(d)); and

2. The information contained in the Periodic Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

Date: February 22, 2024 /s/ Thomas V. Taylor
Thomas V. Taylor
Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

Date: February 22, 2024 /s/ Bryan H. Langley
Bryan H. Langley
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)

A signed original of this written statement as required by Section 906, or other document authenticating, acknowledging, or otherwise adopting the signatures that appear in
typed form within the electronic version of this written statement required by Section 906, has been provided to the Company and will be retained by the Company and
furnished to the SEC or its staff upon request.



Exhibit 97

FLOOR & DECOR HOLDINGS, INC.
DODD-FRANK CLAWBACK POLICY
Introduction
The Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Floor & Decor Holdings, Inc. (the “Company”) has adopted this Dodd-Frank Clawback Policy
(this “Policy”), which provides for the recovery of certain compensation in a manner that is designed to comply with, and that will be interpreted

to be consistent with the requirements of Section 954 of the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act of 2010 (“Dodd-
Frank™) and Section 303A.14 of the of the New York Stock Exchange (“NYSE”) Listed Company Manual (the “Listing Standards™).

Definitions
For purposes of this Policy, the following terms shall have the following meanings:

“Applicable Period” means the three completed fiscal years of the Company immediately preceding the earlier of: (i) the date the Board, a
committee of the Board, or the officer or officers of the Company authorized to take such action if Board action is not required, concludes (or
reasonably should have concluded) that the Company is required to prepare a Restatement; or (ii) the date a court, regulator, or other legally
authorized entity directs the Company to prepare a Restatement, in each case, regardless of if or when the Restatement is actually filed. The
“Applicable Period” also includes any transition period (that results from a change in the Company’s fiscal year) within or immediately following
the three completed fiscal years identified in the preceding sentence (except that a transition period that comprises a period of at least nine months
shall count as a completed fiscal year).

“Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.
“Compensation Committee” means the Compensation Committee of the Board.

“Covered Executive” means each Executive Officer of the Company including current and former Executive Officers, as determined by the
Board in accordance with the definition of “executive officer” in accordance with Dodd-Frank and the Listing Standards.

“Exchange Act” means the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and the rules promulgated thereunder.

“Executive Officer” means the Company’s president, principal financial officer, principal accounting officer (or if there is no such
accounting officer, the controller), any vice-president of the Company in charge of a principal business unit, division, or function (such as sales,
administration, or finance), any other officer who performs a policy-making function, or any other person who performs similar policy-making
functions for the Company. Executive officers of the Company’s parent(s) or subsidiaries are deemed Executive Officers of the Company if they
perform such policy-making functions for the Company. The term “policy-making” function is not intended to include policy-making functions
that are not significant, as determined by the Board in accordance with this Policy. For purposes of this Policy, “Executive Officer” shall also
include each person determined to be an “executive officer” for purposes of 17 CFR 229.401(b).



“Financial Reporting Measure” means a measure that is determined and presented in accordance with the accounting principles used in
preparing the Company’s financial statements (including “non-GAAP” financial measures, such as those appearing in the Company’s earnings
releases or Management’s Discussion and Analysis, as set forth in the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K), and any measures that are
derived wholly or in part from such measures (including stock price and total shareholder return). Examples of Financial Reporting Measures
include, without limitation, measures based on: revenues, net income, operating income, financial ratios, EBITDA, funds from operations and
adjusted funds from operations, liquidity measures, return measures (such as return on assets), earnings measures (e.g., earnings per share),
profitability of one or more segments, cost per employee where cost is subject to a Restatement, any of such financial measures relative to a peer
group where the Financial Reporting Measure is subject to a Restatement, and tax basis income. A Financial Reporting Measure need not be
presented within the financial statements or included in a filing with the SEC.

“Impracticable” means that the Compensation Committee has determined in good faith that recovery of Recoverable Compensation would be
“Impracticable” because: (i) pursuing such recovery would violate any home country law where that law was adopted prior to November 28, 2022
and the Company provides an opinion of home country counsel acceptable to the NYSE that recovery would result in such a violation, and such
opinion is provided to the NYSE; (ii) the direct expense paid to a third party to assist in enforcing this Policy would exceed the Recoverable
Compensation and the Company has (A) made a reasonable attempt to recover such amounts and (B) provided documentation of such attempts to
recover to the NYSE; or (iii) recovery would likely cause an otherwise tax-qualified retirement plan, under which benefits are broadly available to
employees of the Company, to fail to meet the requirements of the Code in each case, in accordance with Dodd-Frank and the Listing Standards.

“Incentive-Based Compensation” means any compensation that is granted, earned, or vested based wholly or in part upon the attainment of
a Financial Reporting Measure. Incentive-Based Compensation does not include any base salaries (except with respect to any salary increases
earned wholly or in part based on the attainment of a Financial Reporting Measure); bonuses paid solely at the discretion of the Compensation
Committee or the Board that are not paid from a “bonus pool” that is determined by satisfying a Financial Reporting Measure; bonuses paid solely
upon satisfying one or more subjective standards (none of which are a Financial Reporting Measure) and/or completion of a specified employment
period; non-equity incentive plan awards earned solely upon satisfying one or more measures none of which is a Financial Reporting Measure;
and equity awards that vest solely based on the passage of time and/or attaining one or more measures none of which are a Financial Reporting
Measure.

“Received” means, with respect to Incentive-Based Compensation, the point in time in the Company’s fiscal period during which the
Financial Reporting Measure specified in the Incentive-Based Compensation award is attained, even if the payment, vesting or settlement of the
Incentive-Based Compensation occurs after the end of such period.

“Recoverable Compensation” means the amount of any Incentive-Based Compensation (calculated on a pre-tax basis) Received by a
Covered Executive: (i) after beginning services as a Covered Executive; (ii) if such person served as a Covered Executive at any time during the
performance period applicable to such Incentive-Based Compensation; (iii) while the Company had a listed class of securities on a national
securities exchange; and (iv) during the Applicable Period that is in excess of the amount that otherwise would have been Received if the
calculation were based on the Restatement. Recoverable Compensation may include Incentive-Based Compensation Received by a Covered
Executive if such person previously served as a Covered Executive and then left the Company, retired, or transitioned to an employee role. If the
subject Incentive-Based Compensation (calculated on a pre-tax basis) was based on stock price or total
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shareholder return, where the Recoverable Compensation is not subject to mathematical recalculation directly from the information in a
Restatement, the Recoverable Compensation must be based on a reasonable estimate of the effect of the Restatement on the stock price or total
shareholder return based upon which the Incentive-Based Compensation was Received, and documentation of such reasonable estimate must be
provided to the NYSE. The amount of Recoverable Compensation shall be determined by the Board in its sole and absolute discretion and in
accordance with applicable laws, including Dodd-Frank and the Listing Standards.

“Restatement” means an accounting restatement of any of the Company’s financial statements filed with the SEC under the Exchange
Act, or the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, due to the Company’s material noncompliance with any financial reporting requirement under U.S.
securities laws. “Restatement” includes any required accounting restatement to correct an error in previously issued financial statements that is
material to the previously issued financial statements (commonly referred to as “Big R” restatements), or that would result in a material
misstatement if the error were corrected in the current period or left uncorrected in the current period (commonly referred to as “little 1
restatements).

“SEC” means the Securities and Exchange Commission.
Administration

This Policy shall be administered by the Board or, if so designated by the Board, the Compensation Committee, in which case references
herein to the Board shall be deemed references to the Compensation Committee. The Board shall interpret and construe this Policy and shall take
such actions and prescribe such rules and regulations in connection with the operation of this Policy as it determines to be necessary, appropriate,
or advisable for the administration of this Policy, and may rescind and amend its regulations from time to time, in each case, consistent with this
Policy. Any determinations made by the Board shall be final, conclusive and binding upon the Company and all persons affected hereunder and
need not be uniform with respect to each Covered Executive. Subject to any limitation under applicable law, the Board may authorize and
empower any officer or employee of the Company or any of its affiliates to take any and all actions necessary or appropriate to carry out the
purpose and intent of this Policy (other than with respect to any recovery under this Policy involving such officer).

Recoupment

If the Company is required to prepare a Restatement, then the Company shall recover, reasonably promptly, all Recoverable
Compensation from any Covered Executive during the Applicable Period (including those Covered Executives who are not Executive Officers at
the time of the Restatement). Such recovery shall be made without regard to any individual knowledge or responsibility related to the Restatement
or the Recoverable Compensation, and regardless of whether the Company’s or a Covered Executive’s misconduct or other action or omission was
the cause for such Restatement. Further, if the achievement of one or more Financial Reporting Measures was considered in determining the
Incentive-Based Compensation Received by a Covered Executive, but the Incentive-Based Compensation was not paid or awarded on a formulaic
basis, the Board will in its good faith discretion determine the amount of any Recoverable Compensation that must be recouped with respect
thereto. Notwithstanding the above provision, the Board can decide to refrain from recovering the Recoverable Compensation if the Compensation
Committee determines that such recovery would be Impracticable.



Method of Recoupment of Incentive-Based Compensation

Upon any recoupment determination by the Board, the Board shall notify the Covered Executive in writing of its determination. The Board
will determine, in its sole discretion, the method for the recoupment of the Incentive-Based Compensation. Methods of recoupment may include,
without limitation, one or more of the following:

(a) requiring repayment of any cash Incentive-Based Compensation or other cash-based compensation previously paid,

(b) cancelling outstanding vested or unvested equity or equity-linked awards, including without limitation, awards constituting Incentive-
Based Compensation;

(c) forfeiture of deferred compensation, subject to compliance with Section 409A (as defined below);

(d) seeking recovery of any gain realized from the vesting, exercise, settlement, sale, transfer or other disposition of any equity or equity-
linked awards, including without limitation, awards constituting Incentive-Based Compensation;

(e) offsetting the recouped amount from any compensation otherwise owed by the Company to the Covered Executive;
(f) cancelling or offsetting against any planned future cash or equity-based awards; and/or

(g) taking any other remedial or recovery action permitted by law and the Listing Standards, as determined by the Board in its sole
discretion.

To the extent that a Covered Executive is required to repay any Incentive-Based Compensation, or to take any other action required or
appropriate to effectuate recoupment in accordance with this Policy, then the Covered Executive shall promptly repay such Incentive-Based
Compensation and shall promptly take all such other actions, upon the Board’s demand or within a specified time period (and with or without
interest), as determined by the Board in its sole discretion.

Disclosure

It is intended that the Company shall make such disclosures with respect to Incentive-Based Compensation subject to this Policy, and any
actions taken or omitted to be taken hereunder, with the SEC and NYSE, in each case, as may be required under any applicable requirements, rules
or standards thereof.

Interpretation

The Board and the Compensation Committee, as applicable, are authorized to interpret and construe this Policy and to make all
determinations necessary, appropriate or advisable for the administration of this Policy. This Policy will be interpreted and enforced in accordance
with Dodd-Frank, and the Listing Standards.



No Indemnification or Reimbursement

Notwithstanding the terms of any other policy, program, agreement or arrangement, in no event will the Company or any of its affiliates
indemnify or reimburse any Covered Executive for the loss of any Recoverable Compensation that is required to be repaid or that is otherwise
subject to recoupment under this Policy. Further, in no event shall the Company or any of its affiliates pay or reimburse any Covered Executive for
premiums on any insurance policy that would cover a Covered Executive’s potential obligations with respect to Recoverable Compensation under
this Policy.

Acknowledgement by Covered Executives

The Company shall provide notice and seek written acknowledgement of this Policy from each Covered Executive, provided that the
failure to provide such notice or obtain such acknowledgement shall have no impact on the applicability or enforceability of this Policy.

Effective Date; Retroactive Application

This Policy is effective as of October 2, 2023 (the “Effective Date”). The terms of this Policy shall apply to Incentive-Based Compensation
that is Received by Covered Executives on or after the Effective Date, even if such Incentive-Based Compensation was approved, awarded,
granted or paid to the Covered Executives prior to the Effective Date and prior to the adoption of this Policy by the Board. Without limiting the
generality of the provisions of this Policy concerning the method of recoupment of Incentive-Based Compensation, and subject to applicable law,
the Board may affect recovery under this Policy from any amount of compensation approved, awarded, granted, payable or paid to the Covered
Executive prior to, on or after the Effective Date.

Governing Law

This Policy shall be governed by the laws of the State of Delaware, excluding any conflict or choice of law or principle that might
otherwise refer construction or interpretation of this Policy to the substantive law of another jurisdiction.

Amendment; Termination
The Board may amend or terminate this Policy at any time in its sole discretion.
Company Indemnification
Any members of the Board and any other employees of the Company or its affiliates who assist in the administration of this Policy shall not be
personally liable for any action, determination or interpretation made with respect to this Policy and shall be fully indemnified by the Company to
the fullest extent permitted under applicable law, Company policy and/or the Company’s organizational documents with respect to any such

action, determination or interpretation. The foregoing sentence shall not limit any other rights to indemnification of the members of the Board
under applicable law, Company policy, and/or the Company’s organizational documents.



Other Recoupment Rights

The Board may require that any equity or equity-linked award agreement or similar agreement entered into on or after the Effective Date
shall, as a condition to the grant of any benefit thereunder, require a Covered Executive to agree to abide by the terms of this Policy. Any right of
recoupment under this Policy is in addition to, and not in lieu of, any other remedies or rights that may be available to the Company pursuant to
the terms of any policy or in any employment agreement, equity or equity-linked award agreement, or similar agreement, plan or program, and
shall not limit any other right, remedy or enforcement mechanism available to the Company under any local, state or federal law, regulation,
agreement or other authority to reduce, eliminate or recover Incentive-Based Compensation or other compensation from any current, former or
future Covered Executive, including, without limitation: (i) termination of employment for any reason; (ii) adjusting the Covered Executive’s
future compensation; (iii) instituting civil or criminal proceedings, or any actions that may be imposed by law enforcement agencies, regulators,
administrative bodies or other authorities; or (iv) taking such other action as the Company or the Board or any authorized committee thereof may
deem appropriate. Nothing herein shall limit the authority of the Board to impose additional requirements or conditions that may give rise to the
Company’s right to forfeit or recoup any compensation. To the extent that applicable law (including, without limitation, Dodd-Frank), the Listing
Standards, court order or court-approved settlement requires recovery of Recoverable Compensation in additional circumstances beyond those
specified in this Policy, nothing in this Policy shall be deemed to limit or restrict the right or obligation of the Company to recover Recoverable
Compensation or other compensation to the fullest extent required by applicable law and/or the Listing Standards.

Section 409A

Although the Company does not guarantee any particular tax treatment to any Covered Executive, in the event of recoupment of any
Recoverable Compensation from any Covered Executive pursuant to this Policy by offset from or reduction of any amount that is payable and/or
to be provided to the Covered Executive that is considered “non-qualified deferred compensation” under Section 409A of the Code, and the
regulations and guidance promulgated thereunder (collectively, “Section 409A”), to the extent determined by the Board, it is intended that such
offset and/or reduction shall be implemented in a manner intended to avoid imposition of penalties under Section 409A.

Successors

This Policy shall be binding and enforceable against all Covered Executives and their beneficiaries, heirs, executors, administrators or
other legal representatives.



Form of Acknowledgment:

FLOOR & DECOR HOLDINGS, INC.
CLAWBACK POLICY
Covered Executive Acknowledgment

1, , acknowledge that I am a “Covered Executive” as defined in the Floor & Decor Holdings, Inc. (the “Company’)
Dodd-Frank Clawback Policy (the “Policy’) to which this Covered Executive Acknowledgment is appended, and that the Policy applies to me as a
Covered Executive under the Policy. I affirm that I have received, and have read and familiarized myself with, the Policy, and that I accept and
agree to be subject to the terms and conditions of the Policy, including any amendment thereto. If the Company’s Board of Directors, or an
authorized committee thereof (i.e., the Compensation Committee) determines that any amounts granted, awarded, earned or paid to me must be
forfeited or reimbursed to the Company pursuant to the Policy, I will promptly take any and all actions necessary to effectuate such forfeiture
and/or reimbursement.

AGREED AND ACKNOWLEDGED

(Signature of Covered Executive) (Date)
Name:
Title:



